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We melntain @ perfolie of utility and non-utility businesses with
varying rsk/return profiles. This diversity provides stability to cur
earnings stream.

> Electric and gas utilities form our core operations. Regulated
uitlities are allowed te carm a fair return and provide & stable base
of earnings for shareholders.

o We have en elght-year track record of sucsessiul growth in our
nen-utliity businesses. Our strategy is linked to our core skills end
assets, and Is focused en ereating valus for our shareholders.

° Ws expeet to generate approsdimately $1.65 biilion of excess cash
between now and 2008, and we have & solid plen te redeploy this
cash and build shareholdsr value.

o Wes are commitiad to meintalning @ healthy belance sheet and @
strong Investment-grade rating.

o We havs provided attractive mulil-year returns.

Lake Road

o We have provided & solid dividend with & high yield: 4.8 pereent. Power Plant,
Dayville, Conn.

Kevin Caldwell
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DTE Energy businesses

.| [DEmmer Exson

| ‘

“ Electric Power Generation — Generate approximately 11,000 MW of power from
! | nine fossil-fuel plants, one nuclear plant, a hydroelectric facility and 85 peaking ‘
} generators in Michigan. }
| Electric Power Distribution — Own and operate approximately 660 distribution |
substations, maintain 44,000 miles of power lines and nearly 1 million utility poles,
supplying electricity to 2.1 million customers in southeastern Michigan.

| = | MiexGon

il

Uil

Gas Distribution - Provide gas sales and transportation delivery services to

1.2 million residential, commercial and industrial customers throughout Michigan.

MichCon owns and operates 295 storage wells representing more than 5 percent of
_the nation’s gas storage capacity.

PowEs AND [NBDUSTRIAL

Provide on-site energy services for large industrial customers in the auto, steel,
! and pulp and paper industries; steel-related projects such as synfuel and coke )
| production, and pulverized coal injection; power generation with value-added
services; and waste coal recovery projects.

Uncomvermonal Gas

Own interest in 22 percent of Michigan Antrim shale well production; lease almost
50,000 acres in Texas, with test drilling of the Barnett shale under way; and own and
operate 29 landfill gas recovery sites in 12 states.

e =il

FUEL TRANSPORTATION MARKETING

Provide coal supply and transportation-related services across North America; own
40 percent interest in Vector pipeline and 10.5 percent interest in proposed Millennium
pipeline; own or operate 70 Bef of non-utility storage assets in Michigan; offer a full line
of products and services to help manage energy purchase, generation and delivery.
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Operating Revenues
1 i Electric Utility $ 3568 $ 369 (34) %
fﬂﬂ@ﬂ@ﬂ@ﬂ Gas Utility 1,682 1,498 123 %
A A Non-utility 2,495 2,119 177 %
h D@hﬂﬂ@hﬁ@ Corporate & Other 16 12 333 %
Eliminations (647) (283) N/A
AL § 7041 10 %
Net Income
Electric Utility $ 150 $ 252 {40.5) %
Gas Utility 20 29 (31.0) %
Non-utility 283 256 105 %
Corporate & Other (10} (57} N/A
443 480 1 %
Discontinued Operations (12} 68 (117.6) %
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes - (271 -
3 _ @ § 52 (17.3) %
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Electric Utility $ 0.87 $ 1.50 (42.0) %
Gas Utility 0.1 0.17 {35.3) %
Non-utility 1.63 1.52 72 %
Corporate & Other (0.06) (0.34) {82.4) %
2.55 2.85 (10.5) %
Discontinued Operations (0.06) 0.40 (115.0) %
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes - (0.16) -
§ 249 § 309 (194) %
Dividends Declared Per Share $ 2.06 $ 2.06 -
Dividend Yield 48 % 52 % (86) %
Average Common Shares OQutstanding {(Millions)
Basic 173 168 30 %
Diluted 173 168 30 %
Book Value Per Share $ 3185 $ 3136 16 %
Market Price at Year End $ 4313 $ 3940 95 %
Total Market Capitalization $ 1514 $ 6643 131 %
Investments and Capital Expenditures $ 940 3 785 197 %
Total Assets $ 21,297 $ 20753 26 %

total Shareholoer return

DTE Energy has consistently yielded strong performance for our shareholders.
Total shareholder return is the sum of share price appreciation and dividend vield.

3 191%| | DTE Energy
e 175% L_| S&P Electric Index
@UmU”@tﬁV@ » 77% Source: CompuStat
©
$c
total return | = M)
™
§ 15% i
N 27%

From top: DTE Energy Hydrogen Techonology Park, Southfield, Mich.; Dick Redmond (left) and Dale Walker, DTE Oil and Gas;
Matt Karzelius (left) and Brian LoTempio, on-site energy facility, Tonawanda, N.Y.
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real

strategies

We faced enormous challenges in 2004. Fortunately,
by year end most were behind us. I'm pleased with
the progress we made. But at the same time, I'm
disappointed with our earnings performance. We
expected 2004 to be a low point in our business cycle
and it was. The loss of revenue due to Michigan’s
Electric Choice program and the cost of implementation
negatively impacted our bottom line by more than

$85 million, or 50 cents a share, year-over-year.

Our diluted earnings per share were $2.49 in 2004
compared to $3.09 in 2003. In 2005, we should

rebound above 2003 levels. We expect improvement

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer across all Of our business Segments'
Tony Earley

Before I describe our plans for 2005, I'd like to look
back at 2004. Addressing regulatory concerns
dominated our efforts. In November, the Michigan
Public Service Commission (MPSC) issued a final
order on our electric rate case. It was the first rate
3 -t r a C k r e C O r d 0 f V a I U e increaTse in‘ 10 years for our electric subsidiary:,
Detroit Edison, and among the most complex in
Michigan history. We received a $374 million
increase in our base rates. In addition, the MPSC
decision improved the certainty of cost recovery on
a number of fronts that will help clear the way for

Detroit Edison to earn a fair return.
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n-site energy Tacility, Sparrows Peint, Md.
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In terms of fixing Michigan’s Electric
Choice program, the MPSC rate order was
directionally correct. But there is still a

lot of work to do on both the regulatory and
legislative fronts. The most pressing issues
are unbundling rates and eliminating
subsidies for some rate classes (see

Management's Discussion for more detail).

The rate case filed by our natural gas
subsidiary, MichCon, was also the first in
a decade. We expect to receive a final
rate order in the first quarter of 2005.
Because the order will be issued late in
the 2005 heating season, we will not
benefit fully until 20086,

)
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Our second 2004 priority was to continue
selling down our synfuel portfolio. We
earn tax credits by processing particles of
coal into an energy scurce. Because we
can only use a limited number of tax
credits in any given year, we accelerate
cash generation by selling interests in our
portfolio. By year end, we had sold more
than 90 percent of our capacity, with plans

to sell at least an additional 7 percent.




We expect to generate approximately $1.65 billion
of excess cash, primarily from synfuel, between
2005-2008. This cash presents a unique opportunity
to increase shareholder value and strengthen our
balance sheet. We have a solid plan to invest
this cash that should help position our company
for long-term growth, {Read more about this

strategy in the sidebar of my letter.)

Our third 2004 priority was to sustain the
company’s growth momentum without stressing
our balance sheet. We looked for only the very
hest investments and continued our non-utility
growth for the eighth consceutive year. Our

accomplishments include:

¢ Completing a deal with DaimlerChrysler to
provide on-site ¢nergy services at eight sites
in Michigan, Indiana and Ohio.

* Entering the pulp and paper industry for the
first time with a deal to provide steam and
electricity services {o a tissue mill in Alabama.

e Growing our coke business. Currently we are
the second largest producer of coke, a coal
byproduct used to produce steel.

» Expanding our unconventional gas production
trom Antrim shale in Michigan and drilling
test wells in the Barnett shale in Texas.

» Continuing solid performance from fuel
transportation and marketing businesses.

Qur fourth 2004 priority was to maintain cash

and balance sheet strength. We lowered our

s e s, Papliee weste ¢og
Hwrricans fven ¢

leverage to 48 percent and achieved our cash

generation goal through rigorous cost controls.

As a result of our efforts, we entered 2005 in
a much stronger position than one year ago.
We have identified six business priorities as

critical to our success in 2005:

1. Achieve a sustainable Electric Choice program.

2. Develop a long-term regulatory strategy.
3. Continue our growth and value creation,

4. Achieve strong financial and balance
sheet strength.

5. Make substantial progress toward
achieving operational excellence.

6. Build an engaged work force.

Achieving a sustainable Electric Choice program
will be a challenge in 2005, but we have already
made progress. Last month, we complied with
the MPSC order that we file a case to unbundle
rates. Our goal is to restructure rates, establishing
energy delivery and generation charges that
reflect the true cost of serving each customer
class. We also want to eliminate subsidies
among rate classes that artificially skew the

competitive environment.

We recognize that one of the key drivers of
our future success is to ensure the regulatory
process allows timely recovery of our

prudent investments.
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Our second priority, is to develop a multi-year
regulatory strategy that not only addresses
current rate cases, but anticipates future

investments in our system.

Our third priority is to continue growth and value
creation. This involves investing cash in strong
non-utility opportunities, as well as effectively

growing our regulated utilities.

We expect net income from our non-utility
businesses to increase approximately 30 percent
in 2005. We also are developing a plan for
regulated growth. It involves aggressively
pursuing the business we've lost to Electric
Choice over the past few years and looking for

new business opportunities.

We do not, however, intend to grow at the
expense of our balance sheet. We are committed
to maintaining strong financial performance and

balance sheet strength — our fourth priority.

To meet our targets for earnings per share and
cash flow, we must remain vigilant in managing
costs. Our fifth priority ~ progress toward achiev-
ing operational excellence — helps us keep this
focus. As we improve the way we do business,

our financial performance will improve.

The DTE Energy Operating System is helping

streamline processes, eliminate waste and

Sewtinfsld, W

reduce costs. We are developing a culture that
uses this approach on the job every day to boost
performance and productivity. In 2004, we
realized savings of approximately $105 million
through various Operating System improvements.

We've raised the bar even higher for 2005.

VM;@M@@ONme@dﬁof@@%ﬁ?%ﬂ@@
anc balance
@tp@ﬁ@ﬁm@ﬂ@@;

ong financial
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Our largest Operating System initiative is a
massive effort to replace our outdated and
redundant information technology systems.
As we phase in our new computer system and
software, we will improve our procedures for
finance, supply chain, human resources and
operations. When this project is complete,
we expect steady state annual savings of

$75 million to $100 million.

Our final priority is to build an engaged work
force with the commitment and skills needed

to drive DTE Energy’s success. This is a broad
target that starts with an intense focus on safety.
It involves training and developing our employees
to ensure we have the right mix of skills and
expertise for the future. It also involves building

our talent pool of leaders by identifying,

ieh.; System Operatens Cenier, Datron, Mich., T@rmy Fervil
Aftelrs; Miarty Nusbaum, energy ceanter, Jeap e8ssmily plant
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recruiting and developing high potential
candidates, giving them opportunities
to excel, and continuously refining our

succession plans.

1 was very pleased to announce last year
the appointment of Gerry Anderson as
president of DTE Energy. Gerry has
served for the past six years as a group
president overseeing our electric power
plants and non-utility businesses, which
have grown into an industry powerhouse
under his leadership. While he still has
these responsibilities, in his new role he
also provides executive leadership for
overall sirategic planning and other

critical initiatives.

Gerry and I are committed to delivering
the type of value you have come to
expect from DTE Energy. On behalf of
all our employees, thank vou for your

continued support.

real

strategies

President, DTE Energy
Gerry Anderson

our plan for reinvesting cash

We expect our non-utility businesses to generate $2 billion in cash flow over the

next four years. This will provide a unique opportunity to build our company’s
value and shape its future. We intend to invest $350 million of this cash flow as
equity in Detroit Edison to help fund our clean air investments. This leaves

$1.65 billion to redeploy in other ways.

Our primary objectives in redeploying this cash are to:
¢ Shape our balance sheet to meet both our near-term and long-term
credit objectives.

¢ Replace and exceed the value of synfuel cash flow currently inherent in
our stock price.

We expect to achieve these objectives by:
* Reducing parent company debt approximately one-third by 2008.

e [nvesting in new businesses that meet our strict risk-return and
value-creation criteria. We believe we can successfully deploy
$600 million to $900 million of capital into non-utility businesses
from 2005-2008 at attractive returns.

Codiny B2y |

Anthony F. Earley Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

* Repurchasing shares to help build value to the degree that adequate
investment opportunities are not available.

March 1, 2005 It's an incredibly exciting time for DTE Energy. Our challenge is to invest our
cash wisely — with discipline and a keen focus on building value. We're confident

we will do that — and in the process — lay the foundation for a strong future.

Above: Coke battery operation, Gary, Ind.
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aintaining & strong ity base s at the
gt of aur business siretegy: Qur reguleted
Jilites - Detroit Edison and MizhCer -
“orr the care of DTE Energy. Our experiss
comes frem serving Michigan's elgctric
210 natlral gas custemers for maore than
150 years. We never ose sight of their

TMportatce 1@ our SUCEESS.

We were tested in 2004 when regulatory challenges
hampered our growth. But we remained focused
on regaining the health of our utilities, and made
good progress. In 2005, we anticipate that

Detroit Edison and MichCon will continue to
recover their financial strength and position
themselves for future growth. Long term, we
expect to generate 70 percent of DTE Energy

earnings from regulated operations.

To make this happen we must:

» Aggressively pursue the business we've lost
to Michigan’s Electric Choice program and
seek new business.

¢ Continue to reduce costs through
operating efficiencies.

¢ Be proactive in managing the
regulatory process.
op: Devoit Edisen substadon; Merela J acksen, U

Con's Petosky gate statlon; Brien Dentzs, @aviresments

The world of competition has reminded us of
the importance of serving our customers well.
Our goal is to understand and anticipate their needs

and continue to meet and exceed their expectations.

At the same time we grow our customer base,
we must shrink costs. The DTE Energy Operating
System is a powerful tool we're using to do just
that. It's a standardized approach to business,
focused on reducing waste, improving processes

and cutting costs.

Little improvements can make a big difference,
according to Bob Blumer, an electrician who
fixes transformers at the Warren Service Center
electrical shop. “Because of the changes we've
made through the Operating System,” he says,

“I control my own destiny.”

Fixing these transformers used to take more than a
month when they arrived at the 51-acre service
center. Recognizing that was unacceptable, a
team of union and management employees used
Operating System tools to study the repair
process. They discovered each transformer
traveled five miles within the facility during
repair and, once fixed, took an additional

10 days for painting and drying.

2004 annual report




Warren Service Center Pipe Bending Shop
e 3 g Greg tangley |
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Armed with this knowledge, the team created
standard work instructions for repairs, including
the use of quick-drying paint. These changes
eliminated four miles of travel and saved the
company an estimated $500,000 in the
transformer area alone. Best of all, repairs

are now cormpleted in just eight hours.
Combined with other Operating System
initiatives, the Warren Service Center identified

savings exceeding $1.3 million in 2004.

The ultimate goal of the DTE Energy Operating
System is to raise performance to a new level
and foster a culture of change as a way to
improve and learn. Les Click, electrical shop
leader says, “The union saw that the Operating
System was a business opportunity and took
the risk, and you know what? Most people

are happier now because they know what’s

expected; they aren't as stressed out.”

Carrying off a complicated refueling outage
safely was a team effort at our Fermi 2 nuclear
power plant. Thanks to the Operating System,
the plant completed its last outage in 27 days,
beating its previous record by an impressive
six days. “Clearly, using tools of the Operating
System helped us complete the outage safely,
cost effectively and in record time,” says Bill
O'Connor, vice president of nuclear generation.
In 2004, Fermi 2 was awarded the state’s highest
safety recognition, the Michigan Voluntary

Protection Program Star Award.
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Employees at the Broadway Station, a MichCon
facility, used the Operating System to substantially
increase their productivity. With the lowest field
service productivity of all our Detroit area service
centers, the Broadway Station assessed, analyzed
and improved the situation by implementing
tools of the Operating System. Going from worst
to first in performance, today the Broadway

Station is number one in productivity.

Cost savings and increased productivity are just
two of the benefits of the Operating System.

1t's also helping us:

* Reduce injuries.

* Reduce absentecism.

¢ Reduce power plant emissions.

¢ Speed up the hiring process.

* Improve customer restoration times.

* Reduce customer complaints.
We're proud of our successes, but recognize there
are still many opportunities to improve. In 2005,
we'll drive the Operating System even deeper

into our organization with a goal to identify

savings of at least $125 million.

While the DTE Energy Operating System is
focused internally, we're focused externally on
improving the regulatory environment for our
utilities. Our goal is to establish a multi-year
regulatory strategy that addresses current
concerns and anticipates future needs based

on the changing marketplace.

In the long term, we’ll continue to build stable
structures in the regulatory arena, and develop
understanding and support for key energy policy
issues before they reach the crisis stage. In the
short term, we’'ll tackle several issues that will
significantly impact the performance of our

utilities, such as:
» Reform of Electric Choice.

* Low income energy assistance.

» Unbundling and restructuring electric rates.

¢ Environmental controls and cost recovery.

In the last few years, rising health care costs,
infrastructure costs, bad debt expense and
margin loss from Electric Choice outstripped
productivity savings at our utilities. But with
the resolution of our electric and natural gas
rate cases, our goal is to move both Detroit
Edison and MichCon to their authorized

11 percent rate of return. We view 2005 as a
year of rebuilding for our utilities, with a return

to traditional performance levels in 20086,
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non-utllity
businesses

investing for growth

Deep in the heart of Texas, acres of
whet is quickly beceming the leading
U.S. unconventional gas field, lay
untapped. The Bearnstt shale besin,
near Fort Worth, helds the petential
for significant prefits. Thet's why we
recently leesed elmest 50,000 acres of
land there with test drlling under way.

It’s just one example of our growth strategy for
non-utility businesses. Our investments follow

two broad approaches:

» Niche businesses with limited competition
and strong returns, such as Barnett shale,
synfuel production, industrial coke and
waste coal recovery.

* Lower risk businesses where we can

add value, such as on-site energy projects

that leverage our operations and

management experience.
We focus on value. Not size and scope. By
remaining true to this philosophy, our non-utility
businesses grew substantially for the eighth
consecutive year. And we expect net income
from these businesses to increase approximately

30 percent in 2005.

Our strategy is to grow in areas closely linked

to our utilities, both in the type of business and in
the skills they require. Qur entry info the Barnett
shale, for example, builds on our many years of
experience with Antrim shale production. DTE
Energy is the second largest operator of Antrim gas
wells in Michigan, managing approximately

1,400 Antrim shale wells that produce 22 Bef a year.
Our strong technical and operating expertise
allows us to keep expenses down and remain

one of the lowest cost operators in the state.

When we evaluate potential investments, we look
for a fit in one of three areas:
¢ Power and industrial projects, such as

on-site energy and steel-related projects,
power generation and waste coal recovery,;

» Unconventional gas production, such as
shale and landfill gas production;

¢ Fuel transportation and marketing, such as
coal services, gas pipelines and storage, and
energy marketing and trading.
We have an impressive track record in these
areas, particularly with on-site energy services.
We operate 19 major sites for heavy energy users
in the automotive, steel, pulp and paper, and
commercial and institutional sectors. This

includes nine sites added to our portfolio in 2004.

B rom top: Reil meintenance and repair feelity, Hestings, N.C.; Merk Oliger, blomass site, Witehita, Kan.;
symiuel fociliyy, Meundsville, W.Ve.; Blen Jamas, en-site energy senises, Spamews Point, M.
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Energy center at Jeep assembly plant, Toledo,

Ohio

One of our newest transactions is a 20-year
contract with DaimlerChrysler to provide
utility service at eight sites in Michigan,
Ohio and Indiana. Also new in 2004 was
our entry into the pulp and paper sector,
with an agreement to provide steam and
electricity for a tissue mill in Mobile, Ala,
In addition, we're now constructing a
facility to supply multiple paper mills

with pulverized solid fuel.

The next few years

present incredible investment
opportunities across our portiolie
of non-utility businesses.

Our steel-related businesses are also
growing. We're the second largest
merchant producer of blast furnace coke,
a coal derivative used to produce steel.

We own 22 percent of independent blast
furnace coke production in North America,
with the potential to increase our share

substantially in the next few years.

Building on our expertise around coal,

we began operating our first waste coal
recovery plant in 2004. Using proprietary
technology, we're turning coal sharry from
waste ponds into a quality of coal almost as

good as that produced from the original




mine. We're refining this process, and believe

there's great potential in this untapped market.

Leveraging our knowledge and experience in
power plant operations, in 2004 we began
providing services to financial institutions that

control distressed power generation assets,

We currently manage and operate two plants,
one in Connecticut and one in California, that
produce 1,800 MW of electricity. We have no
equity in these projects, but earn a fee for the

service we provide.

Our strong reputation in delivering on-site
services, combined with our expertise in coal,
is leading to other opportunities in power
generation. For example, we're developing

a 200-MW coal-fired power plant for an
international mining company with operations
in the western U.S. We will look for similar

ventures with other companies.

Our existing gas pipelines and storage business
also offers growth potential. We own 40 percent
of the Vector pipeline, a 348-mile interstate
pipeline supplying natural gas from Chicago to
Dawn, Ontario. The pipeline, which is operating
at full capacity, runs through the heart of
MichCon's service territory and gas storage

fields. Because demand in the region is very

(Fromn top: Test drilling i
Power Plert, Deywville, Cona.

s the Barmen shele; Metthew Kerzslivs, on-ske energy services, Tonewande, N.Y; Lake Read
; Staphanie Dorem, DTE Energy Services; Marty Comphbell, Peplee wasie ceel recevery. . -

healthy, the expansion of Vector is likely, as is

the expansion of our Michigan storage fields.

We also own 10.5 percent of the proposed
Millennium pipeline that will run from western
New York to New York City. We view Millennium
as a potential vehicle to move gas out of storage
in Michigan and into markets in New York City
and throughout the Northeast.

As we grow, we will continue
to follow eur disciplined risk
management strategy.

The next few years present incredible
investment opportunities across our portfolio

of non-utility businesses, thanks to the excess
cash we expect from our synfuel businesses.
(You read about this in the Chairman’s letter.)
As we grow, we plan to continue following our
disciplined risk management strategy. We do
not intend to grow at the expense of our balance
sheet. We do plan to seek quality investments [P VRR_%
with returns that exceed our cost of capital.
And we plan to focus on opportunities closely

linked to our core businesses.

Over the past eight years, we have built an
excellent track record of successful investments.

We are determined to sustain it.
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From left, Howard Sims, Eugene Miller, Allan Gilmour, Frank Hennessey,-Lillian Bauder and Charles Pryor.
cated from the left, Gail McGovern, Alfred Glancy, John Lobbia, Josue Robles and Tony Earley. -

; o that, she was president of Fidelity Personal
rom-19981t0-2002. She was elected to the DTE Energ

- mam, president and chief

ficer of GO ica tnc.and Comerica Bank. He retired in

=d the DTE Energy Board in 1989. (C,E,F0)

e chairman of Ford Vlotor S j - 00, as | e presidentand chie

of Ford Motor Company from L e ~Since 2003 Prior to that, he was the
i ] Group of BNFL,

ompany, from 1997 to 2003.

A

He 1s also the retired chairman and i heexecutive vice pre_5|en .
¢., serving In that posibion cerand reasurer of the United ervices
nerqgy Board in 2001. (KP 994 Prior to that, he spent 28 years in

's budget director

=71, isthe ct r ef executive officer of
roup Inc. He had served on the board of MCN
5 and joined the DTE Energy Board in 2001. {C,N)

Committee membership: A-Audit, C-Corporate Governance, E-Executive (disbanded in November 2004), F-Finance, N-Nuclear Review, 0-Organization
and Compensation, P-Public Responsibility, S-Special Committee on Compensation (disbanded in April 2004)
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executive committes®

Anthony F. Earley Jr., 55, is chairman, chief executive officer and
chief operating officer (CO0) of DTE Energy. He joined the company in 1994

as president and COO and that same year was elected a director. He was =
elected to his current position in 1398. Before joining DTE Energy, Earley DTE Eﬂ@ﬁ’@y
served as president and COO of Long Island Lighting Company where he ]

had worked since 1985. H@@d@[ﬁ@hﬂ[@

Gerard M. Anderson, 46, is president of DTE Energy and group president
of DTE Energy Resources. He was named to his present position in 2004 after
serving four years as president of Energy Resources. Previously he was
executive vice president of DTE Energy. Anderson joined the company in
1993 from McKinsey & Co., where he was a consultant in energy and finance.

David E. Meador, 47, is executive vice president and chief financial officer
{CFO). He joined DTE Energy in 1997 as vice president and controller and was
elected senior vice president and CFO in 2001. In 2004 he was elected to his
current position. In addition to controlier, Meador served as senior vice
president and treasurer. Prior to joining DTE Energy, he served in a variety of
financial and accounting positions at Chrysler Corp. for 14 years, and was an
auditor with Coopers & Lybrand.

Susan M. Beale, 56, is vice president and
corporate secretary. She joined the company, as
an attorney, in 1982. Beale was named corporate
secretary in 1989 and was elected vice president
in 1995. She came to DTE Energy after four years
with the legal staff of Southern California Edison
and two years with Consumers Power.

Robert J. Buckler, 55, is group president of

DTE Energy Distribution. He joined the company
in 1974 and was named to his current post in 1998.
He has held numerous positions throughout the
organization including power plant engineeting,
construction and operation, fuel supply management,
transmission and distribution operation,

customer service, marketing and strategic planning.

Stephen E. Ewing, 60, is group president of
DTE Energy Gas. He joined the company

in 2001 from MCN Energy, where he served as
its president and chief operating officer, and
president and chief executive officer of its
primary subsidiary, MichCon. Ewing joined
MichCon in 1971, holding executive positions

in corporate planning, personnel, administration
and customer service.

Ron A. May, 53, is senior vice president of DTE2,
He joined the company in 1984 as director of
planning and control of nuclear administration.
He held a series of increasingly responsible
positions, including manager of service center
operations; assistant vice president, energy
delivery; and vice president energy distribution.
He was named to his current position in 2003.

Bruce Peterson, 48, is senior vice president and
general counsel. Prior to joining DTE Energy in
2003, he was a partner in the Washington, D.C.
office of Hunton & Williams, a national law firm
specializing in energy industry matters. He spent
14 years with the firm, focusing on energy and
infrastructure project finance transactions,
acquisitions and divestitures, and related contract
structuring and regulatory matters.

S. Martin Taylor, 64, is executive vice president
of Human Resources and Corporate Affairs. He
joined the company in 1989 as vice president of
corporate and public affairs after serving as presi-
dent of New Detroit Inc., the first and largest urban
coalition in the country. Earlier in his career, he
worked as a corporate attorney in Chicago, and
then served on the cabinets of two former
Michigan governors.

* For more information on other DTE Energy officers, go to dteenergy.com/investors.
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one Strategy, many OptioNs

chief fina w@%ﬂ
(_\?

officer’s lette

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
Dave Meador

[ believe we have turned the corner. With our electric and natural
gas rate cases behind us, we expect the financial health of our two
utilities to improve considerably in 2005. We anticipate cash flows
will improve dramatically, providing significant financial flexibility.
And we plan to continue to grow our non-utility businesses.

You've already read about our opportunity to reinvest approximately
$1.65 billion in cash, expected primarily from synfuel over the next
four years. Included in the total is an additional $400 million from
growth of our other non-utility businesses.

As we evaluate our options for redeploying this cash, we will seek
investments that create value and are consistent with our strategy.
At the same time, we will remain disciplined. We plan to build

on our company’s unique strengths and pursue closely related

business lines.

Our plans include investing where the competition is manageable,
while focusing on cash flow first, scale second. The objective is
to test business proposals with limited capital before making
significant investments. And if we can’t find opportunities that
meet our stringent criteria, we intend to return the cash to our

shareholders through stock repurchases.

We are proud of our track record of delivering shareholder value.
The long-term success of our company can be attributed to a solid

strategy from which we do not waver.

R

Likewise, our financial objectives have remained constant:
* Focus on value creation (achieve returns that exceed our
cost of capital).

¢ Maintain a strong balance sheet and solid investment
grade rating.

¢ Gienerate future earnings growth.

e Maintain our dividend at $2.06 per share while our utilities
improve their health.

¢ Continue to communicate openly and transparently about
our performance.

Remaining true to these objectives has helped us yield strong
performance for our shareholders over the last five and
10 years. The exception was 2004, when uncertainty surrounding
Detroit Edison’s electric rate case slowed our momentum.
Despite this challenge, we maintained the growth of our
non-utility businesses as we focused on rebuilding our utilities.

I am deeply committed to achieving our financial objectives.

I do not intend to let you down.

QWQZM

David E. Meador
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Above: DIE Energy Hesdguarters, Detran Mich,
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management's

discusslion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operations

OVERVIEW

DTE Energy is a diversified energy company with approximately
$7 billion in revenues in 2004 and approximately $21 billion in
assets at December 31, 2004, We are the parent company of
Detroit Edison and MichCon, regulated electric and gas utilities
engaged primarily in the business of providing electricity

and natural gas sales and distribution services throughout
southeastern Michigan. Additionally, we have numerous
non-utility subsidiaries involved in energy-related businesses
predominantly in the Midwest and eastern U.S.

A significant portion of our earnings is derived from our utility
operations, synthetic fuel business, and energy marketing and
trading operations. Earnings in 2004 were $431 million, or

$2.49 per diluted share, down from 2003 earnings of $521 million,
or $3.09 per diluted share. As discussed in the “RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS” section that follows, the comparability of earnings
was impacted by discontinued businesses and the adoption of
new accounting rules. Excluding discontinued operations and the
cumulative effect of accounting changes, earnings from continuing
operations in 2004 were $443 million, or $2.55 per diluted share,
compared to earnings of $480 million, or $2.85 per diluted share
for the same 2003 period. Income reflects reduced contributions
from our utility operations, partially offset by increased contribu-
tions from our non-utility businesses and Corporate & Other.
Significant items that influenced our 2004 financial performance
and/or may affect future results are:

¢ Electric Customer Choice penetration;

¢ Electric and gas rate orders;

¢ Higher operating costs;

* Weather;

¢ Synfuel-related earnings and the risk of higher oil prices; and
¢ Growth of non-utility businesses.

Electric Customer Choice Program — Since 2002, Michigan
residents and businesses have had the option of participating

in the electric Customer Choice program. This program is
designed to give all customers added choices and the opportunity
to benefit from lower power costs resulting from competition.
However, Detroit Edison’s rates are regulated by the Michigan
Public Service Commission (MPSC), while alternative suppliers
can charge market-based rates. This regulation has hindered
Detroit Edison’s ability to retain customers. In addition, the
MPSC has maintained regulated rates for certain groups of
customers that exceed the cost of service to those customers.
This has resulted in high levels of participation in the electric
Customer Choice program by those customers that have the
highest rates relative to their cost of service, primarily commercial
and industrial businesses. As a result, our margins continue to
be affected. To address this issue, we filed a revenue neutral rate

restructuring proposal in February 2005 designed to adjust rates
for each customer class to be reflective of the full costs incurred
to service such customers. Under the proposal, Detroit Edison’s
commercial and industrial rates would be lowered in 2006, but
residential rates would increase over a five-year period beginning
in 2007. The number and mix of

customers participating in the electric
Customer Choice program could be
impacted under the rate restructuring.

Lost margins and electricity volumes
associated with electric Customer
Choice were approximately $237 million
and 9,245 gigawatthours (gWh) in

2004. This compares with lost electric
Customer Choice margins and volumes
of approximately $120 million and

6,193 gWh in 2003. The financial impact
of electric Customer Choice was affected
by the issuance of electric interim and final rate orders

that increased base rates, authorized transition charges and
reaffirmed the resumption of the Power Supply Cost Recovery
(PSCR) mechanism, as subsequently discussed. Partially
offsetting the impact of lost margins on income, we recorded
regulatory assets representing stranded costs that we believe are
recoverable under existing Michigan legislation and MPSC orders.
There are a number of variables and estimates that impact the
level of recoverable stranded costs, including weather, sales mix
and transition charges. As a result, our estimate of stranded costs
could increase or decrease. As subsequently discussed, the MPSC
authorized the recovery of $44 million in stranded costs for the
period of January 2002 through February 2004.

Detroit Edison rate orders, along with the rate restructuring
proposal, address certain issues with the electric Customer Choice
program. However, current regulation continues to hinder our ability
to retain certain customers. Accordingly, we will continue working
with the MPSC and Michigan legislature to address other issues
associated with the electric Customer Choice program.

Electric Rate Orders — In 2000, Public Act (PA) 141 froze
electric rates for all residential, commercial and industrial
customers through 2003. The legislation also prevented rate
increases (or capped rates) for small commercial and industrial
customers through 2004 and for residential customers through
2005. The rate freeze and caps apply to base rates as well as
rates designed to recover fuel and purchased power costs which
has traditionally been a cost pass-through under the Power
Supply Cost Recovery (PSCR) mechanism.

In 2004, the MPSC issued interim and final rate orders that
authorized electric rate increases totaling $374 million, and
eliminated transition credits and implemented transition
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charges for electric Customer Choice customers. The increases were
applicable to all customers not subject to a rate cap. The interim
order affirmed the resumption of the PSCR mechanism for both
capped and uncapped customers, which reduced PSCR revenues

by $115 million in 2004. However, the order allowed Detroit Edison
to increase base rates for customers still subject to a cap in an
equal and offsetting amount to the change in the PSCR factor to
maintain the total capped rate levels in effect for these customers.
The MPSC also authorized the recovery of approximately $385
million in regulatory assets, including stranded costs.

As a result of rate caps, regulatory asset adjustments and other
factors, the rate orders decreased 2004 earnings by $15 million.
The impact of the rate orders is expected to increase earnings
in 2005 and 2006 as rate caps expire.

Effect of Interim and Final Rate Qrders

{in Millions} 2004
Base Rate Increase and Transition Charges $ 154
PSCR Reduction (115)
Regulatory Assets

Stranded costs adjustment (33)

Regulatory asset deferrals — cessation (1) (29)
Pre-Tax Income {Decrease) $ (23)
Net Income {Decrease) $ (15)

(1) We ceased recording regulatory assets for costs that are reflected in rates
pursuant to the MPSC's 2004 rate orders.

See Note 4 for a further discussion of the MPSC'’s interim and
final rate orders.

Gas Interim Rate Order — In September 2003, MichCon filed
an application with the MPSC for an increase in service and
distribution charges (base rates) for its gas sales and trans-
portation customers. The filing requested an overall increase in
base rates of $194 million annually (approximately 7% increase,
inclusive of gas costs), beginning January 1, 2005. In September
2004, MichCon received an interim order in this rate case
authorizing an increase in base rates of $35 million annually,
effective September 22, 2004. The interim rate order increased
earnings by approximately $6 million in 2004. MichCon expects
a final order from the MPSC in the first quarter of 2005.

Operating Costs — During 2004, we experienced increases in
operation and maintenance costs, primarily within cur electric
and gas utilities. The increases were driven by higher costs
associated with pension and postretirement benefits and
uncollectible accounts receivable.

Pension and postretirement benefits expense totaled $212
million in 2004, compared to $172 million in 2003. The increase
is due to financial market performance, lower discount rates and
increased health care trend rates. We have made modifications
to the pension and postretirement benefit plans to mitigate the
earnings impact of higher costs. Additionally, the recoverability
of pension and health care benefits costs were part of our
electric and gas rate filings. The MPSC approved a pension
tracking mechanism in Detroit Edison’s final rate order that
provides for the recovery or refunding of pension costs above

or below the amount reflected in base rates. The MPSC also
required Detroit Edison to propose a similar tracking mechanism
for retiree health care costs. Detroit Edison filed a request with
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the MPSC in February 2005 seeking authority to implement a
tracking mechanism for retiree health care costs.

Both utilities continue to experience high levels of past due receiv-
ables, especially within our Energy Gas operations. The increase

is attributable to economic conditions, high natural gas prices and
the lack of adequate levels of assistance for low-income customers.
As a result of these factors, our allowance for doubtful accounts
expense for the two utilities increased to $105 million in 2004
compared to $76 million for the corresponding 2003 period. We are
taking aggressive actions to reduce the level of past due receivables,
including customer disconnections, contracting with collection
agencies and working with the State of Michigan and others to
increase the share of low-income funding allocated to our customers.

In MichCon's current gas rate filing, we addressed numerous
operating cost issues, including uncollectible accounts receivable
expense. The MPSC Staff supports a provision proposed by MichCon
that would allow MichCon to recover or refund 90% of uncollectible
accounts receivable expense above or below the amount that is
reflected in base rates. We support the MPSC Staff's recommenda-
tion and believe the provision would significantly reduce our risk of
high uncollectible gas accounts receivable.

To partially address this issue of rising costs, we continue to employ
the DTE Energy Operating System, which is the application of tools
and practices to obtain operating efficiencies and enhance operat-
ing performance. We are targeting over $100 million in savings
during 2005 through the application of Operating System principles.

Weather — Earnings in our electric and gas utilities are seasonal
and sensitive to weather. Electric utility earnings are dependent
on hot summer weather, while the gas utility’s results are driven
by cold winter weather. We experienced both milder summer
and winter weather during 2004, which negatively impacted sales
demand. The lower demand reduced current year earnings by
$27 million compared to 2003,

Additionally, we occasionally experience various types of storms
that damage our electric distribution infrastructure resuiting

in power outages. The impact of storms on our current year
earnings was significantly lower than in 2003, which was affected
by several catastrophic wind and ice storms, as well as by the
August 2003 blackout. Restoration and other costs associated
with storm-related power outages lowered 2004 pretax earnings
by $48 million compared to $72 million in 2003.

Synthetic Fuel Operations — We operate nine synthetic

fuel production plants at eight locations. Since 2002, we have
sold majority interests in eight of the nine plants, representing
approximately 92% of our total production capacity. Synfuel
facilities chemically change coal, including waste and marginal
coal, into a synthetic fuel as determined under applicable
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules. Section 29 of the Internal
Revenue Code provides tax credits for the production and sale
of solid synthetic fuel produced from coal. Synfuel-related tax
credits expire in December 2007,

Operating expenses associated with synfuel projects exceed
operating revenues and therefore generate operating losses,
which have been more than offset by the resulting Section 29 tax
credits. In order to recognize Section 29 tax credits, a taxpayer
must have sufficient taxable income in the year the tax credit is
generated. Once earned, the tax credits are utilized subject to




certain limitations but can be carried forward indefinitely.

We have not had sufficient taxable income to fully utilize tax
credits earned in prior periods. As of December 2004, we had
$483 million in tax credit carry-forwards. In order to optimize
income and cash flow from our synfuel operations, we have sold
majority interests in eight of our nine facilities and intend to sell a
majority interest in the remaining plant during 2005, representing
99% of our production capacity. When we sell an inferest in a
synfuel project, we recognize the gain from such sale as the facility
produces and sells synfuel and when there is persuasive evidence
that the sales proceeds have become fixed or determinable and
collectability is reasonably assured. Gain recognition is dependent
on the synfuel production qualifying for Section 29 tax credits and
the value of such credits as subsequently discussed. In substance,
we are receiving synfuel gains and reduced operating losses in
exchange for tax credits associated with the projects sold. Sales of
interests in synfuel projects allow us to accelerate cash flow while
maintaining a stable income base.

The value of a Section 29 tax credit can vary each year and is
adjusted annually by an inflation factor as published by the IRS in
April of the following year. Additionally, the value of the tax credit
in a given year is reduced if the “Reference Price” of oil within the
year exceeds a threshold price and is eliminated entirely if the
Reference Price exceeds a phase-out price. The Reference Price
of a barrel of oil is an estimate of the annual average wellhead
price per barrel for domestic crude oil, which in recent years has
been $3 - $4 lower than the New York Mercantile Exchange
(NYMEX) price for light, sweet crude oil. The actual or estimated
Reference Price and beginning and ending phase-out prices per
barrel of oil for 2003, 2004 and 2005 are as follows:

Reference Beginning Ending
Price Phase-0Qut Price Phase-Qut Price
2003 (actual) $27.56 $50.14 $62.94
2004 {estimated) $37.61 $51.34 $64.45
2005 (estimated) Not Available $52.37 $65.74

Numerous recent events have significantly increased domestic
crude oil prices, including terrorism, storm-related supply disrup-
tions and strong worldwide demand. As of February 1, 2005, the
NYMEX closing price of a barrel of oil to be delivered in March
2005 was $47.12, which is comparable to a $43.47 Reference Price
(assuming that such price was to continue for an entire year).
For 2005 and later years, if the Reference Price falls within or
exceeds the phase-out range, the availability of tax credits in

that year would be reduced or eliminated, respectively.

As previously discussed, until the gain recognition criteria is met,

gains from selling interests in synfuel facilities will be deferred.

It is possible that gains will be deferred in the first, second and/or
third quarters of each year until there is persuasive evidence that
no tax credit phase out will occur for the applicable calendar year.
This could result in shifting earnings from earlier quarters to later
quarters of a calendar year.

As discussed in Notes 12 and 13, we have entered into derivative and
other contracts to economically hedge approximately 65% of our 2005
synfuel cash flow exposure related to the risk of an increase in oil
prices. We are continuing to evaluate the current volatility in oil
prices and alternatives available to mitigate our unhedged exposure
to oil prices as part of our synfuel-related risk management strategy.

Assuming no synfuel tax credit phase out in future years, we
expect cash flow from our synfuel business to total approximately
$1.6 billion between 2005 and 2008. The source of synfuel cash
flow includes cash from operations, asset sales, and the utilization
of Section 29 tax credits carried forward from synfuel production
prior to 2004.

Nom-utility Growth - During 2004, we continued to experience
growth in our non-utility businesses with income reaching

$283 million compared to $256 million in 2003. The improvement
primarily reflects increased contributions in our Energy Marketing
& Trading segment, primarily due to a one-time contract gain.
Additionally, non-utility growth in 2004 is aftributable to increased
earnings from our synfuels, coke batteries and on-site energy
projects. Also affecting the year over year comparison are

asset gains, losses and impairments during 2004 and 2003 as
subsequently discussed.

Outlook — We made significant progress during the past year on
our 2004 corporate priorities, which included:

e Successful rate case outcomes;

o Addressing structural issues with the electric
Customer Choice program;

e Continuing sell-down of synfuel portfolio;
e Continuing non-utility growth momentum; and
e Maintaining cash and balance sheet strength.

Our long-term strategy has not changed and in 2005 we will
focus on maintaining a strong utility base, pursuing a unique
growth strategy focused on value creation in targeted markets,
maintaining a strong balance sheet and paying an attractive
dividend. The impact of the rate orders is expected to increase
utility earnings in 2005 and 2006 as rate caps expire.

Our financial performance will be dependent on successfully
redeploying an expected $1.65 billion of cash flow through 2008,
primarily associated with proceeds from the sale of interests in
synfuel facilities. Our objective for cash redeployment is to
strengthen the balance sheet and coverage ratios, as well as
replace the value of synfuels that is currently inherent in our
share price. We will first use our cash to reduce parent company
debt. Secondly, we will continue to pursue growth investments
that meet our strict risk-return and value creation criteria.
Lastly, share repurchases will be used to build share value

if adequate investment opportunities are not available.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We had earnings of $431 million in 2004, or $2.49 per diluted
share, compared to earnings of $521 million, or $3.09 per diluted
share in 2003 and earnings of $632 million, or $3.83 per diluted
share in 2002. As subsequently discussed, the comparability of
earnings was impacted by our two discontinued businesses,
International Transmission Company and Southern Missouri Gas
Company, and the adoption of two new accounting rules in 2003.
Excluding discontinued operations and the cumulative effect of
accounting changes, our earnings from continuing operations in
2004 were $443 million, or $2.55 per diluted share, compared to
earnings of $480 million, or $2.85 per diluted share in 2003 and
earnings of $586 million, or $3.55 per diluted share in 2002. The
following sections provide a detailed discussion of our segments,
operating performance and future outlook.
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Segment Performance & Outlook — Through 2004, we operated
our businesses through three strategic business units (Energy
Resources, Energy Distribution and Energy Gas). Each business
unit had utility and non-utility operations. The balance of our
business consisted of Corporate & Other. This resulted in the
following reportable segments, In 2005, we expect to realign
our business units as discussed in Note 1.

{in Millions, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
Net Income (Loss)
Energy Resources
Utility - Power Generation $§ 62 35 2B § M
Non-utility
Energy Services 188 199 182
Energy Marketing & Trading 92 45 25
Other 1 (2) 7
Total Non-utility 281 242 214
343 477 455
Energy Distribution
Utility - Power Distribution 838 17 mn
Non-utility {19) (15) (16)
69 2 95
Energy Gas
Utility - Gas Distribution 20 29 66
Non-utility 21 29 26
a1 58 92
Corporate & Other (10} (57) (56)
Income from Continuing Operations
Utility 170 281 418
Non-utility 283 256 224
Corporate & Other {10} (57) {56}
443 480 586
Discontinued Qperations (12 68 46
Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Changes - (27) -
Net Income $ a3 8 521 § 632
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Utility $ 98 3§ 167 § 253
Non-utility 1.63 1.52 1.36
Corporate & Other {.06) (.34} (.34)
Income from Continuing Operations 255 285 3.55
Discontinued Operations (.06) A0 .28
Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Changes - (.16) -
Net Income $ 249 3 3098$ 383
ENERGY RESOURCES

Utility — Power Generation

The power generation plants of Detroit Edison comprise our
regulated power generation business. Detroit Edison’s numerous
fossil plants, its hydroelectric pumped storage plant and its
nuclear plant generate electricity. The generated electricity,
supplemented with purchased power, is sold principally
throughout Michigan and the Midwest to residential,
commercial, industrial and wholesale customers.

Factors impacting income: Power Generation earnings decreased
$173 million in 2004 and $6 million in 2003, compared to the prior
year. As subsequently discussed, these results primarily reflect reduced
gross margins and increased operation and maintenance expenses.
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fin Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Operating Revenues $ 2210 $ 2448 $ 27
Fuel and Purchased Power 868 920 1,048
Gross Margin 1,342 1,528 1,663
Operation and Maintenance 672 628 626
Depreciation and Amortization 272 224 33
Taxes Other Than Income 147 157 156
Operating Income 251 519 550
Other (Income) and Deductions 166 149 189
Income Tax Provision 23 135 120
Net Income $ 62 $ 235§ 22
Operating Income as a

Percent of Operating Revenues 11 % 21 % 20 %

Gross margin declined $186 million during 2004 and $135 million
in 2003. The declines were due primarily to lost margins from retail
customers choosing to purchase power from alternative suppliers
under the electric Customer Choice program as well as reduced
cooling demand resulting from mild summer weather. As a result
of electric Customer Choice penetration, Detroit Edison lost 18%

of retail sales in 2004, compared to 12% of such sales during 2003.
The loss of retail sales under the electric Customer Choice program
also resulted in lower purchase power requirements, as well as
excess power capacity that was sold in the wholesale market.
Under the 2004 interim and final rate orders previously discussed,
revenues from selling excess power reduce the level of recoverable
fuel and purchased power costs and therefore do not impact
margins associated with uncapped customers. The rate orders

also lowered PSCR revenues, which were partially offset by
increased base rate and transition charge revenues.

Weather in 2004 was 3% milder than 2003, resulting in lost margins
of $25 million. Weather in 2003 was also milder than the prior year,
resulting in lost margins of $114 million. The decline in margins
and revenues in 2004 was also due to the allocation of a smaller
portion of Detroit Edison’s billings to Power Generation.

Sales Lost to Electric Choice

in gWh _
9,245 |
6,193
de T e ff‘?";*f'%?"ig" o
2003 2004

Operating revenues and fuel and purchased power costs decreased
in 2004 and 2003 reflecting a $1.27 per megawatt hour (MWh)
(8%) decline in fuel and purchased power costs during 2004 and

a $.64 per MWh (4%) decline during 2003. Fue! and purchased
power costs are a pass-through with the reinstatement of the
PSCR in 2004, and therefore do not affect margins or earnings
associated with uncapped customers. The decrease in fuel and
purchased power costs is attributable to lower priced purchases
and the use of a more favorable power supply mix driven by higher
generation output. The favorable mix is due to lower purchases,
driven by lost sales under the electric Customer Choice program.
The comparison was also affected by higher costs associated with




substitute power purchased to meet customer demand during the
August 2003 blackout. We were required to purchase additional
power during the 36-day period it took for our generation fleet to
return to pre-blackout capacity.

fin Thousands of MWh) 2004 2003 2002
Electric Sales and Use
Retail 40,579 43,672 48,346
Wholesale and Other 8,369 5,600 6,128
48348 49,272 54,474
internal Use and
Line Loss 3574 3,248 3,651
52,522 52,520 58,125
{in Thousands of MWh)
Power Generated
and Purchased
Power Plant Generation
Fossil 30432 7% 38052 72% 39017 67%
Nuclear (Fermi 2) 840 16 8114 16 9301 16
47872 % 45166 83 48318 83
Purchased Power 465 9 63%4 12 9807 17
System Qutput 52522 100% 52520 100% 58125 100%
Average Unit
Cost (3/MWh)
Generation (1) _ % 1298 $ 12.89 $ 1253
Purchased Power (2} $ 37.06 $ 41.73 $ 39.16
Overall Average
Unit Cost 5 5511 $ 16.38 $ 17.02

(1} Represents fuel costs associated with power plants.

{2) Includes amounts associated with hedging activities.

Operation and maintenance expense increased $44 million

in 2004 and $2 million in 2003. The 2004 increase reflects costs
associated with maintaining our generation fleet, including costs
of scheduled and forced plant outages. Additionally, the increase
in 2004 is due to incremental costs associated with the implemen-
tation of our DTE2 project, a Company-wide initiative to improve
existing processes and to implement new core information
systems, including finance, human resources, supply chain and
work management. Operation and maintenance expense in both
years includes higher employee pension and health care benefit
costs due to financial market performance, discount rates and
health care trend rates. Expenses in 2008 were also affected by
$5 million in costs associated with the August 2003 blackout.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $48 million

in 2004 and decreased $107 million in 2003. The variations reflect
the income effect of recording regulatory assets, which lowered
depreciation and amortization expenses. The regulatory asset
deferrals totaled $107 million in 2004 and $153 million in 2003,
representing net stranded costs and other costs we believe are
recoverable under PA 141.

Other income and deductions expense increased $17 million

in 2004 and decreased $40 million in 2003. The 2004 increase is
primarily due to lower income associated with recording a return
on regulatory assets, as well as costs associated with addressing
the structural issues of PA 141. The 2003 decrease is attributable
to lower interest expenses and increased interest income.
Interest expense reflects lower borrowing levels and rates,

e e

and interest income includes the accrual of carrying charges on
environmental-related regulatory assets.

Outlook — Future operating results are expected to vary as

a result of external factors such as regulatory proceedings,
new legislation, changes in market prices of power, coal and
gas, plant performance, changes in economic conditions,
weather and the levels of customer participation in the electric
Customer Choice program.

As previously discussed, we expect cash flows and operating
performance will continue to be at risk due to the electric
Customer Choice program until the issues associated with this
program are addressed. We will accrue as regulatory assets our
unrecovered generation-related fixed costs (stranded costs)

due to electric Customer Choice that we believe are recoverable
under Michigan legislation and MPSC orders. We have addressed
certain issues of the electric Customer Choice program in

our February 2005 rate restructuring proposal. We cannot
predict the outcome of these matters.

In conjunction with the sale of the transmission assets of ITC in
February 2003, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
froze ITC’s transmission rates through December 2004, It is
expected that annual rate adjustments pursuant to a formulistic
pricing mechanism beginning in January 2005 will result in an
estimated increase in Detroit Edison's transmission expense of
$50 million annually, Additionally, in a proceeding before the
FERC, several Midwest utilities seek to recover transmission
revenues lost as a result of a FERC order modifying the pricing

of transmission service in the Midwest. Detroit Edison estimates
that its potential obligation as a result of this proceeding could be
$2.2 million per month from December 2004 through March 2005
and $1 million per month from April 2005 through March 2006,
Detroit Edison is expected to incur an additional $15 million in
2005 for charges related to the implementation of Midwest
Independent Transmission System Operator’s open market. As pre-
viously discussed, Detroit Edison received rate orders in 2004 that
allow for the recovery of increased transmission expenses through
the PSCR mechanism. See Note 4 - Regulatory Matters.

Energy Services

Energy Services is comprised of Coal-Based Fuels, On-Site Energy
Projects and non-utility Power Generation. Coal-Based Fuels
operations include producing synthetic fuel from nine synfuel plants
and producing coke from three coke battery plants. The production
of synthetic fuel from all of our synfuel plants and the production

of coke from one of our coke batteries generate tax credits

under Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code. On-Site Energy
Projects include pulverized coal injection, power generation,

steam production, chilled water production, wastewater treatment
and compressed air supply. Power Generation owns and operates
four gas-fired peaking electric generating plants and manages

and operates two additional gas-fired power plants under

contract. Additionally, Power Generation develops, operates

and acquires coal and gas-fired generation.

Factors impacting income: Energy Services earnings decreased
$11 million in 2004 and increased $17 million in 2003, compared
to the prior year. As subsequently discussed, these results
primarily reflect higher gains recognized from seiling majority
interests in our synfuel plants, varying levels of Section 29 tax
credits, a gain from contract termination, uncollectible accounts
written-off and losses on synfuel hedges.
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{in Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Operating Revenues
Coal-Based Fuels $ 980 § 850 § 559
On-Site Energy Projects 9% 70 63
Power Generation — Non-utility 13 9 23
1,089 929 645
Operation and Maintenance 1,188 1,049 708
Depreciation and Amortization 82 84 81
Taxes other than Income 15 18 15
Gain on Sale of Interests
in Synfuel Projects (219) (83) {40)
Operating Income {Loss) 3 (139) (119)
Other {Income) and Deductions (1 2 4
Minority Interest (212) (91} (37
Income Taxes
Provision {Benefit) 95 (19) (30)
Section 29 Tax Credits (31} (230} (238)
64 (249) {268)
Net Income $ 188 § 199 § 182

Operating revenues increased $160 million in 2004 and $284
million in 2003 reflecting higher synfuel, coal and coke sales,

as well as increased revenues from our on-site energy projects.
The improvement in synfuel revenues results from increased
production due to additicnal sales of project interests in 2004
and 2003, reflecting our strategy to produce synfuel primarily
from plants in which we had sold interests in order to optimize
income and cash flow. As previously discussed, operating expenses
associated with synfuel projects exceed operating revenues and
therefore generate operating losses, which have been more than
offset by the resulting Section 29 tax credits. When we sell an
interest in a synfuel project, we recognize the gain from such
sale as the facility produces and sells synfuel and when there

is persuasive evidence that the sales proceeds to the Company
have become fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably
assured. In substance, we are receiving synfuel gains and reduced
operating losses in exchange for tax credits associated with

the projects sold.

Synfuel earnings
{in Millions)

8197 $198

Gains on Synfuel Sales
D Section 29 Tax Credits

D Operating Losses,
net of Minority Interest

2002 2003

Coal marketing revenues in 2004 have also been affected by our
strategy to produce synfuel primarily from plants in which we had
sold interests. This strategy resulted in the reduction of synfuel
production levels, We were contractually obligated to supply coal
to customers at certain sites that did not produce synfuel as a
result of our current production strategy. To meet our obligations
to provide coal under long-term contracts with customers, we
acquired coal that was resold to customers. The coal was sold

at prices higher than the prices at which synfuel would have
been sold to these customers.

2004
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Revenues from coke sales were higher in 2004, due to higher coke
sales volumes combined with higher market prices, due to limited
supplies of coke in the U.S.

Revenues from on-site energy prajects increased in 2004, reflecting
the completion of new long-term utility services contracts with

a large automotive company and a large manufacturer of paper
products. Revenues in 2004 include a $3 million pre-tax fee
generated in conjunction with the development of a related

energy project, 50% of which was sold to an unaffiliated partner.

Operation and maintenance expense increased $139 million
in 2004 and $341 million in 2003, reflecting costs associated
with synfuel production and coke operations. Partially offsetting
the higher synfuel operating costs in 2004 was the recording of
insurance proceeds associated with an accident at one of our
coke batteries. Operation and maintenance expense in 2003
was affected by a $30 million pre-tax gain from the termination
of a tolling agreement at one of our generation facilities,
substantially offset by the establishment of a $28 million
pre-tax reserve for receivables associated with a large
customer that filed for bankruptcy.

Gains on sale of interests in synfuel projects increased $136
million in 2004 and $43 million in 2003. The improvements are

due to additional sales of majority interests in our synfuel projects.
To hedge our exposure to the risk of an increase in oil prices that
could reduce synfuel sales proceeds, we entered into derivative and
other contracts covering approximately 65% of our 2005 synfuel cash
flow exposure. The derivative contracts are accounted for under the
mark to market method with changes in their fair value recorded as
an adjustment to synfuel gains. We recorded a mark to market loss
during the 2004 fourth quarter, which reduced 2004 synfuel gains by
$12 million pre-tax. See Note 12 for further discussion.

Minority interest increased $121 million in 2004 and $54 million
in 20083, reflecting our partners’ share of operating losses associated
with synfuel operations. The sale of interests in our synfuel
facilities during 2004 and 2003 resulted in allocating a larger
percentage of such losses to our partners.

Income taxes increased $313 million in 2004 and $19 million
in 2003, reflecting higher taxable earnings and a decline in the
level of Section 29 tax credits due to the sale of interests in
synfuel facilities.

Outlook — Energy Services will continue leveraging its extensive
energy-related operating experience and project management
capability to develop and grow the on-site energy business. We
expect solid earnings from our on-site energy business in 2005 as
a result of executing long-term utility services contracts in 2004.

Energy Marketing & Trading

Energy Marketing & Trading consists of the electric and gas
marketing and trading operations of DTE Energy Trading and
CoEnergy. DTE Energy Trading focuses on physical power marketing
and structured transactions, as well as the enhancement of returns
from DTE Energy's power plants. CoEnergy focuses on physical

gas marketing and the optimization of DTE Energy's owned and
contracted natural gas pipelines and gas storage capacity. To this
end, both companies enter into derivative financial instruments

as part of their marketing and hedging strategies, including
forwards, futures, swaps and option contracts. Most of the




derivative financial instruments are accounted for under
the mark to market method, which results in earnings
recognition of unrealized gains and losses from changes in
the fair value of the derivatives.

Factors empacting income: Energy Marketing & Trading's
earnings increased $47 million in 2004, consisting of a $4 million
improvement at DTE Energy Trading and a $43 million improve-
ment at CoEnergy. Earnings increased $20 million in 2003,

of which $18 million was attributable to DTE Energy Trading
and $2 million to CoEnergy.

DTE Energy Trading’s earnings improvement in 2004 and 2003
was primarily due to realized margins associated with short-term
physical trading and origination activities.

{in Millions) 2004 2003 2002
DTE Energy Trading
Margins — Gains {Losses)
Realized (1) $ 83§ 82 3 38
Unrealized (2):
Proprietary Trading (3) {7) {7 -
Structured Contracts (4) 3 (2) 13
Economic Hedges (5) i - -
Total Unrealized Margins {3) {9) 13
Total Margins 80 73 51
Operating and Other Costs 23 28 29
Income Tax Provision 15 13 8
Net Income $ 3% 328 14
CoEnergy
Margins - Gains (Losses) (7}
Realized {1) 3 {428 168 $ 32
Unrealized {2):
Proprietary Trading (3) - 4 9
Structured Contracts (4) {1) {1 22
Economic Hedges (5) 68 (138} (93)
Gas in Inventory (6) - - 74
Total Unrealized Margins 67 {135) 12
Total Margins i} 33 4
Gain from Contract
Modification/Termination {74} - -
Operating and Other Costs 12 13 27
Income Tax Pravision A 7 6
Net Income $ 5% $ 13§ "
Total Energy Marketing
& Trading Net Income $§ 928 6§ 25

(1) Realized margins include the settlement of all derivative and non-derivative
contracts, as well as the amortization of deferred assets and liabilities.

(2} Unrealized margins include mark-to-market gains and losses on derivative
contracts, net of gains and losses reclassified to realized. See "Fair Value of
Contracts” section that fofllows.

(3) "Proprietary Trading” represents the net unrealized effect of actively traded
positions entered into to take advantage of market price movements.

{4} “Structured Contracts” represent the net unrealized effect of derivative
transactions entered into with the intent to capture profits by originating
substantially hedged positions with wholesale energy marketers, utilities,
retail aggregators and alternative energy suppliers.

(5) “Economic Hedges” represent the net unrealized effect of derivative activity
associated with assets owned or contracted for by DTE Energy, including
forward sales of gas production and trades associated with transportation

and storage capacity.

(6) Gas in inventory margins represent gains associated with fair value
accounting in 2002. CoEnergy changed its method of accounting for inventory
in January 2003 (Note 2).

(7) Excludes the impact on margins from the modification of a transportation
agreement with an interstate pipeline company.

CoEnergy's earnings in 2004 and 2003 were affected by varying
gains and losses on economic hedge contracts related to storage
assets. As subsequently discussed in the “Outlook” section, the
unrealized gains and losses of economic hedge contracts are
required to be recognized under mark-to-market accounting,
while the offsetting unrealized losses and gains on the underlying
asset positions are not recognized.

CoEnergy’s earnings in 2004 reflect a $74 million one-time
pre-tax gain from modifying a future purchase commitment under
a transportation agreement and terminating a related long-term
gas exchange (storage) agreement with an interstate pipeline
company. Under the gas exchange agreement, we received gas
from the customer during the summer injection period and
redelivered the gas during the winter heating season.

The realized and unrealized margins comparison for both

DTE Energy Trading and CoEnergy was affected by our decision

in late 2003 to monetize certain in-the-money derivative contracts
while simultaneously entering into replacement at-the-market
contracts. The monetizations were completed in conjunction
with implementing a series of initiatives to improve cash flow and
fully utilize Section 29 tax credits. Although the monetizations
did not impact earnings, they had the effect of decreasing realized
margins and increasing unrealized margins on economic hedges
in 2004, and having the opposite effect on margins in 2003.

QOutlook — Energy Marketing & Trading will seek to manage its
business in a manner consistent with, and complementary to,

the growth of our other business segments. Gas storage and
transportation capacity enhances our ability to provide reliable
and custom-tailored bundled services to large-volume end users
and utilities. This capacity, coupled with the synergies from

DTE Energy’s other businesses, positions the segment to add value.

Significant portions of the Energy Marketing & Trading portfolio
are economically hedged. The portfolio includes financial instru-
ments and gas inventory, as well as owned and contracted natural
gas pipelines and storage assets. The financial instruments are
deemed derivatives, whereas the gas inventory, pipelines and stor-
age assets are not considered derivatives for accounting purposes.
As a result, Energy Marketing & Trading will experience earnings
volatility as derivatives are marked to market without revaluing
the underlying non-derivative contracts and assets. The majority of
such earnings volatility is associated with the natural gas storage
cycle, which runs annually from April of one year to March of the
next year. Our strategy is to economically hedge the price risk of
all gas purchases for storage with sales in the over-the-counter
(forwards) and futures markets. Current accounting rules require
the marking to market of forward sales and futures, but do not
allow for the marking to market of the related gas inventory. This
results in gains and losses that are recognized in different interim
and annual accounting periods. We anticipate the financial impact
of this timing difference will reverse by the end of each storage
cycle. See “Fair Value of Contracts” section that follows.

Non-utility — Other

Our other non-utility businesses include our Coal Services and
Biomass units. Coal Services provides fuel, transportation and

rail equipment management services. We specialize in minimizing
fuel costs and maximizing reliability of supply for energy-intensive
customers. Additionally, we participate in coal trading and
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coal-to-power tolling transactions, as well as the purchase and
sale of emissions credits. Coal Services has formed a subsidiary,
DTE PepTec Inc., which uses proprietary technology to produce
high quality coal preducts from fine coal slurries typically discarded
from coal mining operations. Biomass develops, owns and

operates landfill recovery systems in the U.S. Gas produced from
many of these landfill sites qualifies for Section 29 tax credits.

Factors impacting income: Barnings increased $3 million in
2004 and declined $9 million in 2003. The 2004 increase reflects
higher sales from coal and emissions credits, partially offset

by increased costs associated with our waste coal operations.
The 2003 decline reflects reduced marketing and tolling income
as well as an increase in operating costs associated with ramping
up the DTE PepTec business. Our first waste coal facility in Chio
became operational in late 2003.

{Dollars in Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Coal Services

Tons of coa! shipped (in millions) 399 320 285
Biomass

Gas Produced {in Bcf) 232 26.8 215

Tax Credits Generated (1) $ 118 105 § 129

{1) DTE Energy’s portion of total tax credits generated.

Outlook — We expect to continue to grow our Coal Services and
Biomass units. We believe a substantial market could exist for
the use of DTE PepTec Inc. technology and we continue to modify and
prove out this technology. Coal Services and Biomass have formed a
new subsidiary to enter the coal mine methane business. We purchased
coal mine methane assets in Illinois at the end of 2004, and expect to
reconfigure equipment and restart operations by mid-2005.

The Section 29 tax credits generated by Biomass are subject to the
same phase out risk if domestic crude oil prices reach certain levels,
as detailed in the synthetic fuel operations discussion. See Note 13.

ENERGY DISTRIBUTION
Utility - Power Distribution

Power Distribution operations include the electric distribution
services of Detroit Edison. Power Distribution distributes electric-
ity generated and purchased by Energy Resources and alternative
energy suppliers to Detroit Edison’s 2.1 million customers.

Factors impacting income: Power Distribution earnings increased
$71 million during 2004 and decreased $94 million in 2003, compared
to the prior year. As subsequently discussed, these results primarily
reflect varying operating revenues and operation and maintenance
expenses, as well as a non-recurring loss recorded in 2003.

{in Mitlions} 2004 2003 2002
Operating Revenues $ 1358 § 1,247 § 1343
Fuel and Purchased Power 17 19 26
Operation and Maintenance 723 724 649
Depreciation and Amortization Py 249 246
Taxes Other Than Income 101 100 117
Operating Income 266 155 305
Other (Income) and Deductions 137 128 136
Income Tax Provision 41 10 58
Net Income $ 8 § 178 1M1
Operating Income as a

Percent of Operating Revenues 20 % 12% 2%
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{in Thousands of MWh) 2004 2003 2002
Electric Deliveries
Residential 15,081 15074 15958
Commercial 13,425 15942 18,395
Industrial 11,472 12,254 13,590
Wholesale 2197 2,241 2,249
Other 401 402 403
42,576 45913 50,595
Electric Choice 9,245 6,193 2,967

Electric Choice — Self Generations* h95 1,088 543

Total Electric Deliveries 52,416 53194 54105

* Represents deliveries for self generators who have purchased power from
alternative energy suppliers to supplement their power requirements.

Operating revenues increased $111 million in 2004, primarily
due to an increase in base rates resulting from the interim and
final rate orders. The 2004 improvement is also attributable to
residential sales growth and the allocation of a higher portion of
Detroit Edison’s billings to Power Distribution, partially offset by
the effects of milder weather. Operating revenues decreased
$96 million in 2003, reflecting mild summer weather and the
impact of slower economic conditions.

Operation and maintenance expense decreased $1 million in

2004 and increased $75 million in 2003. The operation and
maintenance expense comparability was affected by 2003
restoration costs associated with three catastrophic storms and

the August 2003 blackout. Both years were also affected by

an increase in reserves for uncollectible accounts receivable,
reflecting high past due amounts attributable to economic
conditions, and an increase in employee benefit costs. Additionally,
the comparisons were affected by incremental costs associated
with our DTE2 project implementation, a $22 million pre-tax loss

in 2003 from the sale of our steam heating business, and the accrual
of refunds in 2004 and 2003 associated with transmission services.

Storm Restoration Costs
{in Millions)

$49 $48
Fa o @ e et b o e e iy
2002 2003 200

Outlook — Operating results are expected to vary as a result of
external factors such as weather, changes in economic conditions
and the severity and frequency of storms.

We experienced numerous catastrophic storms over the past few
years. The effect of the storms on annual earnings was partially
offset by storm insurance. We have been unable to obtain storm
insurance at economical rates and as a result, we do not anticipate
having insurance coverage at levels that would significantly offset
unplanned expenses from ice storms, tornadoes, or high winds
that damage our distribution infrastructure.

Non-Utility

Non-utility Energy Distribution operations consist of DTE Energy
Technologies, which assembles, markets, distributes and services
distributed generation products, provides application engineering,
and monitors and manages on-site generation system operations.




Factors impacting income: Non-utility results declined

$4 million in 2004 and improved $1 million in 2003. The 2004
decrease includes an impairment charge for an “other than
temporary” decline in the fair value of an investment in a joint
venture that supplied certain distributed generation equipment
and materials to DTE Energy Technologies.

Outlook — DTE Energy Technologies will focus on sales of
proprietary pre-engineered and packaged continuous generation
products in key applications. This will likely result in near-term
revenue decline, but we anticipate gross profit margins will
improve. Combined with continuing cost reductions and
resumption of sales growth, we believe these actions will lead

to improved financial performance in 2005.

ENERGY GAS
Utility — Gas Distribution

Gas Distribution operations include gas distribution services
primarily provided by MichCon, our gas utility that purchases,
stores, distributes and sells natural gas to 1.2 million residential,
commercial and industrial customers located throughout Michigan.

Factors impacting income: Gas Distribution’s earnings declined
$9 million in 2004 and $37 million in 2003, compared to the prior
year. As subsequently discussed, results primarily reflect varying
gross margins, higher operation and maintenance expenses and
a non-recurring loss recorded in 2003.

{in Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Operating Revenues $ 1682 $§ 1498 $ 1,389
Cost of Gas 1071 909 774
Gross Margins 611 589 595
Operation and Maintenance 400 n 297
Depreciation and Amortization 103 101 104
Taxes Other Than Income 49 52 51
Operating Income 59 65 143
Other {Income} and Deductions 48 36 Y|
Income Tax Provision (Benefit) (9) - 36
Net Income $§ 23 29 $ 66
Operating Income as a

Percent of Operating Revenues 4% 4% 10%

Gross margins increased $22 million in 2004 and decreased

$6 million in 2008, compared to the prior year. The improvement in
2004 reflects the impact of interim rate relief and additional margin
from the acceleration of several midstream services contracts.
Partially offsetting these improvements were lower sales and end
user transportation deliveries due to milder weather. The gross
margin comparison was also affected by a $26.5 million pre-tax
reserve recorded in 2003 for the potential disallowance in gas costs
pursuant to an MPSC order in MichCon’s 2002 gas cost recovery
(GCR) plan case (Note 4). Operating revenues and cost of gas
increased significantly in 2004 and 2003 reflecting higher gas prices,
which are recoverable from customers through the GCR mechanism.

fin Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Gas Markets
Gas sales $ 1435 § 1242 8 1135
End user transportation 119 136 122
1,554 1,378 1,257
Intermediate transportation 56 51 48
Other 72 69 64
$ 71682 $ 1498 § 1,369

{in Bef) 2004 2003 2002

Gas Markets

Gas sales 173 181 174

End user transportation 145 152 m
318 333 345

Intermediate transportation 536 576 492
854 909 837

Operation and maintenance expense increased $29 million

in 2004 and $74 million in 2003, reflecting higher reserves for
uncollectible accounts receivable and pension and health care
costs. The increase in uncollectible accounts expense reflects
high past due amounts attributable to an increase in gas prices,
continued weak economic conditions and a lack of adequate
public assistance for low-income customers.

Uncollectible Accounts Expense
fin Millions)

2003 2004
Other income and deductions expense increased $12 million in

2004 and decreased $5 million in 20083, reflecting a 2003 gain on
sale of interests in a series of real estate partnerships.

Income taxes in 2004 and 2003 were impacted by lower earnings
and favorably affected by an increase in the amortization of tax
benefits previously deferred in accordance with MPSC regulations.

Outlook — Operating results are expected to vary as a result of
external factors such as regulatory proceedings, weather and
changes in economic conditions. Higher gas prices and economic
conditions have resulted in an increase in past due receivables.
We believe our allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
reasonable estimates. However, failure to make continued
progress in collecting past due receivables would unfavorably
affect operating results. Energy assistance programs funded by
the federal government and the State of Michigan remain critical
to MichCon’s ability to control uncollectible accounts receivable
expenses, We are working with the State of Michigan and others
to increase the share of funding allocated to our customers to

be representative of the number of low-income individuals in
our service territory.

As a result of the continued increase in operating costs,
MichCon filed a rate case in September 2003 to increase rates
by $194 million annually to address future operating costs and
other issues. MichCon received an interim order in this rate
case in September 2004 increasing rates by $35 million annually.
The MPSC Staff has recommended a provision that would allow
MichCon to recover or refund 90% of uncollectible accounts
receivable expense above or below the amount that is reflected
in base rates. See Note 4 — Regulatory Matters.
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Non-utility

Non-utility operations include the Gas Production business and the
Gas Storage, Pipelines & Processing business. Our Gas Production
business produces gas from proven reserves in northern Michigan
and sells the gas to the Energy Marketing & Trading segment.

(Gas Storage, Pipelines & Processing has a partnership interest

in an interstate transmission pipeline, seven carbon dioxide
processing facilities and a natural gas storage field, as well as
lease rights to another natural gas storage field. The assets of these
businesses are well integrated with other DTE Energy entities.

Factors impacting income: Earnings decreased $8 million in

2004 and increased $3 million in 2003. The decline in 2004 is due
to gains recorded in 2003 from selling our 16% pipeline interest in
the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System, as well as from
selling certain gas properties. Excluding those gains, income
increased $2 million reflecting the acquisition of an additional

16% ownership in the Vector Pipeline in late 2003, increased sales
of transportation capacity by Vector Pipeline and increased storage
sales throughout 2004.

Outlook — We anticipate further expansion of our storage
facilities and Vector pipeline to take advantage of available
growth opportunities. We are also seeking to secure markets
for our 10.5% interest in the Millennium Pipeline.

We expect to continue developing our gas production properties
in northern Michigan and leverage our experience in this area
by pursuing investment opportunities in unconventional gas
production outside of Michigan. During 2004, we acquired
approximately 50,000 leasehold acres in the southern region

of the Barnett shale in Texas, an area of increasing production.
We began drilling test wells in December 2004 and anticipate
drilling a significant number of additional test wells in the first
half of 2005. Initial results from the test wells are expected in
mid-2005. If the results are successful, we could commit up

to $350 million of capital over the next several years to develop
these properties.

CORPORATE & OTHER

Corporate & Other includes various corporate support functions
such as accounting, legal and information technology. As these
functions essentially support the entire Company, their costs are
fully allocated to the various segments based on services utilized
and therefore the effect of the allocation on each segment can
vary from year to year. Additionally, Corporate & Other holds
certain non-utility debt and investments, including assets held
for sale and in emerging energy technologies.

Factors impacting income: Corporate & Other results improved
$47 million in 2004, compared to a $1 million decline in 2003.

The 2004 improvement was affected by a $14 million net of tax

gain from the sale of 3.5 million shares of Plug Power stock

(Note 1), as well as lower Michigan Single Business Taxes, resulting
from tax saving initiatives. Results for 2003 include a $15 million
cash contribution to the DTE Energy Foundation, funded with
proceeds received from the sale of ITC. Corporate & Other also
benefited from lower financing costs and increased intercompany
interest income in both periods.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Southern Missouri Gas Company (SMGC) - We own SMGC, a
public utility engaged in the distribution, transmission and sale of
natural gas in southern Missouri. In 2004, management approved
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the marketing of SMGC for sale. Under U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, we classified SMGC as a discontinued
operation in 2004 and recognized a net of tax impairment loss

of approximately $7 million, representing the write-down to fair
value of the assets of SMGC, less costs to sell, and the write-off of
allocated goodwill. In November 2004, we entered into a definitive
agreement providing for the sale of SMGC. Following receipt of
regulatory approvals and resolution of other contingencies, it is
anticipated that the transaction will close in 2005,

International Transmission Company — In February 2003,

we sold ITC, our electric transmission business, to affiliates of
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. and Trimaran Capital Partners,
LLC. Accordingly, we classified ITC as a discontinued operation.
The sale generated a preliminary net of tax gain of $63 million

in 2003. The gain was net of transaction costs, the portion of the
gain that was refundable to customers and the write off of approxi-
mately $44 million of allocated goodwill. The gain was lowered

to $58 million in 2004 under the MPSC's November 2004 final

rate order that resulted in a revision of the applicable transaction
costs and customer refund. We had income from discontinued
operations of $5 million in 2003.

See Note 3 for further discussion.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT
OF ACCOUNTING CHANGES

As required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

on January 1, 2003, we adopted new accounting rules for asset
retirement obligations and energy trading activities. The cumula-
tive effect of adopting these new accounting rules reduced 2003
earnings by $27 million. See Note 2 for further discussion.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

DTE Energy and its subsidiaries require cash to operate and cash

is provided by both internally and externally generated sources.

We manage our liquidity and capital resources to maintain financial
flexibility to meet our current and future cash flow needs.

Cash Requirements

We use cash to maintain and expand our electric and gas utilities
and to grow our non-utility businesses, in addition to retiring
and paying interest on long-term debt and paying dividends.

Our strategic direction anticipates base level capital investments
and expenditures for existing businesses in 2005 of up to

$1.1 billion. The capital needs of our utilities will increase

due primarily to environmental related expenditures.

Capital spending for general corporate purposes will increase
in 2005, primarily as a result of DTE2 and environmental
spending. We began implementing the DTE2 project in 2003.
The Company expects the project to incrementally cost
approximately $150 million to $175 million,

The EPA ozone transport regulations and final new air quality
standards relating to ozone and particulate air pollution will
continue to impact us. Detroit Edison estimates that it will spend
approximately $100 million in 2005 and incur up to an additional
$1.3 billion of future capital expenditures over the next five to
eight years to satisfy both existing and proposed new control
requirements. The full recovery of $550 million of environmental
expenditures was authorized in the MPSC’s November 2004

final rate order.




Non-utility capital spending will approximate $100 million to

$300 million annually for the next several years. Capital spending
for growth of existing or new businesses will depend on the
existence of opportunities that meet our strict risk-return

and value creation criteria.

Debt maturing in 2005, excluding securitization debt, totals
approximately $410 million,

We believe that we will have sufficient internal and external
capital resources to fund anticipated capital requirements.

(in Mitlions} 2004 2003 2002
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow From (Used For)
Operating activities:
Netincome $ 4 s 521 § 632
Depreciation, depletion
and amortization 744 691 759
Deferred income taxes 129 (220) (208)
Gain on sale of ITC, synfuel
and other assets, net {236) {228) {40)
Working capital and other {73) 186 (147)
395 950 936
Investing activities:
Plant and equipment
expenditures — utility {815) (679) (794)
Plant and equipment
expenditures — non-utility {89) (72) (190}
Investment in joint ventures (36) (34) (21)
Proceeds from sale of ITC,
synfuels and other assets 325 758 41
Restricted cash and
other investments {66) 37 {151)
(681} 10 (1,15
Financing activities :
Issuance of long-term debt
and common stock 777 571 1,403
Redemption of long-term debt {759) {1,208) (793)
Short-term borrowings, net 33 (44) (267)
Dividends on common
stock and other (363) (358) (359)
(312) {1,039} {16)
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 23 {79) § {135)

Cash from Operating Activities

A majority of the Company’s operating cash flow is provided by our
two utilities, which are significantly influenced by factors such as
weather, electric Customer Choice sales loss, regulatory deferrals,
regulatory outcomes, economic conditions and operating costs.

Our non-utility businesses also provide sources of cash flow to the
enterprise and reflect a range of operating profiles. The profiles
vary from our synthetic fuels business, which we believe will
provide over $1.6 billion in cash through 2008, to new start-ups.
These new start-ups include our unconventional gas and waste
coal recovery businesses, which we are growing and, if successful,
could require significant investments.

Although DTE Energy's overall earnings were $431 million in 2004,

cash from operations totaling $995 million was up $45 million from
the comparable 2003 period. The operating cash flow comparison

reflects an increase of over $300 million in net income, after
adjusting for non-cash items (depreciation, depletion, amortization,
deferred taxes and gains), substantially offset by a $259 million
increase in working capital and other requirements. A portion

of this improvement is attributable to the change in our strategy

to primarily produce synfuel from plants in which we have sold
interests. As previously discussed, synfuel projects generate
operating losses, which have been more than offset by tax credits
that we have been unable to fully utilize, thereby negatively
affecting operating cash flow. Cash for working capital primarily
reflects higher income tax payments of $172 million in 2004,
reflecting a different payment pattern of taxes in 2004 compared

to 2008. The increase in working capital was mitigated by Company
initiatives to improve cash flow, including better inventory
management, cash sales transactions, deferral of retirement

plan contributions and the utilization of letters of credit.

Certain cash initiatives in 2003 lowered cash flow in 2004.

Our net operating cash flow in 2003 was $950 million, reflecting
a $46 million decline from 2002. The decrease was attributable
to lower utility net income, after adjusting for non-cash items.
Partially offsetting the declines were lower working capital and
other requirements reflecting Company initiatives to improve
cash flow and optimize synfuel operations. The improvement
in 2003 working capital was achieved despite a $222 million
contribution to our pension plans.

Outlook — We expect cash flow from operations to increase

over the long-term primarily due to improvements from utility
rate increases and the sales of interests in our synfuel projects.
This will be partially offset by higher cash requirements, primarily
within our gas storage business. We are continuing our efforts

to identify opportunities to improve cash flow through cash
improvement initiatives,

Operating cash flow from our utilities is expected to increase in
2005, but will be affected by the level of sales migration under

the electric Customer Choice program and the ability of the MPSC
within the regulatory processes to put in place a Customer Choice
program that has sound economic fundamentals. In addition, the
Customer Choice program’s impact will also be determined by the
success of the Company in addressing certain structural flaws within
additional regulatory proceedings and the legislative process.

Another factor affecting utility cash flows is the degree and

timing of rate relief within the electric and gas rate cases.

Based on the final and interim orders issued by the MPSC in 2004,
approximately $50 million of additional revenues were realized in
the 2004 calendar year. Due to the structure of the interim and
final rate orders, we will not realize the full benefits of interim and
final rate relief until 2006 when all customer rate caps expire.

Improvements in cash flow from our utilities are also expected
from better management of our working capital requirements,
including the continued focus on reducing past due accounts
receivable. Qur emphasis in these businesses will continue to

be centered around cash generation and conservation.

Cash flows from our synfuel business are expected to total approxi-
mately $1.6 billion between 2005 and 2008. The redeployment of
this cash represents a unique opportunity to increase shareholder
value and strengthen our balance sheet. We expect to use this cash
to reduce debt, to continue to pursue growth investments that meet
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our strict risk-return and value creation criteria and to potentially
repurchase common stock if adequate investrnent opportunities
are not available, Our objectives for cash redeployment are to
strengthen the balance sheet and coverage ratios in order to
improve our current credit ratings and outlook, and to more

than replace the value of synfuels.

Cash flows from our synfuel business are expected to approximate
$400 million in 2005. The source of synfuel cash flow includes cash
from operations (excluding certain working capital changes), asset
sales, and the utilization of Section 29 tax credits carried forward
from synfuel production prior to 2004.

Our other operating non-utility businesses are expected

to contribute approximately $400 million through 2008.
Remaining start-up businesses such as unconventional gas
production, waste coal recovery and distributed generation will
continue to use cash in excess of their cash generation over the
next couple of years while they are being further developed.
Certain of the previously discussed cash initiatives resulted in
accelerating the receipt of cash in 2004, which will have the
impact of lowering cash flow in 2005.

Cash from Investing Activities

Cash inflows associated with investing activities are primarily
generated from the sale of assets. In any given year, we will look
to harvest cash from under performing or non-strategic assets.
Capital spending within the utility business is primarily to main-
tain our generation and distribution infrastructure, comply with
environmental regulations and gas pipeline replacements. Capital
spending within our non-utility businesses is for ongoing mainte-
nance and some expansion. The balance of non-utility spending
is for growth, which we manage very carefully. We look to make
investments that meet strict criteria in terms of strategy, manage-
ment skills, risks and returns. All new investments are analyzed
for their rates of return and cash payback on a risk adjusted basis.
We have been disciplined in how we deploy capital and will not
make investments unless they meet our criteria. For new business
lines, we invest tentatively based on research and analysis. Based
on a limited investment, we evaluate results and either expand or
exit the business based on those results. In any given year, the
amount of growth capital will be determined by the underlying
cash flows of the Company with a clear understanding of any
potential impact on our credit ratings.

Net cash relating to investing activities declined $691 million in
2004 and improved $1.1 billion in 2003, compared to the prior year.
The changes were primarily due to proceeds received in 2003 total-
ing $758 million from the sale of ITC, interests in three synfuel
projects and non-strategic assets. Additionally, the changes are
due to variations in cash contractually designated for debt service.

Longer term, with the expected improvement at our utilities and
continued cash generation from the synfuel business, cash flows
are expected to improve. We will continue to pursue opportunities
to grow our businesses in a disciplined fashion if we can find
opportunities that meet our strategic, financial and risk criteria.

Cash {rom Financing Activities

We rely on both short-term borrowings and longer-term financings
as a source of funding for cur capital requirements not satisfied by
the Company’s operations. Short-term borrowings, which are
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mostly in the form of commercial paper borrowings, provide us
with the liquidity needed on a daily basis. Our commercial paper
program is supported by our unsecured credit facilities.

DTE Energy and its subsidiaries have a total of $1.675 billion in
credit facilities, which provide liquidity to our commercial paper
programs and support the use of letters of credit.

{in Millions) Facility Amount  Maturity Date
Issuing Entity
DTE Energy $ 375.00 5/5/2006
DTE Energy 175.00 10/24/2006
DTE Energy 525.00 10/15/2009
Detroit Edison 68.75 10/24/2006
Detroit Edison 206.25 10/15/2009
MichCon 81.25 10/24/2006
MichCon 24375 10/15/2009
$§ 1675.00

Borrowings under the facilities are available at prevailing
short-term interest rates. The agreements require each of the
Companies to maintain a debt to total capitalization ratio of

no more than .65 to | and an “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization” (EBITDA) to interest ratio of no
less than 2 to 1. DTE Energy has significant room under these
provisions, with coverage totaling 4.3 to 1 and leverage at .489

to 1 at December 31, 2004. The Companies are currently in
compliance with these financial covenants. Should either

Detroit Edison or MichCon have delinquent debt obligations of
at least $25 million to any creditor, such delinquency will be
considered a default under DTE Energy’s credit agreements.
These agreements have standard material adverse change (MAC)
clauses, however, the agreements expiring in October 2009 include
a provision that the MAC clause does not apply when borrowings
are made to repay maturing commercial paper.

Additionally, Detroit Edison has a $200 million short-term
financing agreement secured by customer accounts receivable.
The agreement contains certain covenants related to the
delinquency of accounts receivable. Detroit Edison is currently
in compliance with these covenants.

For additional information see Note 10 - Short-Term Credit
Arrangements and Borrowings.

Our strategy is to have a targeted debt portfolio blend as to
fixed and variable interest rates and maturity, We continually
evaluate our leverage target, which is currently 50% or lower,
to ensure it is consistent with our objective to have a strong
investment grade debt rating. We have completed a number of
refinancings with the effect of extending the average maturity
of our long-term debt and strengthening our balance sheet.
The extension of the average maturity was accomplished at
interest rates that lowered our debt costs.

Net cash used for financing activities improved $727 million in

2004 and declined $1.0 billion in 2003, compared to the prior periods.
The 2004 change was primarily due to higher issuances of new long
and short-term debt and fewer repurchases of long-term debt.

The 2003 change was due to higher redemptions of long-term debt
and lower proceeds from issuances of new debt and common stock.
For additional information on debt issuances and redemptions,

see Note 9 - Long-Term Debt and Preferred Securities.




Amounts available under shelf registrations include $500 million
at DTE Energy and $150 million at Detroit Edison. MichCon does
not have current shelf capacity. In 2005, we plan on filing new
shelf registration statements for MichCon and Detroit Edison.

Common stock issuances or repurchases can also be a source

or use of cash. In January 2005, we announced the DTE Energy
Board has authorized the repurchase of up to $700 million in
common stock through 2008. The authorization provides Company
management with flexibility to pursue share repurchases from
time to time, and will depend on future cash flows and investment
opportunities. In January 2005, we discontinued issuing new

DTE Energy shares for our dividend reinvestment plan, which
generated approximately $50 million annually. We also
contributed $170 million of DTE Energy common stock to

We have issued guarantees for the benefit of various non-utility
subsidiaries. In the event that our credit rating is downgraded to
below investment grade, certain of these guarantees would require
us to post cash or letters of credit valued at approximately $356
million at December 31, 2004. Additionally, our trading business
could be required to restrict operations and our access to the short-
term commercial paper market could be restricted or eliminated.
While we currently do not anticipate such a downgrade, we cannot
predict the outcome of current or future reviews, The following
table shows our credit rating as determined by three nationally
respected credit rating agencies. All ratings are considered
investment grade and affect the value of the related securities.

Credit Rating Agency
our pension plan in the first quarter of 2004. Moody's
Standard Investors Fitch

Contractual @bﬂﬁgaﬂﬁ@ms Entity Description & Poors Service Ratings
The following table details our contractual obligations for debt DTE Energy gz;::;z;g;;nem Bf_ [23' B:_azi BF%B
red_emptlons, leases, purchase obligations and other long-term Detroit Edison Senior Secured Debt BEB: A3 A
obligations as of December 31, 2004: Commercial Paper A2 p-2* R

less Than  1-3 4-5  After MichCon Senior Secured Debt BBB A3 A-
{in Millions) Total {Year VYears VYears 5VYears Commercial Paper A2 P-2 F2

Contractua!l Obligations
Long-Term Debt:
Maortgage bonds,

notes & other $6091 $ 410 $1224 § 759 $ 3698

Securitization bonds 1,496 96 335 212 793

Equity-linked securities 178 5 173 - -

Trust preferred-linked

securities 289 - - - 289

Capital lease obligations 94 " 34 20 29
Interest 6,346 494 1,280 726 3846
Operating leases 623 64 143 75 341

Electric, gas, fuel,

transportation & storage

purchase abligations* 6,130 3,694 1,601 236 599
Other long-term

obligations 357 97 151 37 72

Total Obligations $21604 8§ 4871 § 4941 § 2125 § 9,667

* Excludes amounts associated with full requirements contracts where no
stated minimum purchase volume is required.

Credit Ratings

Credit ratings are intended to provide banks and capital market
participants with a framework for comparing the credit quality
of securities and not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities. Management believes that the current credit ratings
of the Company provide sufficient access to the capital markets.
However, disruptions in the banking and capital markets not
specifically related to DTE Energy may affect the Company’s
ability to access these funding sources or cause an increase in
the return required by investors.

In November 2004, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings
downgraded MichCon. In Becember 2004, Standard & Poor’s
downgraded DTE Energy, Detroit Edison and MichCon. The
ratings reflect weaker credit metrics due to decreased cash

flows mainly stemming from increased operation and maintenance
costs without sufficient regulatory relief. Additional unfavorable
changes in our ratings could restrict our ability to access capital
markets at attractive rates and increase our borrowing costs.

* Currently on negative outlook

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There are estimates used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements that require considerable judgment. Such estimates
relate to regulation, risk management and trading activities,
Section 29 tax credits, goodwill, pension and postretirement costs,
the allowance for doubtful accounts, and legal and tax reserves.

Regulation

A significant portion of our business is subject to regulation.

Detroit Edison and MichCon currently meet the criteria of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Requlation.”
Application of this standard results in differences in the application
of generally accepted accounting principles between regulated and
non-regulated businesses. SFAS No. 71 requires the recording

of regulatory assets and liabilities for certain transactions that
would have been treated as revenue or expense in non-regulated
businesses. Future regulatory changes or changes in the competitive
environment could result in discontinuing the application of SFAS
No. 71 for some or all of our businesses. If we were to discontinue
the application of SFAS No. 71 on all our operations, we estimate
that the extraordinary loss would be as follows:

{in Miflions)

Utility

Detroit Edison* $ (138
MichCon (42)
Total $  {180)

* Excludes securitized regulatory assets

Management believes that currently available facts support the
continued application of SFAS No. 71 and that all regulatory assets
and liabilities are recoverable or refundable in the current rate
environment (Note 4).
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Risk Management and Trading Activities

All derivatives are recorded at fair value and shown as “Assets or
liabilities from risk management and trading activities” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Risk management
activities are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended. Through December 2002, trading activities were
accounted for in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 98-10,
“Accounting for Energy Trading and Risk Management
Activities.” Effective January 2008, trading activities are
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

See Note 2 - New Accounting Pronouncements,

The offsetting entry to “Assets or liabilities from risk management
and trading activities” is to other comprehensive income or earn-
ings depending on the use of the derivative, how it is designated
and if it qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair values of derivative
contracts were adjusted each reporting period for changes using
market sources such as:

¢ published exchange traded market data
 prices from external sources
e price based on valuation models

Market quotes are more readily available for short duration
contracts. Derivative contracts are only marked to market to the
extent that markets are considered highly liquid where objective,
transparent prices can be obtained. Unrealized gains and losses
are fully reserved for transactions that do not meet this criterion.

Section 29 Tax Credits

‘We generate Section 29 tax credits from our synfuel, coke battery
and biomass operations. We recognize earnings as tax credits are
generated at our facilities in one of two ways. First, to the extent
we generate credits to our own account, we recognize earnings
through reduced tax expense. Second, to the extent we have
sold an interest in our synfuel facilities to third parties, we
recognize gains as synfuel is produced and sold, and when there
is persuasive evidence that the sales proceeds have become fixed
or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

All Section 29 tax credits taken after 1997 are subject to audit by
the IRS, however, all of our synthetic fuel facilities have received
favorable private letter rulings from the IRS with respect to their
operations. Audits of four of our synfuel facilities for the years 2001
and 2002 were successfully completed during 2004. One synfuel
facility is currently under audit. If our Section 29 tax credits were
disallowed in whole or in part as a result of an IRS audit, there
could be a significant write-off of previously recorded earnings
from such tax credits.

Tax credits generated by our facilities were $449 million in 2004,

as compared to $387 million in 2003 and $351 million in 2002.

The portion of tax credits generated for our own account were $38
million in 2004, as compared to $241 million in 2003 and $250
million in 2002, with the remaining credits generated allocated

to third party partners. Outside firms assist us in assuring we
operate in accordance with our private letter rulings and within the
parameters of the law, as well as calculating the value of tax credits.

Goodwill

Certain of our business units have goodwill resulting from purchase
business combinations (Notes 2 and 16). In accordance with SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” each of our
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reporting units with goodwill is required to perform impairment
tests annually or whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the value of goodwill may be impaired. In order to perform these
impairment tests, we must determine the reporting unit's fair value
using valuation techniques, which use estimates of discounted
future cash flows to be generated by the reporting unit. These cash
flow valuations involve a number of estimates that require broad
assumptions and significant judgment by management regarding
future performance. To the extent estimated cash flows are revised
downward, the reporting unit may be required to write down all or a
portion of its goodwill, which would adversely impact our earnings.

As of December 31, 2004, our goodwil! totaled $2.1 billion. The
majority of our goodwill is allocated to our utility reporting units,
with approximately $772 million allocated to the utility Energy Gas
reporting unit. The value of the utility reporting units is signifi-
cantly impacted by rate orders and the regulatory environment.
The utility Energy Gas reporting unit is comprised primarily of
MichCon. We have made certain cash flow assumptions for
MichCon that are dependent upon the successful outcome of the
outstanding gas rate case (Note 4). These assumptions may change
when we receive a final rate order, which is expected during the
first quarter of 2005.

Based on our 2004 goodwill impairment test, we determined
that the fair value of our reporting units exceed their carrying
value and no impairment existed. We will continue to monitor
regulatory events, and evaluate their impact on our valuation
assumptions and the carrying value of the related goodwill.
While we believe our assumptions are reasonable, actual results
may differ from our projections.

Pension and Postretirement Costs

Our costs of providing pension and postretirement benefits are
dependent upon a number of factors, including rates of return on
plan assets, the discount rate, the rate of increase in health care
costs and the amount and timing of plan sponsor contributions.

We had pension costs for qualified pension plans of $81 million in
2004, $47 million in 2003, and pension income of $9 million in
2002. Postretirement benefits cost for all plans were $125 million
in 2004, $118 million in 2003, and $70 million in 2002. Pension and
postretirement benefits cost for 2004 is calculated based upon a
number of actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term
rate of return on our plan assets of 9.0%. In developing our expect-
ed long-term rate of return assumption, we evaluated input from our
consultants, including their review of asset class risk and return
expectations as well as inflation assumptions. Projected returns

are based on broad equity and bond markets. Qur expected long-
term rate of return on plan assets is based on an asset allocation
assumption utilizing active investment management of 656% in
equity markets, 28% in fixed income markets, and 7% invested

in other assets. Because of market volatility, we periodically
review our asset allocation and rebalance our portfolio when
considered appropriate. Given market conditions, we believe

9.0% is a reasonable long-term rate of return on our plan assets.
We will continue to evaluate our actuarial assumptions, including
our expected rate of return, at least annually.

We base our determination of the expected return on qualified
plan assets on a market-related valuation of assets, which reduces
year-to-year volatility. This market-related valuation recognizes
changes in fair value in a systematic manner over a three-year




period. Because of this method, the future value of assets will be
impacted as previously deferred gains or losses are recorded. We
have unrecognized net gains due to the recent favorable perform-
ance of the financial markets. As of December 31, 2004, we had
$63 million of cumulative gains that remain to be recognized in
the calculation of the market-related value of assets.

The discount rate that we utilize for determining future pension
and postretirement benefit obligations is based on a review of
bonds that receive one of the two highest ratings given by a recog-
nized rating agency. The discount rate determined on this basis has
decreased from 6.25% at December 31, 2003 to 6.0% at December
31, 2004. Due to recent financial market performance, lower
discount rates and increased health care trend rates, we estimate
that our 2005 pension costs will approximate $96 million compared
to $81 million in 2004 and our 2005 postretirement benefit costs
will approximate $156 million compared to $125 million in 2004.

In the last several years we have made modifications to the pension
and postretirement benefit plans to mitigate the earnings impact
of higher costs. Future actual pension and postretirement benefit
costs will depend on future investment performance, changes in
future discount rates and various other factors related to plan
design. Additionally, future pension costs for Detroit Edison will be
affected by a pension tracking mechanism, which was authorized
by the MPSC in its November 2004 rate order. The tracking mecha-
nism provides for the recovery or refunding of pension costs above
or below the amount reflected in Detroit Edison’s base rates.

Lowering the expected long-term rate of return on our plan
assets by 1.0% would have increased our 2004 qualified pension
costs by approximately $24 million. Lowering the discount

rate and the salary increase assumptions by 1.0% would have
increased our pension costs for 2004 by approximately $8 million.
Lowering the health care cost trend assumptions by 1.0% would
have decreased our postretirement benefit service and interest
costs for 2004 by approximately $17 million,

The market value of our pension and postretirement benefit plan
assets has been affected by the financial markets. The value of our
plan assets increased from $2.4 billion at December 31, 2002 to
$2.9 billion at December 31, 2003. The value at December 31, 2004
increased to $3.3 billion. The investment performance returns and
declining discount rates required us to recognize an additional
minimum pension liability, an intangible asset and an entry to
other comprehensive loss (shareholders’ equity) at December
2002, 2003 and 2004. The additional minimum pension liability
and related accounting entries will be reversed on the balance
sheet in future periods if the fair value of plan assets exceeds the
accumulated pension benefit obligations. The recording of the
minimum pension liability does not affect net income or cash flow.

Pension and postretirement costs and pension cash funding
requirements may increase in future years without substantial
returns in the financial markets. We made a $35 million cash
contribution to the pension plan in 2002, a $222 million cash
contribution in 2003 and a $170 million contribution to our
pension plan in the form of DTE Energy common stock in 2004.
We also contributed $33 million to the postretirement plans in
2002 and contributed $80 million to the postretirement plans in
2004. We did not contribute to the postretirement plans in 2003.
We do not anticipate making a contribution to our qualified

pension plans in 2005. At the discretion of management,
we anticipate making a $0 to $40 million contribution to our
postretirement plans in 2005.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modernization Act was signed into law, This Act provides for

a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans
that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to

the benefit established by law. The effects of the subsidy on the
measurement of net periodic postretirement benefit costs reduced
costs by $16 million in 2004.

See Note 14 — Retirement Benefits and Trusteed Assets for a
further discussion of our pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon
factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers,
historical trends, economic conditions, age of receivables and
other information. Higher customer bills due to increased gas
prices, the lack of adequate levels of assistance for low-income
customers and economic conditions have also contributed to the
increase in past due receivables. As a result of these factors, our
allowance for doubtful accounts increased in 2003 and 2004.

We believe the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
reasonable estimates. However, failure to make continued
progress in collecting our past due receivables would
unfavorably affect operating results and cash flow.

Legal and Tax Reserves

We are involved in legal and tax proceedings, claims and litigation
arising in the ordinary course of business. We regularly assess

our liabilities and contingencies in connection with asserted or
potential matters, and establish reserves when appropriate.

Legal reserves are based upon management’s assessment of
pending and threatened legal proceedings against the Company.
Tax reserves are based upon management's assessment of

potential adjustments to tax positions taken. We regularly review
ongoing tax audits and prior audit experience, in addition to current
tax and accounting authority in assessing potential adjustments.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Protecting the environment, as well as correcting past
environmental damage, continues to be a focus of state and
federal regulators. Legislation and/or rulemaking could further
impact the electric utility industry including Detroit Edison.
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality have aggressive programs
to clean-up contaminated property.

Asir — The EPA ozone transport and acid rain regulations and

final new air quality standards relating to ozone and particulate
air pollution will continue to impact us. Detroit Edison has spent
approximately $580 million through December 2004 and estimates
that it will spend up to $100 million in 2005. Detroit Edison
estimates it will incur from $700 million to $1.3 billion of
additional future capital expenditures over the next five to

eight years to satisfy both existing and proposed new control
requirements. Recovery of costs to be incurred through December
2004 was provided for in our November 2004 electric rate order.
See Note 4 — Regulatory Matters.
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The EPA has initiated enforcement actions against several major
electric utilities citing violations of the Clean Air Act, asserting
that older, coal-fired power plants have been modified in ways that
would require them to comply with the more restrictive “new
source” provisions of the Clean Air Act. Detroit Edison received
and responded to information requests from the EPA on this
subject. The EPA has not initiated proceedings against Detroit
Edison. The United States District Court for the Southern District
of Ohio Eastern Division issued a decision in August 2003 finding
Ohio Edison Company in violation of the new source provisions of
the Clean Air Act. If the Court’s decision is upheld, the electric
utility industry could be required to invest substantial amounts on
pollution control equipment. During the same month, however, a
district court in a different division rendered a conflicting decision
on the matter. On October 27, 2003, the EPA promulgated new
rules, effective December 26, 2003, allowing repair, replacement or
upgrade of production equipment without triggering source
requirement controls if the cost of the parts and repairs do not
exceed 20% of the replacement value of the equipment being
upgraded. Such repairs will be considered routine maintenance,
however any changes in emissions would be subject to existing
pollution permit limits and other state and federal programs for
pollutants. Several states and environmental organizations have
challenged these regulations and, on December 24, 2003, were
granted a stay until the U.S. Court of Appeals D.C. Circuit hears
the arguments on the case. We cannot predict the future impact
of this issue upon Detroit Edison.

Water — In July 2004, the EPA published final regulations
establishing performance standards for reducing fish loss at
existing power plant cooling water intake structures. These
regulations require individual facility studies, and possible intake
modifications that will be determined and implemented over the
next five to seven years. It is estimated that we will incur up to
$50 million in additional capital expenditures for Detroit Edison.

Contaminated Sites — DTE Enterprises Inc. (MichCon and Citizens)
owns, or previously owned, 18 former manufactured gas plant
(MGP) sites. During the mid-1980's, Enterprises conducted
preliminary environmental investigations at former MGP sites,

and some contamination related to the by-products of gas
manufacturing was discovered at each site. Enterprises employed
outside consultants to evaluate remediation alternatives and
associated costs for these sites. As a result of these studies,
Enterprises accrued a liability and a corresponding regulatory

asset of $24 million. At December 31, 2004, the reserve balance

was $24 million of which $4.5 million was classified as current.

Our current estimates indicate that the previously accrued amounts
are adequate to cover the costs of required remedijal actions.

Detroit Edison conducted remedial investigations at
contaminated sites, including two former MGP sites, the area
surrounding an ash landfill and several underground and
aboveground storage tank locations. The findings of these
investigations indicated that the estimated cost to remediate
these sites is approximately $8 million, which is expected to
be incurred over the next several years. As a result of the
investigation, Detroit Edison accrued approximately $8 million
liability during 2004,
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DTE ENERGY OPERATING SYSTEM AND DTE2

During 2002, we adopted the DTE Energy Operating System,
which is the application of tools and operating practices that

have resulted in operating efficiencies, inventory reductions and
improvements in technology systems, among other enhancements.
Operation and maintenance expenses benefited from our
Company-wide initiative to pursue cost efficiencies and enhance
operating performance. We expect continued cost containment
efforts and process improvements.

In 2003, we began the implementation of DTE2, a Company-wide
initiative to improve existing processes and to implement new
core information systems including, finance, human resources,
supply chain and work management. We expect to incrementally
spend approximately $150 million to $175 million over the life of
the project. We expect the benefits to outweigh this investment
primarily from lower costs, faster business cycles, repeatable and
optimized processes, enhanced internal controls, improvements in
inventory management and reductions in system support costs.

We are in process of launching the first phase of our multi-year
DTE2 project. Although our implementation plan includes
detailed testing and contingency arrangements to ensure a smooth
and successtul transition, we can provide no assurance that
complications will not arise that could interrupt our operations.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 2 — New Accounting Pronouncements for discussion of
new pronouncements.

FAIR VALUE OF CONTRACTS

The following disclosures are voluntary and we believe provide
enhanced transparency of the derivative activities and position of
our Energy Trading & Marketing segment and our other businesses.

We use the criteria in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “decounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended and interpreted, to determine if
certain contracts must be accounted for as derivative instruments.
The rules for determining whether a contract meets the criteria
for derivative accounting are numerous and complex. Moreover,
significant judgment is required to determine whether a contract
requires derivative accounting, and similar contracts can some-
times be accounted for differently. If a contract is accounted

for as a derivative instrument, it is recorded in the financial
statements as Assets or Liabilities from Risk Management and
Trading Activity, at the fair value of the contract. The recorded
fair value of the contract is then adjusted quarterly to reflect

any change in the fair value of the contract, a practice known

as mark-to-market (MTM) accounting.

Fair value represents the amount at which willing parties would
transact an arms-length transaction. To determine the fair value
of contracts that are accounted for as derivative instruments, we
use a combination of quoted market prices and mathematical valu-
ation models. Valuation models require various inputs, including
forward prices, volatility, interest rates, and exercise periods.

Contracts we typically classify as derivative instruments are power
and gas forwards, futures, options and swaps, as well as foreign
currency contracts. Items we do not generally account for as




derivatives (and which are therefore excluded from the following o “Economic Hedges” represents derivative activity associated

tables) include gas inventory, gas storage and transportation with assets owned and contracted by DTE Energy, including
arrangements, full-requirements power contracts and gas and oil forward sales of gas production and trades associated with
reserves. As subsequently discussed, we have fully reserved the owned transportation and storage capacity. Changes in the
value of derivative contracts beyond the liquid trading timeframe value of derivatives in this category economically offset changes
and which therefore do not impact income. in the value of underlying non-derivative positions, which do not
The subsequent tables contain the following four categories qualify for fair value accounting. The difference in accounting
represented by their operating characteristics and key risks. treatment of derivatives in this category and the underlying

non-derivative positions can result in significant earnings
volatility as discussed in more detail in the preceding Results
of Operations section.

 “Proprietary Trading” represents derivative activity transacted
with the intent of taking a view, capturing market price
changes, or putting capital at risk. This activity is speculative in
nature as opposed to hedging an existing exposure. © “Gas Production” represents derivative activity associated

with our Michigan gas reserves. A substantial portion of the

price risk associated with these reserves has been mitigated
through 2013, Changes in the value of the hedges are recorded
as Liabilities from Risk Management and Trading with an offset
in other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedges
are deemed effective. The amounts shown in the following
tables exclude the value of the underlying gas reserves and

the changes therein,

* “Structured Contracts” represents derivative activity transacted
with the intent to capture profits by originating substantially
hedged positions with wholesale energy marketers, utilities,
retail aggregators and alternative energy suppliers. Although
transactions are generally executed with a buyer and seller
simultaneously, some positions remain open until a suitable
offsetting transaction can be executed.

roll forward of

mark to market energy contract net assets

The following tables provide details on changes in our MTM net asset or (liability) position during 2004;

= E@@Wam@tﬂm& Trecing
ﬁw/‘ Structured 5@— Non-Traging 8

Trading Contiracts %@@@@@ Totel Totzl
MTM at December 31, 2003 $ 10 $ 17 $ (1N $ (144) $ (8 $ (225)
Reclassed to realized upon settiement (10 {10) 89 69 42 m
Changes in fair value recorded to income 5 12 (20) (3 (12) (15)
Amortization of option premiums (2 - - (2) - {2)
Amounts recorded to unrealized income 7 2 69 64 30 94
Amounts recorded in OCI (Note 1) -~ 4 - 4 {78) {74)
Option premiums paid and other - - 4 4 28 33
MTM at December 31, 2004 $ 3 $ 2 $ (98) $ (712) $ (100) $ (172

The following table provides a current and noncurrent analysis of Assets and Liabilities from Risk Management and Trading Activities as
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2004. Amounts that relate to contracts that become due
within twelve months are classified as current and all remaining amounts are classified as noncurrent.

_~_Energy Merketing & Trading , - Totals
Prow@mmnd Eeonemie , Non-Trading = Assets. . .
“Trading - Hedges Elminetions Totels Activities  (Llebilides)
Current assets $ 48 $ 115 $ 150 $  (33) $ 280 $ 16 $ 29
Noncurrent assets 18 44 82 {19) 125 - 125
Total MTM assets 66 159 232 {52} 405 16 an
Current liabilities (45) (98) (204) 33 (314) (55} {369)
Noncurrent liabilities (18) (38} (126) 19 (163) (61) (224)
Total MTM liabilities (63} (136) (330) 52 (477} (116) {593)
Total MTM net assets (liabilities) $ 3 $ 23 $ (98) $ - $ (72 $ (100) $ (172)
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Maturity of Fair Value of MTM Energy Contract Net Assetls

As previously discussed, we fully reserve all unrealized gains
and losses related to periods beyond the liquid trading timeframe.
Our intent is to recognize MTM activity only when pricing

data is obtained from active quotes and published indexes.
Actively quoted and published indexes include exchange traded
{i.e., NYMEX) and over-the-counter (OTC) positions for which
broker quotes are available. The NYMEX has currently quoted
prices for the next 72 months. Although broker quotes for gas
and power are generally available for 18 and 24 months into the
future, respectively, we fully reserve all unrealized gains and
losses related to periods beyond the liquid trading timeframe
and which therefore do not impact income.

The table below shows the maturity of our MTM positions;

Source of Fair Value 2008  Total
and Fair

fin Millions) 2005 2006 2007 Beyond Value
Proprietary Trading $ 3 $ (2 § 2 $ - 8§ 3
Structured Contracts 17 4 1 1 23
Economic Hedges (55) (27) {16) - (98)
Total Energy Marketing

& Trading (35) (25) (13) 1 (72)
Other Non-Trading

Activities (38) (51) (11) - (100)
Total $§ (73) $(76) $(24 $ 1 $(172)

Cuantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk

Commodity Price Risk

DTE Energy has commodity price risk arising from market
price fluctuations in conjunction with the anticipated purchase
of electricity to meet its obligations during periods of peak
demand. We also are exposed to the risk of market price
fluctuations on gas sale and purchase contracts, gas production
and gas inventories. To limit our exposure to commodity price
fluctuations, we have entered into a series of electricity and gas
futures, forwards, option and swap contracts. Commodity price
risk associated with our electric and gas utilities is limited due
to the PSCR and GCR mechanisms (Note 1).

Our Energy Services and Biomass businesses are also subject
to crude oil price risk. As previously discussed, the Section 29
tax credits generated by DTE Energy's synfuel and biomass
operations are subject to phase out if domestic crude oil prices
reach certain levels.

See Note 12 — Financial and Other Derivative Instruments
for further discussion.
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Credit Risk
Bankruptcies

We purchase and sell electricity, gas, coal, coke and other
energy products from and to numerous companies operating
in the steel, automotive, energy, retail and other industries.

A number of customers have filed for bankruptcy protection
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. We have
negotiated or are currently involved in negotiations with each
of the companies, or their successor companies, that have filed
for bankruptcy protection. We regularly review contingent
matters relating to purchase and sale contracts and record
provisions for amounts considered at risk of probable loss.

We believe our accrued amounts are adequate for probable
losses. The final resolution of these matters is not expected
to have a material effect on our financial statements in the
period they are resolved.

We engage in business with customers that are non-investment
grade. We closely monitor the credit ratings of these customers
and, when deemed necessary, we request collateral or guarantees
from such customers to secure their obligations.

Energy Trading & CoEnergy Portfolio
We utilize both external and internally generated credit
assessments when determining the credit quality of our trading

counterparties. The following table displays the credit quality
of our trading counterparties as of December 31, 2004:

Credit Exposure
before Cash Cash Net Credit
(in Miflions) Collateral Collateral  Exposure
Investment Grade (1)
A- and Greater $ 234 $ (2} $ 232
BBB+ and BBB 191 (18) 173
BBB- 17 - 17
Total Investment Grade 42 (20) 422
Non-investment grade (2} 15 - 15
Internally Rated
- investment grade (3} 78 (1) 71
Internally Rated
— non-investment grade {4) 2 - 2
Total $ 537 § (@) $ 518

{1) This category includes counterpartigs with minimum credit ratings of
Baa3 assigned by Moody's Investors Service {Moody’s} and BBB- assigned
by Standard & Poor’s Rating Group {Standard & Poor’'s}. The five largest
counterparty exposures combined for this category represented 28% of the
total gross credit exposure.

(2) This category includes counterparties with credit ratings that are below
investment grade. The five largest counterparty exposures combined for
this category represented less than 2% of the total gross credit exposure.

(3) This category includes counterparties that have not been rated by Moody's
or Standard & Poor’s, but are considered investment grade based on
DTE Energy’s evaluation of the counterparty’s creditworthiness. The five
largest counterparty exposures combined for this category represented
9% of the total gross credit exposure.

(4) This category includes counterparties that have not been rated by Moody's
or Standard & Poor’s, and are considered non-investment grade based on
DTE Energy's evaluation of the counterparty’s creditworthiness. The five
largest counterparty exposures combined for this category represented
less than 1% of the gross credit exposure.




Interest Rate Risk

DTE Energy is subject to interest rate risk in connection with

the issuance of debt and preferred securities. In order to

marnage interest costs, we use treasury locks and interest rate
swap agreements, Our exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from changes in U.S. Treasury rates, commercial

paper rates and London Inter-Bank Offered Rates (LIBOR).

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has a floating rate debt to
total debt ratio of approximately 11% (excluding securitized debt).

Foreign Currency Risk

DTE Energy has foreign currency exchange risk arising from
market price fluctuations associated with fixed priced contracts.
These contracts are denominated in Canadian dollars and

are primarily for the purchase and sale of power as well as

for long-term transportation capacity. To limit our exposure

to foreign currency fluctuations, we have entered info a series
of currency forward contracts through 2008.

Summary of Sensitivity Analysis

We performed a sensitivity analysis to calculate the fair values of
our commodity contracts, long-term debt instruments and foreign
currency forward contracts. The sensitivity analysis involved
increasing and decreasing forward rates at December 31, 2004 by
a hypothetical 10% and calculating the resulting change in the fair
values of the comumodity, debt and foreign currency agreements.

The results of the sensitivity analysis calculations follow:

Activity Assuminga 10%  Assuminga10%  Changeinthe

(in Millions) increase in rates _ decrease in rates fair value of

Gas Contracts $ (18 $ 18 Commodity contracts
Power Contracts $ 1 $ {2} Commodity contracts
Oii Contracts $ 15 $ {8) Commodity options
Interest Rate Risk $ (31 $ 325 Long-term debt
Foreign Currency Risk $ — $ - Forward contracts

report of Management's responsioility

for financial sta“aments and internal control over

financial regorting
Financial Statements

We have reviewed this annual report to shareholders, and based
on our knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this annual report. Also,

based on our knowledge, the financial statements, and other finan-

cial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of opertions and
cash flows of DTE Energy as of, and for, the periods presented.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

The management of DTE Energy Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. DTE Energy Company's internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the com-
pany’s management and board of directors regarding the prepara-
tion and fair presentation of published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to
be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation and presentation. Projections of
any evaluation of the effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risks that control may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

reports

DTE Energy Company management
assessed the effectiveness
of the company’s internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31,

2004. In making this assessment, it used the

criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment, management
believes that, as of December 31, 2004, DTE Energy Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective based on
those criteria.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting has been
audited by DTE Energy’s independent auditors, as stated in
their report which is included herein.

Coiny 3621y |

Anthony F. Early Jr.
Chairman, Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer

U0 Emean

David E. Meador
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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T@DQWS of ﬁﬂd@@@ﬂd@ﬂt registered public accounting firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of DTE Energy Company:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying
Management’s report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that
DTE Energy Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of

the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria
established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2004 and for
the year then ended; and our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

W_ v 7owche Lo P

Detroit, Michigan
March 15, 2006

Deloitte.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 800, 600 Renaissance Center
Detroit, Michigan 48243-1704

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of DTE Energy Company:

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of
DTE Energy Company and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, cash flows, and changes in shareholders’ equity and
comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of DTE Energy Company and
subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
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ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in connec-
tion with the required adoption of certain new accounting principles, in 2003
the Company changed its method of accounting for asset retirement obliga-
tions, energy trading contracts and gas inventories and in 2002 the Company
changed its method of accounting for goodwill and energy trading contracts.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness

of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2004, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed
an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal

control over financial reporting.
Deloitte.

M—m v Jouche cP
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Detroit, Michigan Suite 900, 600 Renaissance Center
March 15, 2005 Detroit, Michigan 48243-1704




consolidatec sta*ement

of OPErationNs

VYear Ended December 37
Operating Revenues $ 7.114 $ 7,041 $ 6,729
Operating Expenses
Fuel, purchased power and gas 2,007 2,241 2,099
Operation and maintenance 3420 3,109 2,589
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 744 687 737
Taxes other than income 312 334 352
Asset gains and losses, net (215) (77) {42}
6,268 6,294 5,735
Operating Income 846 747 994
Other {Income)} and Deductions
Interest expense 518 546 569
Interest income (55) {37 {29)
Other income (80) (110) (45)
Other expenses 67 82 34
450 481 529
Income Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest 396 266 465
Income Tax Provisicr: (Banefit) (Note 7) 165 {123) (84}
Minority Interest {212) {91 {37)
income from Continuing Czerations a3 480 586
Income (Loss) from Discoriinued Operations, net of tax (Note 3) {12) 68 46
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes, net of tax (Note 2) - (27) -
Net Income _ $ 31 8 521 $ 632
Basic Earnings per Commen Share (Note 8)
Income from continuing operations $ 2.56 $ 287 $ 357
Discontinued operations {.06) 4 28
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - {17) -
Total ) $ 250 $ 3N 3 3.85
Diluted Earnings per Comnmon Share (Note 8)
Income from continuing operations $ 255 $ 2.85 $ 3.55
Discontinued operations (.06) 40 .28
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - (.16) -
Total . $ 249 3 3.09 3 3.83
Average Common Shares
Basic 173 168 164
Diluted 173 168 165
Dividends Declared per Ccmmon Share $ 206 $ 2.06 $ 2.06

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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consolidated statement

of fiNancial position

December 31
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 56 $ 54
Restricted cash (Note 1) 126 131
Accounts receivable
Customer {less allowance for doubtful accaunts of $129 and $99, respectively) 880 877
Accrued unbilled revenues 378 316
Other 383 338
Inventories
Fuel and gas 509 467
Materials and supplies 159 162
Assets from risk management and trading activities 296 186
Other 209 181
2.99% 2,712
Investments
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 590 518
Other 558 601
1,148 1,119
Property
Property, plant and equipment 18,011 17,679
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion (Note 2) (7,520 (7,355}
10,491 10,324
Other Assets
Goodwill {Note 3) 2,067 2,067
Regulatory assets (Note 4} 2119 2,063
Securitized regulatory assets (Note 4) 1,438 1,527
Notes receivable 529 469
Assets from risk management and trading activities 125 88
Prepaid pension assets 184 181
Other 200 203
6,662 6,598
Total Assets 21,297 $ 20,753

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31

LIABILITIES AND SHAREZHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 892 $ 625
Accrued interest m 110
Dividends payable 90 87
Accrued payroll 33 51
Income taxes 16 185
Short-term borrowings 403 370
Current portion long-term debt, including capital leases 514 471
Liabilities from risk management and trading activities 369 326
Other 581 593

3,008 2,824

Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 1,124 988
Regulatory liabifities (Notes 2 and 4) 817 817
Asset retirement obligations (Note 2) 916 866
Unamortized investment tax credit 143 156
Liabilities from risk management and trading activities 224 173
Liabilities from transportation and storage contracts 387 495
Accrued pension liability 265 345
Deferred gains from asset sales 414 3n
Minority interest 132 156
Nuclear decommissioning (Notes 2 and 5) 77 67
Other 635 539

5134 4,973

Long-Term Debt {nst of cL.rrent portion) (Note 9)

Mortgage bonds, notes and ather 5673 5,624
Securitization bonds 1,400 1,496
Equity-linked securities 178 185
Trust preferred-linked securities 289 289
Capital lease obligations 66 75

7,606 7,669

Commitments and Cortingencies (Notes 4, 5 and 13)
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, without par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized,

174,209,034 and 168,606,522 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 333 3,109
Retained earnings 2,383 2,308
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {158) (130)
5,548 5,287

Total Liabilities and Shere~olders’ Eguity $ 212917 8 20,753

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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consolidated statement

of cash Tlow

Vear Ended December 31
\in Rilions) 2004 2002
Operating Activities
Net income $ 431 $ 521 3 632
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 744 691 759
Deferred income taxes 129 (220) (208)
Gain on sale of interests in synfuel projects (219) (83) (40)
Gain on sale of ITC and other assets, net (17) {145) -
Partners’ share of synfue! project losses (223) (78) (40}
Contributions from synfuel partners 141 65 22
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - 27 -
Changes in assets and liabilities, exclusive of changes shown separately {Note 1) 9 172 {129)
Net cash from operating activities 995 950 996
investing Activities
Plant and equipment expenditures — utility (815) (679) (794)
Plant and equipment expenditures — non-utility (89) (72) (190)
Investments in joint ventures {36) (34) {21)
Proceeds from sale of interests in synfuel projects a? 89 32
Proceeds from sale of ITC and other assets 104 669 9
Restricted cash for debt redemptions 5 106 (79}
Other investments n) (69) (72)
Net cash from (used for) investing activities (681) 10 {1,115)
Financing Activities
Issuance of long-term debt 736 521 1,138
Redemption of long-term debt {759) {1,208 {793)
Short-term borrowings, net 33 (44) (267)
Issuance of common stock 4 4 265
Dividends on common stock (354) {346) (338)
Other {9) (12) {21)
Net cash used for financing activities (312) {1,039) {16)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 (79) (135)
Cash and Cash Eguivalents at Beginning of Period 54 133 268
Cash and Cash Eguivalents at End of Period $ 56 $ 54 3 133

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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consclidated statzment

of Changes in shareholders’ equity

and COMPrehensive INCome

[ ~ retained seeumuleied W
\(dollars in Miliors, sharss in Thousendsy) samings comprehensive iotal
Balance, December 31, 2001 $ 1,846 $ (68} $ 4589
Netincome - - 632 - 632
Issuance of new shares 6,426 270 - - 270
Dividends declared on comman stock - - (341) - (341)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (98) (1) 2) - (3)
Pension obligations (Nate 14} - - - {518) (518)
Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives, net of tax - - - (33) (33)
Unearned stock compensation and other - (28) (3} - (31)
Balance, December 31, 2002 167,462 3,052 2132 (619) 4,565
Net income - - 521 - 521
Issuance of new shares 1,225 57 - - 57
Dividends declared on common stock - - {348) - {348)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (80) n - - m
Pension obligations (Note 14} - - - 420 420
Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives, net of tax - - - 17 17
Net change in unrealized gains on investments, net of tax - - - 52 52
Unearned stock compensation and other - 1 3 - 4
Balance, December 31, 2003 168,607 3,109 2,308 {130) 5,287
Net income - - 431 - 431
Issuance of new shares 5,671 223 - - 223
Dividends declared on common stock - - (357) - (357)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (69) (3) - - 3
Pension obfigations (Note 14) - - - 7 7
Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives, net of tax - - - (15) (15)
Net change in unrealized losses on investments, net of tax - - - (20) (20)
Unearned stock compensation and other ~ {6} 1 - (5)
Balance, December 31, 2274 174,209 $ 3323 $ 2383 $ {158) $ 5548
The following table displays comprehensive income {loss):
i Millirorms) 2003 002
Netincome $ 431 $ 521 § 632
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax:
Pension obligations, net of taxes of $(4), ${226) and $280 (Notes 4 and 14) 7 420 {518
Net unrealized losses on derivatives:
Gains or {losses) arising during the period, net of taxes of $26, ${8) and $32 (49} 16 (60)
Amounts reclassified to earnings, net of taxes of $(18), $- and $(15) k) ] 27
(15) 17 {33)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments:
Gains {losses) arising during the period, net of taxes of $3, ${28) and $- {5} 52 _
Amounts reclassified to earnings, net of taxes of $8, $- and $- {15} - _
(20) 52 -
Comprehensive Inccme $ 03 § 1010 § 81

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ﬂ@‘[@S to consolidated
financial statements

NOTE-T SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Corporate Structure

DTE Energy is an exempt holding company under the
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 and owns the
following businesses:

N

¢ The Detroit Edison Company
(Detroit Edison), an electric utility
engaged in the generation, purchase,
distribution and sale of electric
energy to 2.1 million customers in
southeast Michigan;

¢ Michigan Consolidated Gas Company
{MichCon), a natural gas utility
engaged in the purchase, storage,
transmission and distribution and

notes

sale of natural gas to 1.2 million
customers throughout Michigan; and

¢ Other non-utility subsidiaries engaged in energy marketing and
trading, energy services and various other electricity, coal and
gas related businesses.

Detroit Edison and MichCon are regulated by the Michigan
Public Service Commission (MPSC). The Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulates certain activities of
Detroit Edison’s business as well as various other aspects of
businesses under DTE Energy. In addition, we are regulated
by other federal and state regulatory agencies including the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) and the Environmental
Protection Agency, among others.

Segments realigned — Through 2004, we operated our businesses
through three strategic business units (Energy Resources, Energy
Distribufion and Energy Gas). Each business unit had utility and
non-utility operations. The balance of our business consisted of
Corporate & Other. See Note 16 for further discussion. In 2005, we
expect to realign our business units to strengthen the Company's
focus on customer relationships and growth within our non-utility
businesses. Based on this structure, we will set strategic goals,
allocate resources and evaluate performance. Beginning with the
first quarter of 2005, we expect to report our segment information
based on the following realignment:

¢ Electric Utility, consisting of Detroit Edison;
¢ Gas Utility primarily consisting of MichCon;
¢ Non-utility Operations
¢ Power and Industrial Projects, primarily consisting of synfuel
projects, on-site energy services, steel-related projects, power
generation with services, and waste coal recovery operations;
¢ Unconventional Gas Production, primarily consisting of gas
production and coal bed methane operations;
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e Fuel Transportation and Marketing, primarily consisting of
coal transportation and marketing, gas pipelines and storage,
and energy marketing and trading operations; and

e Corporate & Other, primarily consisting of corporate support
functions and certain energy technology investments.

References in this report to “we,” “us,” “our” or “Company” are to
DTE Energy and its subsidiaries, collectively.

Principles cf Consolidation

We consolidate all majority owned subsidiaries and investments
in entities in which we have controlling influence. Non-majority
owned investments are accounted for using the equity method
when the company is able to influence the operating policies of
the investee. Non-majority owned investments include investments
in limited liability companies, partnerships or joint ventures.
When we do not influence the operating policies of an investee,
the cost method is used. We eliminate all intercompany balances
and transactions.

For entities that are considered variable interest entities,

we apply the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Interpretation No. (FIN) 46-R, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.”
For a detailed discussion of FIN 46-R, see Note 2 — New
Accounting Pronouncements.

Bas’s of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared
using accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. These accounting principles require us to use estimates
and assumptions that impact reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

Prior to December 2004, DTE Energy did not eliminate amounts,
principally within Other Income and Other Deductions, resulting
from certain intercompany transactions. The amounts of the
transactions are immaterial and had no effect on net income.
Previously reported prior period amounts have been adjusted to
eliminate those intercompany transactions and are now consistent
with the current year’s presentation. We reciassified certain other
prior year balances to match the current year’s financial state-
ment presentation.

Revenues
Revenues from the sale and delivery of electricity, and the sale,
delivery and storage of natural gas are recognized as services are

provided. Detroit Edison and MichCon record revenues for electric
and gas provided but unbilled at the end of each month,

Detroit Edison’s accrued revenues include a component for the
cost of power sold that is recoverable through the Power Supply
Cost Recovery (PSCR) mechanism. MichCon's accrued revenues
include a component for the cost of gas sold that is recoverable




through the Gas Cost Recovery (GCR) mechanism. Annual

PSCR and GCR proceedings before the MPSC permit Detroit
Edison and MichCon to recover prudent and reasonable supply
costs. Any overcollection or undercollection of costs, including
interest, will be reflected in future rates. Prior to 2004, Detroit
Edison’s retail rates were frozen under Public Act (PA) 141. See
Note 4 for further discussion. Accordingly, Detroit Edison did not
accrue revenues under the PSCR mechanism prior to 2004.

Non-utility businesses recognize revenues as services are provided
and products are delivered. Qur Energy Marketing & Trading seg-
ment records in revenues net unrealized derivative gains and losses
on energy trading contracts, including those to be physically settled.

Gains frem Sale of atorests In

Syathetic Fuel Fael ios

Through December 2004, we have sold majority interests in eight
of our nine synthetic fuel production plants, representing approxi-
mately 2% of our total production capacity. Proceeds from the
sales are contingent upon production levels and the value of
Section 29 tax credits. Section 29 tax credits are subject to phase
out if domestic crude oil prices reach certain levels. See Note 13
for further discussion. We recognize gains from the sale of interests
in the synfuel facilities as synfuel is produced and sold, and when
there is persuasive evidence that the sales proceeds have become
fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

We have recorded gains from the sale of interests in synthetic

fuel facilities totaling $219 million, $83 million and $40 million
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Until the gain recognition criteria are met, gains from selling
interests in synfuel facilities will be deferred. It is possible that
gains will be deferred in the first, second and/or third quarters
of each year until there is persuasive evidence that no tax credit
phase out will occur for the applicable calendar year. This could
result in shifting earnings from earlier quarters to later quarters
of a calendar year.

Comgprehensive Inearms

We comply with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” that
established standards for reporting comprehensive income.

SFAS No. 130 defines comprehensive income as the change in
common shareholders’ equity during a period from transactions
and events from non-owner sources, including net income.

As shown in the following table, amounts recorded to other
comprehensive income (OCI) at December 31, 2004 include:
unrealized gains and losses from derivatives accounted for as
cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities;” unrealized gains and losses
on available for sale securities under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting
Jor Certain Investments in. Debt and Equity Securities;” and,
minimum pension liabilities as prescribed by SFAS No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.”

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in

banks and temporary investments purchased with remaining
maturities of three months or less. Restricted cash consists of
funds held to satisfy requirements of certain debt and partnership
operating agreements. Restricted cash is classified as a current
asset as all restricted cash is designated for interest and principal
payments due within one year.

Inventories
We value fuel inventory and materials and supplies at average cost.

Gas inventory at MichCon is determined using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method. At December 31, 2004, the replacement cost of gas
remaining in storage exceeded the $89 million LIFO cost by $330 mil-
lion. At December 31, 2003, the replacement cost of gas remaining in
storage exceeded the $117 million LIFO cost by $251 million. During
2004, MichCon liquidated 5.7 billion cubic feet of prior years’ LIFO lay-
ers. The liquidation benefited 2004 cost of gas by approximately $7 mil-
lion, but had no impact on earnings as a result of the GCR mechanism.

Our Energy Marketing & Trading segment uses the average cost

method for its gas in inventory.

Property, Retirement and Maintenance, and

Depreciation and Depletion

Summary of property by classification as of December 31:

Rlinin (et Nag Accumulzted
Persie Unrealize?  Unrealized Qthar
LiaZlity L25s3s o Gairs on  Comgrehensive
fin Milions) Adiucmer  Dervalives _Investments Loss
Beginning balance $ (%) $ (85) $§ 5 $  {130)
Current-period
change 7 (15) (20) (28)
Endingbalance _ § (81 _ _$ (100 $§ § (1%

(in Millions) 2004 2003
Property, Plant and Equipment
Electric Utility
Generation $ 7100 $ 6938
Distribution SB35
Total Electric Utility 12,931 12,671
Gas Utility
Distribution 2,020 1,961
Storage 2 224
Other 883 855
Total Gas Utility 3,124 3,040
Energy Services
Coal Based Fuels 651 652
On-Site Energy 193 180
Merchant Generation 174 229
Other 8 13
Total Energy Services 1,026 1,074
Other Non-utility and Other 930 894
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 18011 17,679
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Depletion
Electric Utility
Generation (3277)  (3.231)
Distribution 2,077)  (2,108)
Total Electric Utility 5354)  (5339)
Gas Utility
Distribution (845) (798)
Storage {100) (102)
Other {448) (432)
Total Gas Utility (1393) {1,332
Energy Services
Coal Based Fuels (272) (219)
On-Site Energy (55) (42)
Merchant Generation (18) (20)
Qther (3) (2)
Total Energy Services (348) (283)
Other Non-utility and Other (425) (401)
Total Accumulated Depreciation
and Depletion (7520)  (7,355)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 10491 $ 10324
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Property is stated at cost and includes construction-related
labor, materials, overheads and an “allowance for funds used
during construction” (AFUDC). The cost of properties retired,
less salvage, at Detroit Edison and MichCon are charged to
accumulated depreciation.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
when incurred, except for Fermi 2, Approximately $3.8 million of
expenses related to the anticipated Fermi 2 refueling outage
scheduled for 2006 were accrued at December 31, 2004. Amounts
are being accrued on a pro-rata basis over an 18-month period that
began in November 2004, We have utilized the accrue-in-advance
policy for nuclear refueling outage costs since the Fermi 2 plant
was placed in service in 1988. This method also matches the
regulatory recovery of these costs in rates set by the MPSC.

We base depreciation provisions for utility property at Detroit
Edison and MichCon on straight-line and units of production
rates approved by the MPSC. The composite depreciation
rate for Detroit Edison was 3.4% in 2004, 2003 and 2002,

The composite depreciation rate for MichCon was 3.6%, 3.5%,
and 3.6% in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The average estimated useful life for each class of utility property,
plant and equipment as of December 31, 2004 follows:

Estimated Uselul Lives in Years

Utility Generation  _ Distribution _ Transmission _
Electric 39 37 -
Gas N/A 26 28

Non-utility property is depreciated over its estimated useful life using
straight-line, declining-balance or units-of-production methods.

We credit depreciation, depletion and amortization expense when we
establish regulatory assets for stranded costs related to the electric
Customer Choice program and deferred environmental expenditures.

Gas Production

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting for
investments in gas properties. Under this method of accounting,
all property acquisition costs and costs of exploratory and
development wells are capitalized when incurred, pending
determination of whether the well has found proved reserves.
If an exploratory well has not found proved reserves, the costs
of drilling the well are expensed. The costs of development
wells are capitalized, whether productive or nonproductive,
Geological and geophysical costs on exploratory prospects and
the costs of carrying and retaining unproved properties are
expensed as incurred. An impairment loss is recorded to

the extent that capitalized costs of unproved properties, on a
property-by-property basis, are considered not to be realizable.
An impairment loss is recorded if the net capitalized costs

of proved gas properties exceed the aggregate related
undiscounted future net revenues. Depreciation, depletion
and amortization of proved gas properties are determined
using the units-of-production method.
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Long-Lived Assets

Our long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the expected future cash flows generated by the
asset, an impairment loss is recognized resulting in the asset
being written down to its estimated fair value. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount

or fair value less cost to sell.

[mtangible Assets, Including Software Costs

Our intangible assets consist primarily of software. We capitalize
the costs associated with computer software we develop or
obtain for use in our business. We amortize intangible assets
on a straight-line basis over expected periods of benefit.
Intangible assets amortization expense was $43 million in 2004,
$40 million in 2003 and $46 million in 2002. The gross carrying
amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets

at December 31, 2004 were $445 million and $151 million,
respectively. The gross carrying amount and accumulated
amortization of intangible assets at December 31, 2003 were
$537 million and $303 million, respectively. Amortization
expense of intangible assets is estimated to be $40 million
annually for 2005 through 2009.

Excise and Sales Taxes

We record the billing of excise and sales taxes as receivable with
an offsetting payable to the applicable taxing authority, with no
impact on the consolidated statement of operations.

Deferred Debt Cosls

The costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are deferred
and amortized over the life of each debt issue. In accordance
with MPSC regulations applicable to our electric and gas utilities,
the unamortized discount, premium and expense related to debt
redeemed with a refinancing are amortized over the life of the
replacement issue. Discount, premium and expense on early
redemptions of debt associated with non-utility operations are
charged to earnings.

Instred and Uninsured Risks

We have a comprehensive insurance program in place to provide
coverage for various types of risks. Our insurance policies cover
risk of loss from various events, including property damage,
general liability, workers’ compensation, auto liability and
directors' and officers’ liability.

Under our risk management policy, we self-insure portions of
certain risks up to specified limits, depending on the type of
exposure. We periodically review our insurance coverage. During
2003, we reviewed our process for estimating and recognizing
reserves for self-insured risks. As a result of this review, we
revised the process for estimating liabilities under our self-insured
layers to include an actuarially determined estimate of “incurred
but not reported” (IBNR) claims. We have an actuarially
determined estimate of our IBNR liability prepared annually

and adjust the related reserve as appropriate.




Stock-Based Comrensetion

We have a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is
described in Note 15. The plan permits the awarding of various
stock awards, including options, restricted stock and performance
shares. We account for stock awards under the plan under the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” No compensation cost related to stock options is
reflected in earnings, as all options granted had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant. The recognition provisions under SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” require the recording
of compensation expense for stock options equal to their fair value
at date of grant as determined using an option pricing model. The
following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per
share if we had recorded compensation expense for options granted
under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123.

2074 2003 2002

{in Millions, except per share amourts)

Net Income As Reported $ 41 $ 5218 632
Less: Total Stock-based Expense (1) {6) 7 7
ProForma Netlncome _  _§ 425 § 514 § 625
income Per Share B -

Basic - as reported $§ 2508 311§ 38
Basic — pro forma _ 8 246 8 306 § 38
Dilted—asreported  § 243 $ 309 $ 383
Diluted — pro forma $ 245 § 3058% 379

(1) Expense determined using a Black-Scholes based option pricing model.
Investments in Dbt ars Eguity Securities

We generally classify investments in debt and equity securities
as either trading or available-for-sale and have recorded such
investments at market value with unrealized gains or losses
included in earnings or in other comprehensive income or
loss, respectively, Changes in the fair value of nuclear

decommissioning-related investments are recorded as

adjustments to regulatory assets or liabilities (Note 5).
Investment in Plug Fower

In 1997, we invested in Plug Power Inc., a company that designs
and develops on-site electric fuel cell power generation systems.
Since Plug Power is considered a development stage company,
generally accepted accounting principles required us to record
gains and losses from Plug Power stock issuances as an adjustment
to equity. Prior to November 2003, we accounted for our investment
in Plug Power under the equity method of accounting. We did not
participate in Plug Power’s secondary stock offering in November
2003 and as of December 31, 2003 we owned 14.1 million shares

or approximately 19% of Plug Power’s common stock. We have
determined that we do not have the ability to exercise significant
influence over the operating or financial policies of Plug Power.
Accordingly, we began prospective application of the cost method
of accounting for our investment in Plug Power, effective November
2003. We record our investment at market value and account for
unrealized gains and losses in other comprehensive income or loss.
In May 2004, we sold 3.5 million shares of Plug Power stock and
recorded a gain of approximately $14 million, net of taxes. The sale
reduced our ownership interest in Plug Power to 10.6 million
shares, or approximately 14%.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A detailed analysis of the changes in assets and liabilities that are
reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows follows:

fin Millions) 2004 2003 2002

Changes in Assets and Liabilities,

Exclusive of Changes

Shown Separately
Accounts receivable, net $ S (50) $ (129}
Accrued unbilled receivable (62) {20} {54)
Accrued GCR revenue {35) 29 (5)
Inventories (40) {61) )
Accrued/Prepaid Pensions 88 (196) (10}
Accounts payable 266 {21) 66
Accrued PSCR refund 112 - -
Exchange gas payable (43) 30 9
Income taxes payable {170} 135 (8}
General taxes {14) {12) {36)
Risk management and
trading activities {64} 127 69
Postretirement obligation ya:] 112 7
Other N - (131) 39 (37)

$ 9§ 1128 (129

=

Supplementary cash and non-cash information for the years ended
December 31 were as follows:

{in Miltions) 2004 2003 2002
Cash Paid For
Interest (excluding
interest capitalized) $ 57 8§ 552 § 551
Income taxes $ 23 § 3N 81687

Noncash Investing and
Financing Activities
Notes received from sale

of synfuel projects $ 2148 288 27
Common stock contributed
to pension plan $ 170 8 -3 -
Exchange of debt $ -8 100 $ -
Issuance of

__equity-linked securities $ -8 -§ 2

See the following notes for other accounting policies impacting our
financial statements:

Nole Title

2 New Accounting Pronouncements

4 Regulatory Matters

7 Income Taxes

12 Financial and QOther Derivative Instruments
14 Retirement Benefits and Trusteed Assets

NOTE-2 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOQUNCEMENTS
Energy Trading Activities

Under Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 98-10,
“Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and

Risk Management Activities,” companies were required to use
mark-to-market accounting for contracts utilized in energy trading
activities. EITF Issue No. 98-10 was rescinded in October 2002,

and energy trading contracts must now be reviewed to determine
if they meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Dertvative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 133 requires all derivatives to be recognized in the state-
ment of financial position as either assets or liabilities measured at
their fair value. SFAS No. 133 also requires that changes in the fair

2004 annual report 49

Q




value of derivatives be recognized in earnings unless specific
hedge accounting criteria are met. Energy trading contracts

not meeting the definition of a derivative are accounted for

under settlement accounting, effective October 25, 2002 for new
contracts and effective January 1, 2003 for existing contracts.
Derivative contracts are only marked to market to the extent that
markets are considered highly liquid where objective, transparent
prices can be obtained. Unrealized gains and losses are fully
reserved for transactions that do not meet this criteria.

Additionally, inventory utilized in energy trading activities
accounted for under the fair value method of accounting as
prescribed by Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 43 is no
longer permitted. Our Energy Marketing & Trading segment uses
gas inventory in its trading operations and switched from the fair
value method to the average cost method in January 2003.

Effective January 1, 2003, we no longer applied EITF Issue

No. 98-10 to energy contracts and ARB No. 43 to gas inventory.
As a result of discontinuing the application of these accounting
principles, we recorded a cumulative effect of accounting
change that reduced net income for the first quarter of

2003 by $16 million (net of taxes of $9 million).

Asset Retirement Obligations

On January 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations,” which requires the fair value of an
asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which
it is incurred. We identified a legal retirement obligation for the
decommissioning costs for our Fermi 1 and 2 nuclear plants,

To a lesser extent, we have retirement obligations for our synthetic
fuel operations, gas production facilities, asphalt plant, gas
gathering facilities and various other operations. As to utility
operations, we believe that adoption of SFAS No. 143 results
primarily in timing differences in the recognition of legal asset
retirement costs that we are currently recovering in rates and

are deferring such differences under SFAS No. 71, “Accounting
Jor the Effects of Certain Types of Requlation.”

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003, we recorded
a plant asset of $306 million with offsetting accumulated deprecia-
tion of $106 million, a retirement obligation liability of $815 million
and reversed previously recognized obligations of $377 million,
principally nuclear decommissioning liabilities. We also recorded a
cumulative effect amount related to utility operations as a regulatory
asset of $221 million, and a cumulative effect charge against earnings
of $11 million (net of tax of $7 million) for 2003.

If a reasonable estimate of fair value cannot be made in the period
the asset retirement obligation is incurred, such as assets with an
indeterminate life, the liability is to be recognized when a reason-
able estimate of fair value can be made. Generally, distribution
assets have an indeterminate life, retirement cash flows cannot be
determined and there is a low probability of retirement, therefore
no liability has been recorded for these assets.

The pro forma effect on earnings had SFAS No. 143 been adopted
for all periods presented would decrease reported net income and
basic and diluted earnings per share as follows:

{in Millions)
Net Basic and Diluted
Year Income Earnings per Share
2002 $ 48 $ .03
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A reconciliation of the asset retirement obligation for 2004 follows:

(in Millions}

Asset retirement obligations at January 1, 2004 $ 866
Accretion 57
Liahilities settled (5)
Revisions in estimated cash flows (2
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2004 $ 916

A significant portion of the asset retirement obligations
represents nuclear decommissioning liabilities, which are
funded through a surcharge to electric customers over the
life of the Fermi 2 nuclear plant.

SFAS No. 143 also requires the quantification of the estimated
cost of removal obligations, arising from other than legal
obligations, which have been accrued through depreciation
charges. At December 31, 2003, we reclassified approximately
$655 million of previously accrued asset removal costs related to
our utility operations, which had been previously netted against
accumulated depreciation to regulatory liabilities. There is a
generic case before the MPSC to determine the accounting and
regulatory treatment of removal costs for Michigan utilities.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation
of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51,” was issued and
requires an investor with a majority of the variable interests
(primary beneficiary) in a variable interest entity to consolidate
the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the entity.

A variable interest entity is an entity in which the equity investors
do not have controlling interests, the equity investment at risk
is insufficient to finance the entity’s activities without receiving
additional subordinated financial support from other parties, or
equity investors do not share proportionally in gains or losses.

In October 2003 and December 2003, the FASB issued Staff Position
No. FIN 46-6 and FIN 46-Revised (FIN 46-R), respectively, which
clarified and replaced FIN 46 and also provided for the deferral of
the effective date of FIN 46 for certain variable interest entities.

We have evaluated all of our equity and non-equity interests and
have adopted all current provisions of FIN 46-R. The adoption of
FIN 46-R did not have a material effect on our financial statements.

Medicare Act Accounting

In December 2003, the “Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003” (Medicare Act)
was signed into law. The Medicare Act provides for a non-taxable
federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans
that provide a benefit that is at least “actuarially equivalent” to
the benefit established by law. We elected at that time to defer the
provisions of the Medicare Act, and its impact on our accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation and net periodic postretirement
benefit cost, pending the issuance of specific authoritative
accounting guidance by the FASB.

In May 2004, FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 106-2 was issued on
accounting for the effects of the Medicare Act. The guidance in
this FSP is applicable to sponsors of single-employer defined
benefit postretirement health care plans for which (a) the
employer has concluded the prescription drug benefits available
under the plan to some or all participants are “actuarially
equivalent” to Medicare Part D and thus qualify for the subsidy




under the Medicare Act and (b) the expected subsidy will offset
or reduce the employer’s share of the cost of the underlying
postretirement prescription drug coverage on which the subsidy
is based. We believe we qualify for the subsidy under the
Medicare Act and the expected subsidy will partially offset our
share of the cost of postretirement prescription drug coverage.

In June 2004, we adopted FSP No. 106-2, retroactive to January 1,
2004. As a result of the adoption, our accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation for the subsidy related to benefits attributed to
past service was reduced by approximately $95 million and was
accounted for as an actuarial gain. The effects of the subsidy
reduced net postretirement costs by $16 million in 2004,

Stecx 3zssu Poomon s

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123-R, “Stock
Based Payments,” which establishes the accounting for
transactions in which an entity exchanges equity instruments

for goods or services. Application of SFAS No. 123-R is required
for interim or annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005 with
earlier adoption encouraged. We have completed a preliminary
review and estimate that the new standard will reduce reported
earnings by approximately $5 million to $10 million per year.

m U O AN 1 A PR
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Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” which addresses the financial accounting
and reporting standards for the acquisition of infangible assets out-
side of a business combination and for goodwill and other intangible
assets subsequent to their acquisition. This accounting standard
requires that goodwill no longer be amortized, but reviewed at least
annually for impairment. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we
discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective January 1, 2002.

A
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In February 2003, we sold International Transmission Company
(ITC), our electric transmission business, for $610 million to
affiliates of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. and Trimaran Capital
Partners, LLC. The sale generated a preliminary net of tax gain

of $63 million in 2003. The gain was net of transaction costs, the
portion of the gain that was refundable to customers and the write
off of approximately $44 million of allocated goodwill. The gain
was lowered to $58 million in 2004 under the MPSC’s November
2004 final rate order that resulted in a revision of the applicable
transaction costs and customer refund.

As prescribed by SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we have reported the operations of
ITC as a discontinued operation as shown in the following table:

finMitions) 2003 (3) 2802
Revenues (1) $ 2 $ 138
Expenses (2) o 13 67
Operating income 8 Al
Income taxes 3 25
Income from discentinued operations 3 5 $ 46

(1) Includes intercompany revenues of $18 milfion for 2003 and $118 million for 2002.

(2) Excludes general corporate overhead costs that were previously allocated to
ITC in 2003 and 2002.

{3) Represents activity from January 1, 2003 through February 28, 2003,
when {TC was sold.

Detroit Edison’s Steam Heating Business

In January 2003, we sold Detroit Edison’s steam heating business
to Thermal Ventures II, LP. Due to the continuing involvement
of Detroit Edison in the steam heating business, including the
commitment to purchase steam and/or electricity through 2024,
fund certain capital improvements and guarantee the buyer’s credit
facility, we recorded a net of tax loss of approximately $14 million
in 2003. As a result of Detroit Edison’s continuing involvement,
this transaction is not considered a sale for accounting purposes.
The stear heating business had assets of $6 million at

December 31, 2002, and had net losses of $12 million in 2002.

See Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies.

Southern Missouri Gas Company —

Discontinued Operation

We own Southern Missouri Gas Company (SMGC), a public utility
engaged in the distribution, transmission and sale of natural gas in
southern Missouri. In the first quarter of 2004, management approved
the marketing of SMGC for sale. As of March 31, 2004, SMGC met the
SFAS No. 144 criteria of an asset “held for sale,” and we have reported
its operating results as a discontinued operation. We recognized a
net of tax impairment loss of approximately $7 million in 2004,
representing the write-down to fair value of the assets of SMGC, less
costs to sell, and the write-off of allocated goodwill. In November
2004, we entered into a definitive agreement providing for the sale

of SMGC, Following receipt of regulatory approvals and resolution

of other contingencies, it is anticipated that the transaction will

close in 2005. SMGC had assets of $9 million and liabilities of

$35 million at December 381, 2004.

NOTE-4 REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulalion

Detroit Edison and MichCon are subject to the regulatory
jurisdiction of the MPSC, which issues orders pertaining to
retail rates, recovery of certain costs, including the costs of
generating facilities and regulatory assets, conditions of service,
accounting and operating-related matters. Detroit Edison is also
regulated by the FERC with respect to financing authorization
and wholesale electric activities.

As subsequently discussed in the “Electric Industry Restructuring”
section, Detroit Edison’s rates were frozen through 2003 and capped
for small business customers through 2004 and for residential
customers through 2005 as a result of Public Act (PA) 141. However,
Detroit Edison was allowed to defer certain costs to be recovered
once rates could be increased, including costs incurred as a result
of changes in taxes, laws and other governmental actions.

Reguletory Assets and Liabilities

Detroit Edison and MichCon apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,”

to their regulated operations. SFAS No. 71 requires the recording
of regulatory assets and liabilities for certain transactions that
would have been treated as revenue and expense in non-regulated
businesses. Continued applicability of SFAS No. 71 requires that
rates be designed to recover specific costs of providing regulated
services and be charged to and collected from customers. Future
regulatory changes or changes in the competitive environment
could result in the Company discontinuing the application of
SFAS No. 71 for some or all of its utility businesses and may require
the write-off of the portion of any regulatory asset or liability that
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was no longer probable of recovery through regulated rates.
Management believes that currently available facts support the
continued application of SFAS No. 71 to Detroit Edison and MichCon.

The following are balances and a brief description of the
regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31:

fin Millions} 2004 2003
Assets
Securitized regulatory assets $ 1,438 $ 1527
Recoverable income taxes related to
securitized regulatory assets $ 788 $ 837
Recoverable minimum pension liability 605 585
Asset retirement obligation 183 192
Other recoverable income taxes 109 14
Recoverable costs under PA 141
Net stranded costs 122 68
Excess capital expenditures 7 -
Deferred Clean Air Act expenditures 76 54
Midwest Independent System
Operatar charges 27 21
Transmission integration costs - 10
Electric Customer Choice
implementation costs %5 84
Enhanced security costs 8 6
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 60
Deferred environmental costs 3 29
Accrued GCR revenue 55 19
Other 5 3
2174 2,082
Less amount included in current assets {55) (19}
$ 2119 $2,063
Liabilities
Asset removal costs $ 6719 $ 655
Excess securitization savings - 14
Customer refund — 1997 storm 2 2
Refundable income taxes 135 146
Accrued GCR potential disallowance 28 26
Accrued PSCR refund 112 -
Other 3 3
959 846
Less amount included in current liabilities (142) (29)
$ 817 $ 817
ASSETS

o Securitized requlatory assets — The net book balance of the
Fermi 2 nuclear plant was written off in 1998 and an equivalent
regulatory asset was established. In 2001, the Fermi 2 regulatory
asset and certain other regulatory assets were securitized
pursuant to PA 142 and an MPSC order. A non-bypassable
securitization bond surcharge recovers the securitized
regulatory asset over a fourteen-year period ending in 2015.

® Recoverable income taxes related to securitized regulatory
assets — Receivable for the recovery of income taxes to be paid
on the non-bypassable securitization bond surcharge. A non-
bypassable securitization tax surcharge recovers the income tax.

® Recoverable minimum pension liability — An additional
minimum pension liability was recorded under generally accepted
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accounting principles due to the current under funded status

of certain pension plans. The traditional rate setting process
allows for the recovery of pension costs as measured by generally
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the minimum
pension liability associated with utility operations is recoverable.
See Notes 4 and 14.

o Asset retirement obligation — Asset retirement obligations were
recorded pursuant to adoption of SFAS No. 143 in 2003. These
obligations are primarily for Fermi 2 decommissioning costs that
are recovered in rates.

¢ Other recoverable income taxes — Income taxes receivable
from Detroit Edison’s customers representing the difference in
property-related deferred income taxes receivable and amounts
previously reflected in Detroit Edison’s rates.

o Net stranded costs — PA 141 permiits, after MPSC authorization,
the recovery of and a return on fixed cost deficiency associated
with the electric Customer Choice program. Net stranded costs
occur when fixed cost related revenues do not cover the fixed
cost revenue requirements.

e Excess capital expenditures — Starting in 2004, PA 141 permits,
after MPSC authorization, the recovery of and a return on capital
expenditures that exceed a base level of depreciation expense.

® Deferred Clean Air Act expenditures — PA 141 permits, after
MPSC authorization, the recovery of and a return on Clean Air
Act expenditures.

* Midwest Independent System Operator charges — PA 141
permits, after MPSC authorization, the recovery of and a return
on charges from a regional transmission operator such as the
Midwest Independent System Operator.

o Transmission integration costs — The MPSC’s November 2004
final rate order denied recovery and determined these costs to
be transaction expenses in DTE Energy’s sale of ITC.

¢ Electric Customer Choice tmplementation costs — PA 141
permits, after MPSC authorization, the recovery of and a return
on costs incurred associated with the implementation of the
electric Customer Choice program.

* Enhanced security costs — PA 141 permits, after MPSC
authorization, the recovery of enhanced homeland security
costs for an electric generating facility.

o [namortized loss on reacquired debt — The unamortized
discount, premium and expense related to debt redeemed
with a refinancing are deferred, amortized and recovered over
the life of the replacement issue.

® Deferred environmental costs — The MPSC approved the
deferral and recovery of investigation and remediation costs
associated with former manufactured gas plant sites.

® Accrued GOR revenue — Receivable for the temporary
under-recovery of and a return on gas costs incurred by
MichCon which are recoverable through the GCR mechanism.

LIABILITIES

e Asset removal costs — The amount collected from customers for
the funding of future asset removal activities.

e Excess securitization savings — Savings associated with the
2001 securitization of Fermi 2 and other costs are refundable
to Detroit Edison’s customers.



o Customer refund ~ 1997 storm — The over collection of 1997
storm costs, which will be refunded in accordance with the
MPSC’s November 2004 rate order.

* Refundable income taxes - Income taxes refundable
to MichCon's customers representing the difference in
property-related deferred income taxes payable and amounts
recognized pursuant to MPSC authorization.

» Accrued GCR potentinl disallowance — Potential refund
resulting from an MPSC order in MichCon’s 2002 GCR plan
case that required MichCon to reduce revenues in the
calculation of its 2002 GCR expense.

e Accrued PSCE refund — Payable for the temporary
over-recovery of and a return on power supply costs and,
beginning with the MPSC's November 2004 rate order,
transmission costs incurred by Detroit Edison which are
recoverable through the PSCR mechanism.

Clectric Rats Cass

Rate Request — In June 2003, Detroit Edison filed an application
with the MPSC requesting a change in retail electric rates,
resumption of the PSCR mechanism, and recovery of net stranded

costs. The application and subsequent revisions resulted in a
request to increase base rates by $583 million annually.

In addition, Detroit Edison requested recovery of certain regulatory
assets. As subsequently discussed, Detroit Edison received interim
and final rate orders relating to its June 2003 rate application.

A summary of the rate orders follows:

Interim Rate Final Rate
{in Millions) ___ ______Increase(i) increase(1)
Base Rate Revenue Deficiency s M8 $ 336
Recovery of SMC Discounts - 38
QOverall Base Rate Increase 248 374
PSCR Savings {126} {126)
Total o § Iz § 248
Actual Estimate
{in Mitlions) _ 2204 2005 (2) Total
Cumulative Recoverable Reguiatory Assets '
Clean Air Act $ 76 $ 68 $144
MISQ Transmission Costs 27 49 76
Excess Capital Expenditures 7 15 22
Customer Refund — 1997 Storm (2) - {2)
108 132 240
Electric Choice Implementation Costs 95 6 101
Net Stranded Costs 44 ~ 4
Total . $4 $138 $385

(1) The impact of rate caps notincluded.

{2) Represents estimated amounts to be incurred in 2005, as well as carrying
costs on unrecovered balances, that were authorized for recovery by the MPSC.
Actual amounts incurred are subject to review in future MPSC proceedings, and
any overcoliections or undercollections will be reflected in future rates.

MPSC Interim Bate Order — On February 20, 2004, the MPSC
issued an order for interim rate relief. The order authorized
an interim increase in base rates, a transition charge for

customers participating in the electric Customer Choice
program and a new PSCR factor.

The interim base rate increase totaled $248 million annually,
effective February 21, 2004, and was applicable to all customers not
subject to a rate cap. The increase was allocated to both full-service

customers ($240 million) and electric Customer Choice customers
($8 million). However, because of the rate caps under PA 141, not
all of the increase was realized in 2004. The interim order also
terminated certain transition credits and authorized transition
charges to electric Customer Choice customers designed to result
in $30 million in additional revenues. Additionally, the MPSC
authorized a reduced PSCR factor for all customers, designed to
lower revenues by $126 million annually. However, the MPSC order
allowed Detroit Edison to increase base rates for customers still
subject to the cap in an equal and offsetting amount with the
required reduction in the PSCR factor to maintain the total
capped rate levels currently in effect for these customers.

The MPSC deferred addressing other items in the rate request,
including a surcharge to recover regulatory assets, until a final
rate order was issued.

MPSC Final Rate Order — On Noveraber 23, 2004, the MPSC issued
an order for final rate relief. The MPSC determined that the base
rate increase granted to Detroit Edison should be $336 million
annually effective November 24, 2004 and is applicable to all
customers not subject to the rate cap. The final order provides
for the future recovery of losses resulting from electric Customer
Choice. Additionally, beginning in 2005, the final order allows
Detroit Edison to recover the discounts previously provided to
special manufacturing contract (SMC) customers of $38 million,
resulting in an overall base rate increase of $374 million annually.
As subsequently discussed, Detroit Edison has been deferring
cortain costs as regulatory assets that it believes are recoverable
under PA 141 once rate caps expire. The final order addressed
numerous issues relating to regulatory assets, including the
amounts recoverable and the recovery mechanism. The final
order anthorized the recovery of a lower level of stranded costs
than had been recorded through February 20, 2004, the date of
the interim order. Accordingly, Detroit Edison adjusted its net
stranded costs related regulatory asset, which decreased 2004
net income by $21 million.

The MPSC’s final order authorizes the recovery of approximately
$385 million of regulatory assets through three mechanisms:

o The first mechanism recovers certain accrued regulatory assets
over a five-year period using a regulatory asset recovery surcharge
(RARS) and is collectible from all full service customers as their
rate caps expire. The total amount to be collected is estimated
to be $240 million, plus carrying costs of 9.74% on unrecovered
balances. The recoverable regulatory assets include costs
associated with Clean Air Act compliance, deferred Midwest
Independent System Operator (MISO) transmission fees, and
deferred excess capital expenditures. The MPSC also authorized
the refunding of over collected 1997 storm costs.

¢ The second mechanism includes a surcharge to recover electric
Customer Choice implementation costs of $101 million and is
collectible from both full service and electric Customer Choice
customers. This charge will not be implemented until all
current rate caps expire in 2006 and will include carrying
costs of 7% on unrecovered balances.

o The third mechanism includes a surcharge to recover
$44 million in historical stranded costs incurred in 2002,
2003 and Jarmary and February 2004 and is collectible from
electric Customer Choice customers, including carrying

costs of 7% on unrecovered balances.
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Other significant items authorized by the MPSC in its
final order:

¢ Rate increase was based on a 54% debt and 46% equity capital
structure, and an 11% rate of return on cormon equity.

o Customer rate caps do not expire until January 2006. As a
result, the MPSC determined that there is a need to true-up
stranded costs for at least 2004. This true-up case must be filed
by March 31, 2005. The MPSC also permits Detroit Edison to file
additional annual stranded cost true-up proceedings if it deems
appropriate to do so pursuant to PA 141,

¢ Transmission and MISO costs and costs associated with nitrogen
oxide (NOx) allowances will be recoverable through the PSCR
mechanism and charged to full service customers; however,
costs associated with sulfur dioxide (SOx) allowances will not
be included in the PSCR, but recoverable through base rates.

o Full cost recovery of $550 million of Clean Air Act
environmental expenditures was authorized. We believe that
future mandated environmental expenditures will also be
recovered through base rates.

* A pension tracking mechanism was established to manage
changes in pension costs. Under the tracking mechanism,
Detroit Edison would recover or refund pension costs above or
below the amount reflected in base rates. Detroit Edison was
also required to propose a similar tracking mechanism for
retiree health care costs. In February 2005, Detroit Edison
filed a request with the MPSC seeking authority to implement
a tracking mechanism for retiree health care costs
(Other Postemployment Benefits Costs Tracker).

Detroit Edison was ordered to file a rate unbundling and
restructuring case by March 23, 2005. As subsequently discussed,
this rate restructuring proposal was filed on February 4, 2005.

Changes to the existing electric Customer Choice program
regarding customers returning to full utility service. Customers
electing to participate in the electric Customer Choice program
will not be permitted to return to Detroit Edison's full service
rates for two years. Electric Customer Choice customers return-
ing to full service must remain on bundled rates for at least one
year following their return. Customers who fail to give the
appropriate notice or do not stay on the electric Customer
Choice program for two years are required to pay the higher of
the applicable tariff energy price plus 10%, or the market price
of power plus 10%, for any power taken from Detroit Edison.

In December 2004, Detroit Edison and other parties filed petitions
for rehearing relating to the MPSC’s November 2004 final rate
order. Among other items, Detroit Edison’s petition requests a
correction of the capital structure used in determination of the
final order and recovery of certain disallowed costs. Detroit
Edison awaits an MPSC decision on the petitions for rehearing,

Electric Rate Restructuring Proposal

On February 4, 2005, Detroit Edison filed a rate restructuring
proposal with the MPSC to restructure its electric rates and begin
phasing out subsidies that are part of its current pricing structure.
The proposal would adjust rates for each customer class to be
reflective of the full costs incurred to service such customers.
Under the proposal, commercial and industrial rates would be
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lowered, but residential rates would increase over a five-year
period beginning in 2007. The MPSC anticipates that this
proceeding will be completed in time to have new rates in
effect no later than January 1, 2006.

Cther Postemployment Benefits Costs Tracker

On February 10, 2005, Detroit Edison filed an application requesting
MPSC approval of a proposed tracking mechanism for retiree health
care costs. The application was filed as required pursuant to the
MPSC's November 2004 order.

Electric Industry Restructuring

Electric Bates, Customer Choice and Stranded Costs — In 2000,
the Michigan Legislature enacted PA 141 that reduced electric
retail rates by 5%, as a result of savings derived from the issuance
of securitization bonds. The legislation also contained provisions
freezing rates through 2003 and preventing rate increases

(i.e., rate caps) for small business customers through 2004 and
for residential customers through 2005. The price freeze period
expired on February 20, 2004 pursuant to an MPSC order.

In addition, PA 141 codified the MPSC’s existing electric
Customer Choice program and provided Detroit Edison with

the right to recover net stranded costs associated with Customer
Choice. Detroit Edison was also allowed to defer certain costs

to be recovered once rates could be increased, including

costs incurred as a result of changes in taxes, laws and other
governmental actions.

As required by PA 141, the MPSC conducted a proceeding to develop
a methodology for calculating net stranded costs associated with
electric Customer Choice. In a December 2001 order, the MPSC
determined that Detroit Edison could recover net stranded costs
associated with the fixed cost component of its electric generation
operations. Specifically, there would be an annual proceeding

or true-up before the MPSC reconciling the receipt of revenues
associated with the fixed cost component of its generation services
to the revenue requirement for the fixed cost component of

those services, inclusive of an allowance for the cost of capital.
Any resulting shortfall in recovery, net of mitigation, would

be considered a net stranded cost. The MPSC authorized

Detroit Edison to establish a regulatory asset to defer recovery

of its incurred stranded costs, subject to review in a subsequent
annual net stranded cost proceeding.

In July 2003, the MPSC issued an order finding that Detroit Edison
had no net stranded costs in 2000 and 2001. Detroit Edison filed
a petition for rehearing of the July 2003 order, which the

MPSC denied in December 2003. Detroit Edison has appealed.

As previously discussed, the MPSC's November 2004 final order
authorized recovery of $44 million of historical stranded costs
incurred in 2002, 2003 and January and February 2004 collectible
from electric Customer Choice customers through transition
charges. Since March 1, 2004, Detroit Edison has recorded

$108 million of additional stranded costs as a regulatory asset

as the result of rate caps and higher electric Customer Choice
sales losses than included in the 2004 MPSC interim order.

Securitization — Detroit Edison formed The Detroit Edison
Securitization Funding LLC (Securitization LLC), a wholly owned
subsidiary, for the purpose of securitizing its qualified costs,
primarily related to the unamortized investment in the Fermi 2




nuclear power plant. In March 2001, the Securitization LLC
issued $1.75 billion of securitization bonds, and Detroit Edison
sold $1.75 billion of qualified costs to the Securitization LLC.
The Securitization LLC is independent of Detroit Edison, as is its
ownership of the qualified costs. Due to principles of consolidation,
the qualified costs and securitization bonds appear on the
company's consolidated statement of financial position.

The Company makes no claim to these assets. Ownership of
such assets has vested in the Securitization LLC and been
assigned to the trustee for the securitization bonds. Neither

the qualified costs nor funds from an MPSC approved non-
bypassable surcharge collected from Detroit Edison’s customers
for the payment of costs related to the Securitization LLC and
securitization bonds are available to Detroit Edison’s creditors.

Excess Securitization Savings — In January 2004, the MPSC
issued an order directing Detroit Edison to file a report by

March 15, 2004, of the accounting of the savings due to
securitization and the application of those savings through
December 2003. In addition, Detroit Edison was requested to
include in the report an estimate of the foregone carrying cost
associated with the excess securitization savings. A report was
filed on February 16, 2004 in compliance with the MPSC order.
DTE2 Aceounting £ pp.icction

In 2003, we began the implementation of DTE2, a Company-wide
initiative to improve existing processes and to implement new core
information systems, including finance, human resources, supply
chain and work management. The new information systems are
replacing systems that are approaching the end of their useful
lives. We expect the benefits of DTE2 to include lower costs, faster
business cycles, repeatable and optimized processes, enhanced
internal controls, improvements in inventory management and
reductions in system support costs.

In July 2004, Detroit Edison filed an accounting application

with the MPSC requesting authority to capitalize and amortize
DTE2 costs, consisting of computer equipment, software and
development costs, as well as related training, maintenance and
overhead costs. Through December 2004, we have expensed
approximately $20 million of training, maintenance and overhead
costs pending MPSC action on our application. Detroit Edison is
proposing a 15-year amortization period for the costs, exclusive
of the computer equipment costs.

Powar Supply Cost Rocovery Proceedings

2004 Plan Year — An MPSC December 2003 order resumed the
PSCR mechanism that had been suspended while rates were
frozen. The order authorized a new PSCR factor for all customers
effective January 1, 2004. The MPS(C’s February 2004 interim
order provided for a credit of 1.05 mills per kWh compared to a
2.04 mills per kWh charge previously in effect. Detroit Edison
will file a 2004 PSCR reconciliation case by March 31, 2005.

2005 Plan Year — In September 2004, Detroit Edison filed its

2005 PSCR plan case seeking approval of a levelized PSCR factor
of 1.82 mills per kWh above the amount included in base rates.

In December 2004, Detroit Edison filed revisions to its 2005 PSCR
plan case in accordance with the November 2004 MPSC rate order.
The revised filing seeks approval of a levelized PSCR factor of up
to 0.48 mills per kWh above the new base rates established in the
final electric rate order. Included in the factor are power supply

costs, transmission expenses and NOx emission allowance costs.
Detroit Edison self-implemented a factor of a negative 2.00 mills
per kWh on January 1, 2005. The Michigan Attorney General has
filed a motion for summary disposition of this proceeding based on
arguments that the PSCR statute requires a fixed 48-month PSCR
factor. We cannot predict the nature or timing of actions the
MPSC will take on this motion.

Transmission Proceedings

On November 18, 2004, a FERC order approved a transmission
pricing structure to facilitate seamless trading of electricity
between MISO and the PJM Interconnection. The pricing structure
eliminates layers of transmission charges between the two regional
transmission organizations. The FERC noted that the new pricing
structure may result in transmission owners facing abrupt revenue
shifts. To facilitate the transition to the new pricing structure, the
FERC authorized a Seams Elimination Cost Adjustment (SECA),
effective from December 2004 through March 2006. Under MISO's
filing with the FERC, Detroit Edison’s SECA obligation would be
$2.2 million per month from December 2004 through March 2005.
Detroit Edison has estimated that the SECA charge for the April
2005 through March 2006 period will be approximately $1 million
per month. On December 20, 2004, Detroit Edison filed a request
for rehearing with the FERC which states, among other things,
that SECA is retroactive ratemaking and is unlawful under the
Federal Power Act. Under the MPSC’s November 2004 final rate
order, transmission expenses are recoverable through the PSCR
mechanism. Therefore, SECA charges, if ultimately imposed,
should not have a financial impact to Detroit Edison.

Gas Rate Case

Rate Bequest — In September 2003, MichCon filed an application
with the MPSC for an increase in service and distribution charges
(base rates) for its gas sales and transportation customers. The
filing requests an overall increase in base rates of $194 million per
year (approximately 7% increase, inclusive of gas costs), beginning
January 1, 2005. MichCon requested that the MPSC increase base
rates by $154 million per year on an interim basis by April 1, 2004.

MPSC Interim Rate Order — In September 2004, the MPSC issued
an order granting interim rate relief to MichCon in the amount of
$35 million. The interim rate order was based on a 50% debt and
50% equity capital structure, and an 11.5% rate of return on common
equity. Amounts collected are subject to a potential refund pending
a final order in this rate case.

MPSC Stoff Recommendation on Final Rate Relief - The Staff
has recommended a $76 million increase in base rates compared
to MichCon’s requested base rate relief of $194 million. The Staff
also supports a provision, proposed by MichCon, that would allow
MichCon to recover or refund 90% of uncollectible acecounts
receivable expense above or below the amount that is reflected
in base rates. In addition, the Staff proposed a 50% debt and
50% equity capital structure utilizing a reduced rate of return

on common equity of 11%. MichCon's current allowed rate of
return on common equity is 11.5%.

MPSC Proposal for Decision (PFD) — The Administrative Law
Judge (ALJ) issued a PFD on MichCon’s rate request on

December 10, 2004. The PFD recommends an increase in base
rates of $60 million. The PFD supports the Staff’s recommendations
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for capital structure, rate of return on common equity and for
the proposed reconciliation of uncollectible accounts receivable.
MichCon expects a final order in the first quarter of 2005.

Gas Industry Restructuring

In December 2001, the MPSC approved MichCon’s application for
a voluntary, expanded permanent gas Customer Choice program,
which replaced the experimental program that expired in March
2002. The number of customers eligible to participate in the gas
Customer Choice program increased over a three-year period.
Effective April 2004, all of MichCon’s 1.2 million customers could
elect to participate in the Customer Choice program, thereby
purchasing their gas from suppliers other than MichCon.

The MPSC also approved the use of deferred accounting for

the recovery of implementation costs of the gas Customer Choice
program. As of December 2004, approximately 11%,000 customers
are participating in the gas Customer Choice program.

Gas Cost Recovery Procesdings

2002 Plan Year — In December 2001, the MPSC issued an order
that permitted MichCon to implement GCR factors up to $3.62 per
thousand cubic feet (Mcf) for January 2002 billings and up to $4.38
per Mcf for the remainder of 2002. The order also allowed MichCon
to recognize a regulatory asset of approximately $14 million repre-
senting the difference between the §4.88 factor and the $3.62 factor
for volumes that were unbilled at December 31, 2001. The regulatory
asset is subject to the 2002 GCR reconciliation process. In March
2003, the MPSC issued an crder in MichCon'’s 2002 GCR plan case.
The MPSC ordered MichCon to reduce its gas cost recovery expens-
es by $26.5 million for purposes of calculating the 2002 GCR factor
due to MichCon's decision io utilize storage gas during 2001 that
resulted in a gas inventory decrement for the 2001 calendar year.

Although we recorded a $26.5 million reserve in 2003 to reflect
the impact of this order, a final determination of actual 2002
revenue and expenses including any disallowances or adjustment,
will be decided in MichCon's 2002 GCR reconciliation case that was
filed with the MPSC in February 2003. The Staff and various inter-
vening parties in this proceeding are seeking to have the MPSC
disallow an additional $26 million, representing unbilled revenues
at December 2001. One party has also proposed the disallowance
of half of an $8 million payment made to settle Enron bankruptcy
issues. The other parties to the case have recommended that

the Enron bankruptcy settlement be addressed in the 2003 GCR
reconciliation case. An MPSC Administrative Law Judge has
recommended disallowances of $26.5 million related to the use

of storage gas in 2001 and $26 million related to the December
2001 unbilled issue, and recommended that the $8 million related
to the Enron issue be addressed in the 2003 GCR reconciliation
case. We have included this item in our testimony in the 2003 GCR
reconciliation filed in February 2004. The Staff has recommended
that MichCon be allowed to recover the entire $8 million related
to the Enron issue. A final order in this proceeding is expected

in 2005. In addition, we filed an appeal of the March 2003 MPSC
order with the Michigan Court of Appeals. In November 2004,

the Michigan Court of Appeals denied the appeal.

2008 Plan Year — In July 2003, the MPSC approved an increase
in MichCon’s 2003 GCR rate to a maximum of $5.75 per Mcf
for the billing months of August 2003 through December 2003.
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MichCon’s 2003 GCR reconciliation case was filed with the

MPSC in February 2004. In November 2004, the ALJ issued a

PFD in the 2003 reconciliation case. The ALJ recommended

that MichCon recover the full $8 million related to the Enron issue
since MichCon had reason to believe at that time that cancellation
of the contract was in the best interests of customers and since
customers ultimately realized a benefit from the cancellation.

The ALJ agreed with the MPSC Staff that a $2 million accounting
adjustment related to exchange gas be disallowed.

2004 Plan Year — In September 2003, MichCon filed its 2004 GCR
plan case proposing a maximum GCR factor of $5.36 per Mcf.
MichCon agreed to switch from a calendar year to an operational
year as a condition of its settlement in the 2003 GCR plan case.
The operational GCR year would run from April to March of the
following year. To accomplish the switch, the 2004 GCR plan case
reflects a 15-month transitional period, January 2004 through
March 2005. Under the transition proposal, MichCon would file
two reconciliations pertaining to the transition period; one address-
ing the January 2004 to March 2004 period, the other addressing
the remaining April 2004 to March 2005 period. The plan also
proposes a quarterly GCR ceiling price adjustment mechanism.
This mechanism allows MichCon to increase the maximum GCR
factor to compensate for increases in market prices, thereby
reducing the possibility of a GCR under-recovery. Due to the
sustained increase in market prices for natural gas, in June 2004
the MPSC approved a temporary increase in the maximum GCR
factor and a contingent factor which resulted in a new temporary
maximum factor of $6.62 per Mcf, effective from July 1, 2004
until the MPSC issues its final order in this case. As of

December 31, 2004, MichCon has accrued a $55 million
regulatory asset representing the under-recovery of actual gas
costs incurred in 2004, and the 2003 and 2002 GCR under-recovery.

2005-2006 Plan Year — In December 2004, MichCon filed its
2005-2006 GCR plan case proposing a maximum GCR factor

of $7.99 per Mcf. The plan includes a quarterly GCR ceiling

price adjustment mechanism. This mechanism allows MichCon

to increase the maximum GCR factor to compensate for

increases in market prices, thereby reducing the possibility

of a GCR under-recovery.

Minimum Pension Liability

In December 2002, we recorded an additional minimum pension
liability as required under SFAS No. 87, with offsetting amounts to
an intangible asset and other comprehensive income. During 2003,
the MPSC Staff provided an opinion that the MPSC's traditional rate
setting process allowed for the recovery of pension costs as measured
by SFAS No. 87. Based on the MPSC Staff opinion, management
believes that it will be allowed to recover in rates the minimum
pension liability associated with its utility operations. In 2004 and
2003, we reclassified approximately $605 miltion ($393 million net
of tax) and $585 million (8380 million net of tax), respectively, of
other comprehensive loss associated with the minimum pension
liability to a regulatory asset (Note 14).

Other

We are unable to predict the outcome of the regulatory matters
discussed herein. Resolution of these matters is dependent upon
future MPSC orders, which may materially impact the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company.




NOTE-E NUC_ZA T PERATICNS

General

Fermi 2, our nuclear generating plant, began commercial
operation in 1988. Fermi 2 has a design electrical rating (net)

of 1,160 megawatts. This plant represents approximately 10%

of Detroit Edison’s summer net rated capability. The net book
balance of the Fermi 2 plant was written off at December 31, 1998,
and an equivalent regulatory asset was established. In 2001, the
Fermi 2 regulatory asset was securitized. See Note 4 - Regulatory
Matters. Detroit Edison also owns Fermi 1, a nuclear plant that
was shut down in 1972 and is currently being decommissioned.
The NRC has jurisdiction over the licensing and operation of
Fermi 2 and the decommissioning of Fermi 1.

Property I surence

Detroit Edison maintains several different types of property
insurance policies specifically for the Fermi 2 plant. These policies
cover such items as replacement power and property damage.

The Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL) is the primary
supplier of these insurance polices.

Detroit Edison maintains a policy for extra expenses, including
replacement power costs necessitated by Fermi 2's unavailability due
to an insured event. These policies have a 12-week waiting period and
provide an aggregate $490 million of coverage over a three-year period.

Detroit Edison has $500 million in primary coverage and $2.25 billion
of excess coverage for stabilization, decontamination, debris removal,
repair and/or replacement of property and decommissioning. The
combined coverage limit for total property damage is $2.75 billion.

For multiple terrorism losses caused by acts of terrorism not covered
under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) of 2002 occurring
within one year after the first loss from terrorism, the NEIL policies
would make available to all insured entities up to $3.2 billion, plus
any amounts recovered from reinsurance, government indemnity, or
other sources to cover losses.

Under the NEIL policies, Detroit Edison could be liable for maximum
assessments of up to approximately $28 million per event if the loss
associated with any one event at any nuclear plant in the United
States should exceed the accumulated funds available to NEIL.
Public Liebility astrcnee

As required by federal law, Detroit Edison maintains $300 million
of public liability insurance for a nuclear incident. For liabilities
arising from a terrorist act outside the scope of TRIA, the policy is
subject to one industry aggregate limit of $300 million. Further,
under the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988 (Act), deferred
premium charges up to $101 million could be levied against each
licensed nuclear facility, but not more than $10 million per year per
facility. Thus, deferred premium charges could be levied against all
owners of licensed nuclear facilities in the event of a nuclear inci-
dent at any of these facilities. The Act expired on August 1, 2002,
During 2003, the U.S. Congress extended the Act for commercial
nuclear facilities through December 31, 2003. However, provisions
of the Act remain in effect for existing commercial reactors.
Legislation to extend the Act in conjunction with comprehensive
energy legislation is currently under debate in Congress.

We cannot predict whether Congress will pass the legislation.

Becommissioning

The NRC has jurisdiction over the decommissioning of nuclear
power plants and requires decommissioning funding based upon
a formula. The MPSC and FERC regulate the recovery of costs
of decommissioning nuclear power plants and both require the
use of external trust funds to finance the decommissioning of
Fermi 2. Rates approved by the MPSC provide for the recovery
of decommissioning costs of Fermi 2. Detroit Edison is continuing
to fund FERC jurisdictional amounts for decommissioning even
though explicit provisions are not included in FERC rates. We
believe the MPSC and FERC collections will be adequate to fund
the estimated cost of decommissioning using the NRC formula.

Detroit Edison has established a restricted external trust to

hold funds collected from customers for decommissioning and the
disposal of low-level radioactive waste. Detroit Edison collected
$38 million in 2004, $36 million in 2003 and $42 million in 2002
from customers for decommissioning and low-level radioactive
waste disposal. Net unrealized investment gains of $17 million
and $62 million in 2004 and 2008, respectively, and $39 million
in losses in 2002, were recorded as adjustments to the nuclear
decommissioning trust funds and regulatory assets. At December
31, 2004, investments in the external trust consisted of approxi-
mately b5% in publicly traded equity securities, 43% in fixed

debt instruments and 2% in cash equivalents.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Detroit Edison had external
decommissioning trust funds of $546 million and $474 million,
respectively, for the future decommissioning of Fermi 2. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, Detroit Edison had an additional
$18 million and $22 million in trust funds for the decommissioning
of Fermi 1. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Detroit Edison also
had an external decommissioning trust fund for low-level radioac-
tive waste disposal costs of $26 million and $22 million, respectively.
It is estimated that the cost of decommissioning Fermi 2, when

its license expires in 2025, will be $1.0 billion in 2004 dollars and
$3.4 billion in 2025 dollars, using a 6% inflation rate. In 2001,

the company began the decommissioning of Fermi 1, with the

goal of removing the radioactive material and terminating the
Fermi 1 license. The decommissioning of Fermi 1 is expected

to be complete by 2009.

As a result of adopting SFAS No, 143, Detroit Edison recorded a
retirement obligation liability for the decommissioning of Fermi 1
and 2 and reversed previously recognized decommissioning liabili-
ties. At December 31, 2004, we have recorded a liability for the
removal of the non-nuclear portion of the plants of $77 million,

Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs

In accordance with the Federal Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982,
Detroit Edison has a contract with the U.S. Department of Energy
(DOE) for the future storage and disposal of spent nuclear fuel
from Fermi 2. Detroit Edison is obligated to pay the DOE a fee of
1 mill per kWh of Fermi 2 electricity generated and sold. The fee
is a component of nuclear fuel expense. Delays have occurred in
the DOE’s program for the acceptance and disposal of spent
nuclear fuel at a permanent repository. Until the DOE is able

to fulfill its obligation under the contract, Detroit Edison is
responsible for the spent nuclear fuel storage. Detroit Edison
estimates that existing storage capacity will be sufficient until
2007. Detroit Edison is a party in the litigation against the DOE
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for both past and future costs associated with the DOE’s failure to
accept spent nuclear fuel under the timetable set forth in the Act.

NOTIE-G JOINTLY OWNED UTILITY PLANT

Detroit Edison has joint ownership interest in two power
plants, Belle River and Ludington Hydroelectric Pumped
Storage. Ownership information of the two utility plants

attributable to the partners instead of the partnerships. The
minority interest allocation is therefore removed in computing
income taxes associated with continuing operations.

Components of income tax expense (benefit) were as follows:
{Mitions) 2004 2003 2002

Continuing Operations
Current federal and other

as of December 31, 2004 was as follows: Ludinat income tax expense $ 33 14 8 135
udington

Belle  Hydroelectric Deferred federal income

River Pumped Storage tax expense (benefit) 134 {137) (219)
In-service date 1984-1985 1973 165 (123) (84)
Total plant capacity 1026 MW 1872 MW Discontinued operations (4) 61 25
Ownership interest * 49% Cumulative Effect of
Investment (in Millions) 8 1,581 $ 166 Accounting Changes - {15) -
Accumulated depreciation (in Millions)  § 740 $ 88 Total $ 161 % 778  (59)

*Detroit Edison’s ownership interest is 63% in Unit No. 1, 81% of the facilities
applicable to Belle River used jointly by the Belle River and St. Clair Power Plants
and 75% in common facilities used at Unit No. 2.

Belle River

The Michigan Public Power Agency (MPPA) has an ownership
interest in Belle River Unit No. 1 and other related facilities.
The MPPA is entitled to 19% of the total capacity and energy
of the plant and is responsible for the same percentage of the
plant's operation, maintenance and capital improvement costs.

Ludington Hydroelectric Pumped Storage

Consumers Energy Company has an ownership interest in the
Ludington Hydroelectric Pumped Storage Plant. Consumers
Energy is entitled to 51% of the total capacity and energy of the
plant and is responsible for the same percentage of the plant's
operation, maintenance and capital improvement costs.

NOTE-7 INCOME TAXES

We file a consolidated federal income tax return.

Total income tax expense (benefit) varied from the statutory
federal income tax rate for the following reasons:

{Dollars in Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Effective federal income tax rate 211 % (344)% (16.71)%
Income before income taxes

and minority interest $ 3% $ 266 $ 465
Less minority interest {212) (91) (37)
Income from continuing

operations before tax $ 608 § 357 § 502

fncome tax expense at

35% statutory rate $ 213 § 125 § 175
Section 29 tax credits (38) (241) {250)
Investment tax credits (8) (8) {9)
Depreciation )] (4) 2
Employee Stock Ownership

Plan dividends {5) () (4)
Other, net 7 10 2
Income tax expense (benefit)

from continuing operations § 165 $§ (123) & (84)

The minority interest allocation reflects the adjustment to
earnings to allocate partnership losses to third party owners,
The tax impact of partnership earnings and losses are
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Internal Revenue Code Section 29 provides a tax credit for
qualified fuels produced and sold by a taxpayer to an unrelated
party during the taxable year. Our Section 29 tax credits earned
but not utilized totaled $483 million and are carried forward
indefinitely as alternative minimum tax credits. The majority of
our tax credit properties, including all of our synfuel projects, have
received private letter rulings from the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) that provide assurance as to the appropriateness of using
these credits to offset taxable income, however, these tax credits
are subject to IRS audit and adjustment.

We have a net operating loss carryforward of $203 million that
expires in years 2018 through 2020. We do not believe that a
valuation allowance is required, as we expect to utilize the loss
carryforward prior to its expiration.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated
future tax effect of temporary differences between the tax basis of
assets or liabilities and the reported amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
current or noncurrent according to the classification of the related
assets or liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities not related
to assets or liabilities are classified according to the expected
reversal date of the temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) were comprised of the
following at December 31:

{Mitlions) 2004 2003
Property $ (1193) $01,124)
Securitized regulatory assets (778) (827)
Alternative minimum tax
credit carryforward 483 497
Merger basis differences 125 132
Pension and benefits (56} {50)
Net operating loss n B84
Other 7 380
$ (1031} $ (908)
Deferred income tax liabilities $ (2527) $(2,525)
Deferred income tax assets 1,496 1617
$ (1.031) $ (908)

The IRS is currently conducting audits of our federal income tax
returns for the years 1998 through 2001. In addition, one of our
synfuel facilities is under audit by the IRS for 2001. Audits of four
of our synfuel facilities for the years 2001 and 2002 were completed
successfully during 2004. The Company accrues tax and interest
related to tax uncertainties that arise due to actual or potential




disagreements with governmental agencies about the tax treatment
of specific items. At December 31, 2004, the Corapany had accrued
approximately $53 million for such uncertainties. We believe that
our accrued tax liabilities are adequate for all years.

NOTE-8 CoV. Vﬂ( \' """OCK AND

EARNINGS PER SHA

Commaon Stock

In March 2004, we issued 4,344,492 shares of DTE Energy common

stock, valued at $170 million. The common stock was contributed
to a defined benefit retirement plan.

Under the DTE Energy Company Long-Term Incentive Plan,

we grant non-vested stock awards to key employees, primarily
management. At the time of grant, we record the fair value of the
non-vested awards as unearned compensation, which is reflected
as a reduction in common stock. The number of non-vested stock
awards is included in the number of common shares outstanding;
however, for purposes of computing basic earnings per share,
non-vested stock awards are excluded.

Skareholders’ Rights /igreemont

We have a Shareholders’ Rights Agreement designed to maximize
shareholder value should DTE Energy be acquired. Under certain
triggering events, each right entitles the holder to purchase from
DTE Energy one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock of DTE Energy at a price of $90.00,
subject to adjustment as provided for in the Shareholders’ Rights
Agreement. The rights expire in October 2007.

Earnings per Shore

We report both basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing income from
continuing operations by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings
per share assumes the issuance of potentially dilutive common
shares outstanding during the period and the repurchase of
common shares that would have occurred with proceeds from
the assumed issuance. Diluted earnings per share assume the
exercise of stock options, vesting of non-vested stock awards,
and the issuance of performance share awards. A reconciliation
of both calculations is presented in the following table:

(in Millans, except per share amounts) 7%0@4 A 2003 2002

Basic Earnings per Share
Income from continuing operations $ 4426 $ 4804 § 5857

Average number of common
shares outstanding _ __1726 167.7 164.0

Income per share of common
stock based on average number

of shares outstanding _$ 2% $ 287 § 357

Diluted Earnings per Share
Income from continuing operations $ 4426 $§ 4804 § 585.7

Average number of common

shares outstanding 172.6 167.7 164.0
Incremental shares from

stock-based awards g B 8
Average number of dilutive

shares outstanding 173.3 168.3 164.8

Income per share of common
stock assuming issuance of
incremental shares 8§ 255 § 285 § 355

Options to purchase approximately one million shares of common
stock in 2004, five million shares in 2003 and one million shares in
2002 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings
per share because the options' exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the common shares, thus making these
options anti-dilutive. Common stock to be issued in August 2005
associated with the equity-linked securities is not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share as these shares were
not dilutive (Note 9).

NOTE-9 LONG-TERM DEBT AND
PREFERRED SECURITIES

Long-Term Delbt

Our long-term debt outstanding and weighted average
interest rates* of debt outstanding at December 31 was:

{in Miltions) 2004 2003
DTE Energy Debt, Unsecured
6.1% due 2006 to 2033 $ 1945 $ 2,005

Detroit Edison Taxable Debt,
Principally Secured
6.1% due 2005 to 2032 1672 1,485
Detroit Edison Tax Exempt
Revenue Bonds

5.6% due 2008 to 2032 1,145 1,175
MichCon Taxable Debt,

Principally Secured

6.2% due 2006 to 2033 785 772
Quarterly Income Debt Securities (QUIDS)

7.5% due 2026 to 2038 385 385
Non-Reccurse Debt 56 78
Other Long-Term Debt 95 106

6,083 6,006

Less amount due within one year (410) (382)

$ 5673 $ 5,624

Securitization Bonds $ 1,49 $ 1,585

Less amount due within one year (96) (89)

$ 1,400 $ 1,496

Equity-Linked Securities $ 178 $ 185
Trust Preferred - Linked Securities

8.625% due 2038 $ - $ 103

7.8% due 2032 186 186

7.5% due 2044 103 -

$ 289 $ 289

* Weighted average interest rates as of December 31, 2004

We issued and optionally redeemed long-term debt

consisting of the following:

2005

e [ssued $400 million of Detroit Edison senior notes in two series,
$200 million of 4.8% series due 2015 and $200 million of 5.45%
series due 2035. The proceeds were used to redeem the $385
million of 7.5% Quarterly Income Debt Securities due 2026 to 2028.

o Detroit Edison redeemed $76 million of 7.5% senior notes and
$100 million of 7.0% remarketed secured notes, which matured
February 2005.

2004

¢ MCN Financing II, an unconsolidated affiliate, redeemed
$100 million of 8.6256% Trust Originated Preferred Securities
due 2038. Accordingly, the underlying trust preferred-linked
securities were also simultaneously redeemed.
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¢ Redeemed $60 million of MCN Energy Enterprises
7.12% medium term notes.

o Issued $36 million of Detroit Edison 4-7/8% tax-exempt
bonds due 2029, the proceeds of which were used to redeem
$36 million of Detroit Edison 6.556% tax-exempt bonds due 2024.

o Issued $32 million of Detroit Edison 4.65% tax-exempt bonds
due in 2028, the proceeds of which were used to redeem the
following Detroit Edison tax-exempt issues: $11.5 million of
6.05% bonds due 2023, $7.5 million of 5.875% bonds due 2024,
and $13 million of 6.45% bonds due 2024.

¢ DTE Energy Trust II, an unconsolidated affiliate, issued an
aggregate of $100 million of 7.50% Trust Originated Preferred
Securities. The proceeds from the issuance were loaned to
DTE Energy in exchange for debt securities with essentially
the same terms as the related preferred securities.

* Issued $250 million of DTE Energy floating rate notes due in
2007. The floating rate is based on 3 month LIBOR plus 0.95%.
These notes may be called at par in June 2005. The proceeds
were used to repay short-term borrowings incurred in connec-
tion with the June 2004 redemption of $250 million DTE Energy
6.0% senior notes.

¢ Issued $200 million of Detroit Edison 5.40% senior notes due in
2014. The proceeds were used to repay short-term borrowings
and for general corporate purposes.

e Issued $120 million of MichCon 5.0% senior notes due in 2019,
The proceeds were used to redeem the following two issues:
$52 million of 6.85% senior notes due 2038 and $55 million of
6.85% senior notes due 2039.

2003

e Issued $400 million of DTE Energy 6-3/8% senior notes
maturing in April 2033, In conjunction with this issuance,
DTE Energy exchanged $100 million principal amount of
existing DTE Enterprises, Inc. debt due April 2008. The
exchange premium and other costs associated with the original
debt were deferred and are being amortized to interest expense
over the term of the new debt.

¢ Redeemed $100 million of DTE Energy 6.17% Remarketed
Notes maturing in 2038.

e Issued $49 million of Detroit Edison 5.5% tax exempt bonds
maturing in 2030.

¢ Redeemed $49 million of Detroit Edison 6.55% tax-exempt
bonds maturing in 2024,

e [ssued $200 million of MichCon 5.7% senior notes
maturing in March 2033.

* Redeemed $314 million of Detroit Edison taxable debt with an
average interest rate of 7.4% and maturities from 2003-2023.

¢ Redeemed $34 million of Detroit Edison 6.875% tax-exempt
bonds maturing in 2022.

In the years 2005 - 2009, our long-term debt maturities are

$507 million, $680 million, $597 million, $455 million and

$361 million, respectively.
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Remarketable Securities

At December 31, 2004, $175 million of notes of Detroit Edison and
MichCon were subject to periodic remarketings. The $100 million
scheduled to remarket in February 2005 was optionally redeemed
by Detroit Edison, and no remarketings will take place in 2005.
We direct the remarketing agents to remarket these securities

at the lowest interest rate necessary to produce a par bid.

In the event that a remarketing fails, we would be required to
purchase the securities.

Quaterly Income Debt Securities (QUIDS)

Detroit Edison had three series of QUIDS outstanding at
December 31, 2004. Detroit Edison redeemed all of its
outstanding QUIDS on March 4, 2005.

Equity-Linked Securities

In June 2002, DTE Energy issued 6.9 million equity security

units with gross proceeds from the issuance of $172.5 million.

An equity security unit consists of a stock purchase contract and
a senior note of DTE Energy. Under the stock purchase contracts,
we will sell, and equity security unit holders must buy, shares of
DTE Energy common stock in August 2005 for $172.5 million.

The issue price per share and the exact number of common shares
to be sold is dependent on the market value of a share in August
2005. The issue price will be not less than $43.25 or more than
$51.90 per common share, with the corresponding number of
shares issued of not more than 4.0 million or less than 3.3 million
shares. We are also obligated to pay the security unit holders

a quarterly contract adjustment payment at an annual rate of
4.15% of the stated amount until the purchase contract settlement
date. We recorded the present value of the contract adjustment
payments of $26 million in long-term debt with an offsetting
reduction in shareholders’ equity. The liability is reduced as

the contract adjustment payments are made.

Each senior note has a stated value of $25, pays an annual interest
rate of 4.60% and matures in August 2007. The senior notes are
pledged as collateral to secure the security unit holders’ obligation
to purchase DTE Energy common stock under the stock purchase
contracts. The security unit holders may satisfy their obligations
under the stock purchase contracts by allowing the senior notes
to be remarketed with proceeds being paid to DTE Energy as
consideration for the purchase of stock under the stock purchase
contracts. Alternatively, holders may choose to continue holding
the senior notes and use cash as consideration for the purchase

of stock under the stock purchase contracts.

Net proceeds from the equity security unit issuance totaled

$167 million. Expenses incurred in connection with this issuance
totaled $5.6 million and were allocated between the senior notes
and the stock purchase contracts. The amount allocated to the
senior notes was deferred and will be recognized as interest
expense over the term of the notes. The amount allocated to

the stock purchase contracts was charged to equity.

Trus? Preferred-Linked Securities
DTE Energy has interests in various unconsolidated trusts that were

formed for the sole purpose of issuing preferred securities and lend-
ing the gross proceeds to us. The sole assets of the trusts are debt




securities of DTE Energy with terms similar to those of the related
preferred securities. Payments we make are used by the trusts to
make cash distributions on the preferred securities it has issued.

We have the right to extend interest payment periods on the debt
securities. Should we exercise this right, we cannot declare or pay
dividends on, or redeem, purchase or acquire, any of our capital
stock during the deferral period.

DTE Energy has issued certain guarantees with respect to
payments on the preferred securities. These guarantees, when
taken together with our obligations under the debt securities
and related indenture, provide full and unconditional guarantees
of the trusts’ obligations under the preferred securities.

Financing costs for these issuances were paid for and deferred by
DTE Energy. These costs are being amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated lives of the related securities.

Cross Jelfazlt Provis o0s

Substantially all of the net utility properties of Detroit Edison
and MichCon are subject to the lien of mortgages. Should
Detroit Edison or MichCon fail to timely pay their indebtedness

under these mortgages, such failure will create cross defaulis in
the indebtedness of DTE Energy Corporate.

Preferred and Brote e ce

Securities - Authorizer end Unissued

At December 31, 2004, DTE Energy had 5 million shares of
preferred stock without par value authorized, with no shares
issued. Of such amount, 1.5 million shares are reserved for
issuance in accordance with the Shareholders’ Rights Agreement.

At December 31, 2004, Detroit Edison had approximately

6.75 million shares of preferred stock with a par value of

$100 per share and 30 million shares of preference stock with a
par value of $1 per share authorized, with no shares issued.

At December 31, 2004, MichCon had 7 million shares of preferred
stock with a par value of $1 per share and 4 million shares of
preference stock with a par value of §1 per share authorized,
with no shares issued.

NOTE-1Q S-CR -7-R%. CREDIT
ARRANGIMENTS AN . BORRTWINGS

In May 2004, DTE Energy entered into a $375 million two-year
unsecured revolving credit facility with a group of banks to be
utilized for general corporate borrowings. DTE Energy had
approximately $148 million of letters of credit outstanding
against this facility at December 31, 2004, This agreement
requires the company to maintain a debt to total capitalization
ratio of no more than .65 to 1 and an “earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization” (EBITDA) to interest
ratio of no less than 2 to 1. DTE Energy is currently in
compliance with these financial covenants.

In October 2004, DTE Energy entered into a $525 million,
five-vear unsecured revolving credit facility and lowered its
existing three-year revolving credit facility from $350 million
to $175 million. Detroit Edison and MichCon also entered into
similar revolving credit facilities. Detroit Edison entered into a
$206.25 million, five-year facility and lowered its three-year

facility from $137.5 million to $68.75 million. MichCon entered
into a $243.75 million, five-year facility and lowered its three-year
facility from $162.5 million to $81.25 million. The five-year facili-
ties replace the October 2003 364-day facilities, which expired.
The three-year revolving credit facilities expire in October 2006.
The five- and three-year credit facilities are with a syndicate of
banks and may be utilized for general corporate borrowings, but
primarily are intended to provide liquidity support for each of the
Companies’' commercial paper programs. Borrowings under the
facilities will be available at prevailing short-term interest rates.
The agreements require each of the Companies to maintain a
debt to total capitalization ratio of no more than .65 to 1 and an
EBITDA to interest ratio of no less than 2 to 1. The Companies are
currently in compliance with these financial covenants. Should
either Detroit Edison or MichCon have delinquent debt obligations
of at least $25 million to any creditor, such delinguency will be
considered a default under DTE Energy’s credit agreements.

As of December 31, 2004, we had outstanding commercial paper
of $402 million and other short-term borrowings of $1 million.

Detroit Edison also has a $200 million short-term financing agree-
ment secured by customer accounts receivable. This agreement
contains certain covenants related to the delinquency of accounts
receivable. Detroit Edison is currently in compliance with these
covenants. We had no balances outstanding under this financing
agreement at December 31, 2004.

The weighted average interest rates for short-term borrowings
were 2.4% and 1.9% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE-17 CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASES

Lessee — We lease various assets under capital and operating
leases, including coal cars, a gas storage field, office buildings, a
warehouse, computers, vehicles and other equipment. The lease
arrangements expire at various dates through 2029. Portions of
the office buildings are subleased to tenants.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases at
December 31, 2004 were:

Capital Operating
{in Mitlions) Leases Leases
2005 8 N $ 64
2006 13 56
2007 10 47
2008 1 40
2009 1 38
Thereafter 38 378
Total minimum lease payments 94 $ 623
Less imputed interest (21)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 73
Less current portion 7
Non-current portion § 66

Total minimum lease payments for operating leases have not been
reduced by future minimum sublease rentals totaling $6 million
under non-cancelable subleases expiring at various dates to 2020.

Rental expense for operating leases was $75 million in 2004,
$73 million in 2003 and $40 millior in 2002.
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Lessor —~ MichCon leases a portion of its pipeline system fo the
Vector Pipeline Partnership through a capital lease contract that
expires in 2020, with renewal options extending for five years.
The components of the net investment in the capital lease at
December 31, 2004, were as follows:

fin Millions)

2005 $ 9
2006 9
2007 9
2008 g
2009 !
Thereafter 98
Total minimum future lease receipts 143
Residual value of leased pipeline 40
Less unearned income (101}
Net investment in capital lease 82
Less current portion (1)

NOTE-T72 FINANCIAL AND OTHER
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We comply with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by

SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 149. Listed below are important
SFAS No. 133 requirements:

o All derivative instruments must be recognized as assets or
liabilities and measured at fair value, unless they meet the
normal purchases and sales exemption.

¢ The accounting for changes in fair value depends upon the
purpose of the derivative instrument and whether it is
designated as a hedge and qualifies for hedge accounting.

¢ Special accounting is allowed for a derivative instrument quali-
fying as a hedge and designated as a hedge for the variability of
cash flow associated with a forecasted transaction. Gain or loss
associated with the effective portion of the hedge is recorded in
other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion is recorded
to earnings. Amounts recorded in other comprehensive income
will be reclassified to net income when the forecasted transac-
tion affects earnings. If a cash flow hedge is discontinued
because it is likely the forecasted transaction will not oceur,
net gains or losses are immediately recorded to earnings.

¢ Special accounting is also allowed for a derivative instrument
qualifying as a hedge and designated as a hedge of the changes
in fair value of an existing asset, liability or firm commitment.
(Gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded into earnings.
An offsetting loss or gain on the underlying asset, liability or firm
commitment is also recorded to earnings.

Our primary market risk exposure is associated with commodity
prices, credit, interest rates and foreign currency. We have

risk management policies to monitor and decrease market risks.
We use derivative instruments to manage some of the exposure.
Except for the activities of the Energy Marketing & Trading
segment, we do not hold or issue derivative instruments for
trading purposes. The fair value of all derivatives is shown as
“assets or liabilities from risk management and trading activities”
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Commodity Price Rislk

Utility Operations

Detroit Edison — Detroit Edison generates, purchases, distributes
and sells electricity. Detroit Edison uses forward energy, capacity,
and futures contracts to manage changes in the price of electricity
and fuel. These derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges

or meet the normal purchases and sales exemption and are
therefore accounted for under the accrual method. There were

no commodity price risk cash flow hedges for utility operations

at December 31, 2004.

MichCon — MichCon purchases, stores, transmits and distributes
and sells natural gas. MichCon has fixed-priced contracts for
portions of its expected gas supply requirements through 2005,
These contracts are designated and qualify for the normal
purchases and sales exemption and are therefore accounted

for under the accrual method.

Commodity price risk associated with our utilities is limited

due to the PSCR and GCR mechanisms (Note 1).

Non-Utility Operations

Energy Marketing & Trading — Energy Marketing and Trading
markets and trades wholesale electricity and natural gas physical
products, trades financial instruments, and provides risk manage-
ment services utilizing energy commodity derivative instruments,
Forwards, futures, options and swap agreements are used to
manage exposure to the risk of market price and volume fluctua-
tions on its operations. These derivatives are accounted for by
recording changes in fair value to earnings, usually as adjustments
to operating revenues or fuel, purchased power and gas expense.
This fair value accounting better aligns financial reporting with
the way the business is managed and its performance measured.

Energy Marketing & Trading experiences earnings volatility as a
result of its gas inventory and other non-derivative assets that do
not qualify for fair value accounting under U. S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Although the risks associated with these
asset posttions are substantially offset, requirements to fair value
the underlying derivatives result in unrealized gains and losses
being recorded to earnings that eventually reverse upon settlement.

Energy Services and Biomass — Our Energy Services and Biomass
businesses generate Section 29 tax credits. Additionally, through
December 2004, Energy Services has sold majority interests in
eight of its nine synthetic fuel production plants. Proceeds from
the sales are contingent upon production levels, the production
qualifying for Section 29 tax credits, and the value of such credits.
Section 29 tax credits are subject to phase out if domestic crude
oil prices reach certain levels. See Note 13 for further discussion.

To manage our exposure in 2005 to the risk of an increase in oil
prices that could reduce synfuel sales proceeds, we entered into
a series of derivative contracts covering a specified number of
barrels of oil. The derivatives, coupled with other contracts,
economically hedge approximately 656% of our 2005 synfuel
cash flow exposure. The derivative contracts involve purchased
and written call options that provide for net cash settlement

at expiration based on the full year 2005 average New York
Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) trading price of oil in relation
to the strike price of each option. If the average NYMEX

price of oil in 2005 is less than approximately $56 per barrel,




the derivatives will yield no payment. If the average NYMEX price
of oil exceeds approximately $56 per barrel, the derivatives will
yield a payment equal to the excess of the average NYMEX price
over $56 per barrel, multiplied by the number of barrels covered,
up to a maximum price of approximately $68 per barrel. The
agreements do not qualify for hedge accounting and, as a result,
changes in the fair value of the options are recorded currently in
earnings. The fair value changes are recorded as adjustments to
the gain from selling interests in synfuel facilities and therefore
included in the “Asset gains and losses, net” line item in the con-
solidated statement of operations.

Gas Production — Our Gas Production business is engaged in natu-
ral gas exploration, development and production. We use deriva-
tive contracts to manage changes in the price of natural gas. These
derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges. Amounts recorded
in other comprehensive loss will be reclassified to earnings as the
related forecasted production affects earnings through 2013. In
2005, we estimate reclassifying $35 million of losses to earnings.
Credit Risk

Our utility and non-utility businesses are exposed to credit

risk if customers or counterparties do not comply with their
contractual obligations. We maintain credit policies that
significantly minimize overall credit risk. These policies include
an evaluation of potential customers’ and counterparties’ financial
condition, credit rating, collateral requirements or other credit
enhancements such as letters of credit or guarantees. We use
standardized agreements that allow the netting of positive and
negative transactions associated with a single counterparty.
Interest Rate Rick

We use interest rate swaps, treasury locks and other derivatives

to hedge the risk associated with interest rate market volatility.

In 2004 and 2000, we entered into a series of interest rate
derivatives to limit our sensitivity to market interest rate risk
associated with the issuance of long-term debt. Such instruments
were designated as cash flow hedges. We subsequently issued
long-term debt and terminated these hedges at a cost that is
included in other comprehensive loss. Amounts recorded in

other comprehensive loss will be reclassified to interest expense
as the related interest affects earnings through 2030. In 2005,

we estimate reclassifying $6 million of losses to earnings.
Foreign Carrency Risk

Energy Marketing and Trading has foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge fixed Canadian dollar commitments existing
under power purchase and sale contracts and gas transportation
contracts. We entered into these contracts to mitigate any price
volatility with respect to fluctuations of the Canadian dollar relative
to the U.S. dollar. Certain of these contracts are designated as cash
flow hedges with changes in fair value recorded to other compre-
hensive income. Amounts recorded to other comprehensive income
are classified to operating revenues or fuel, purchased power and
gas expense when the related hedged item affects earnings.

Fair Velve of Gikor Uironslial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is determined by using

various market data and other valuation techniques. The table
below shows the fair value relative to the carrying value for

long-term debt securities. The carrying value of certain other

financial instruments, such as notes payable, customer deposits

and notes receivable approximate fair value and are not shown.
2004 2003

o FairValue Carrying Value _Fair Value Carrying Value

Long-Term Debt $85billion  $80billion _$85billion __$7.9billion

NOTE-13 COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

Synthetic Fuel Operations

We partially or wholly own nine synthetic fuel production facilities.
Synfuel facilities chemically change coal, including waste and
marginal coal, into a synthetic fuel as determined under applica-
ble IRS rules, Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code provides
tax credits for the production and sale of solid synthetic fuels
produced from coal. To qualify for the Section 29 tax credits, the
synthetic fuel must meet three primary conditions: (1) there must
be a significant chemical change in the coal feedstock, (2) the
product must be sold to an unaffiliated entity, and (3) the produc-
tion facility must have been placed in service before July 1, 1998.
In addition to meeting the qualifying conditions, a taxpayer must
have sufficient taxable income to earn the Section 29 tax credits.

In-Service Date — During July 2004, several unaffiliated companies
announced that they have been notified that the IRS intends to
challenge the placed in service dates for some of their synfuel
facilities. If the IRS ultimately prevails, Section 29 credits claimed
by these companies would be disallowed. The placed in-service
issue is fact-driven and specific to each facility. The in-service
dates for eight of our nine synfuel plants have been favorably
reviewed by the IRS in conjunction with issuing determination
letters and/or recently completed audits. We believe all nine of

our synthetic fuel plants meet the required in-service condition.

Through December 31, 2004, we have generated and recorded
approximately $512 million in synfuel tax credits.

0il Prices — To reduce U.S. dependence on imported oil, the
Internal Revenue Code provides Section 29 tax credits as an
incentive for taxpayers to produce fuels from alternative sources.
This incentive is not deemed necessary if the price of oil increases
and provides a natural market for these fuels. As such, the tax
credit in a given year is reduced if the Reference Price of oil
within that year exceeds a threshold price. The Reference Price
of a barrel of oil is an estimate of the annual average wellhead
price per barrel for domestic crude oil, which in recent years
has been $3 - $4 lower than the NYMEX price for light, sweet
crude oil. The threshold price at which the credit begins to be
reduced was set in 1980 and is adjusted annually for inflation.
For 2004, we estimate that the threshold price at which the tax
credit would have begun to be reduced was $51.34 and would
have been completely phased out if the Reference Price reached
$64.45. The Reference Price of oil is estimated to be $37.61 for
2004. We also estimate that the 2005 average wellhead price
per barrel of oil would have to exceed approximately $52.37 per
barrel to begin phase out and exceed approximately $65.74 per
barrel to eliminate the credits. We cannot predict with any
accuracy the future price of a barrel of oil.

Numerous recent events have increased domestic crude oil
prices, including terrorism, storm-related supply disruptions
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and worldwide demand. If the credit is reduced or eliminated
in future years, our financial statements would be negatively
impacted. We continue to evaluate the current volatility in oil
prices and alternatives available to mitigate our exposure to oil
prices as part of our synfuel-related risk management strategy.
To manage our exposure to oil prices in 2005, we entered into

oil-related derivative contracts. See Note 12 for further discussion.

Environmental

Air — The EPA issued ozone transport and acid rain regulations
and, in December 2003, proposed additional emission regulations
relating to ozone, fine particulate and mercury air pollution.

The new rules have led to additional controls on fossil-fueled
power plants to reduce nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide, carbon diox-
ide and particulate emissions. To comply with these new controls,
Detroit Edison has spent approximately $580 million through
December 2004, and estimates that it will spend up to $100 million
in 2005 and incur from $700 million to $1.3 billion of additional
future capital expenditures over the next five to eight years to
satisfy both the existing and proposed new control requirements.
Under the June 2000 Michigan restructuring legislation, beginning
January 1, 2004, annual return of and on this capital expenditure,
in excess of current depreciation levels, could be deferred in
ratemaking, until after the expiration of the rate cap period,
presently expected to end on December 31, 2005 upon MPSC
authorization. Under PA 141 and the MPSC's November 2004 final
rate order, we believe that prudently incurred capital expenditures,
in excess of current depreciation levels, are recoverable in rates.

Water — Detroit Edison is required to examine alternatives

for reducing the environmental impacts of the cooling water
intake structures at several of its facilities. Based on the results
of the studies to be conducted over the next several years,
Detroit Edison may be required to install additional control
technologies to reduce the impacts of the intakes. It is estimated
that we will incur up to $50 million over the next five to seven
years in additional capital expenditures for Detroit Edison.

Contaminated Sites ~ Prior to the construction of major interstate
natural gas pipelines, gas for heating and other uses was manufac-
tured locally from processes involving coal, coke or oil. Enterprises
(MichCon and Citizens) owns, or previously owned, 18 such former
manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites. During the mid-1980’s,
Enterprises conducted preliminary environmental investigations at
former MGP sites, and some contamination related to the
by-products of gas manufacturing was discovered at each site.

The existence of these sites and the results of the environmental
investigations have been reported to the MDEQ.

Enterprises is remediating eight of the former MGP sites and
conducting more extensive investigations at five other former
MGP sites. Enterprises received MDEQ closure of one site,
and a determination that it is not a responsible party for
three other sites. Enterprises received closure from the

EPA in 2002 for one site.

In 1984, Enterprises established a $12 million reserve for costs
associated with environmental investigation and remediation
activities. During 1993, MichCon received MPSC approval of a
cost deferral and rate recovery mechanism for investigation and
remediation costs incurred at former MGP sites in excess of this
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reserve. Enterprises employed outside consultants to evaluate
remediation alternatives for these sites, to assist in estimating its
potential liabilities and to review its archived insurance policies.
As a result of these studies, Enterprises acerued an additional
liability and a corresponding regulatory asset of $35 million during
1995, In early December 2004, Enterprises retained multiple
environmental consultants to estimate the projected cost to
remediate each MGP facility. The results of the evaluation
indicated that the MGP reserve should be set at $24 million,

During 2004, Enterprises spent approximately $2 million investigat-
ing and remediating these former MGP sites. At December 31,
2004, the reserve balance was $24 million of which $4.5 million
was classified as current. Any significant change in assumptions,
such as remediation techniques, nature and extent of contamina-
tion and regulatory requirements, could impact the estimate of
remedial action costs for the sites and, therefore, have an effect
on the Company’s financial position and cash flows. However,

we anticipate the cost deferral and rate recovery mechanism
approved by the MPSC will prevent environmental costs from
having a material adverse impact on our results of operations.

Detroit Edison conducted remedial investigations at contaminated
sites, including two former MGP sites, the area surrounding an ash
landfill and several underground and aboveground storage tank
locations. The findings of these investigations indicated that the
cost to remediate these sites is approximately $8 million, which

is expected to be incurred over the next several years. As a result
of the investigation, Detroit Edison accrued an $8 million liability
during 2004.

Guarantees

In certain circumstances we enter into contractual guarantees.
We may guarantee another entity’s obligation in the event it fails
to perform. We may provide guarantees in certain indemnification
agreements., Finally, we may provide indirect guarantees of the
indebtedness of others. Below are the details of specific material
guarantees we currently provide. Our other guarantees are not
individually material and total approximately $40 million at
December 31, 2004.

Sals of Interests in Synfusl Facilities

We have provided certain guarantees and indemnities in
conjunction with the sales of interests in our synfuel facilities.
The guarantees cover general commercial, environmental and
tax-related exposure and will survive until 90 days after
expiration of all applicable statute of limitations, or indefinitely,
depending on the nature of the guarantee. We estimate that
our maximum liability under these guarantees at

December 31, 2004 totals $905 million.

Parent Company Guarantee of

Subsidiary Obligations

We have issued guarantees for the benefit of various non-utility
subsidiary transactions. In the event that DTE Energy’s credit
rating is downgraded below investment grade, certain of these
guarantees would require us to post cash or letters of credit
valued at approximately $356 million at December 31, 2004.
This estimated amount fluctuates based upon the provisions
and maturities of the underlying agreements.




Personal Property Tanes

Prior to 1999, Detroit Edison, MichCon and other Michigan
utilities asserted that Michigan’s valuation tables result in the
substantial overvaluation of utility personal property. Valuation
tables established by the Michigan State Tax Commission (STC)
are used to determine the taxable value of personal property
based on the property’s age. In November 1999, the STC approved
new valuation tables that more accurately recognize the value of
a utility’s personal property. The new tables became effective in
2000 and are currently used to calculate property tax expense.
However, several local taxing jurisdictions have taken legal
action attempting to prevent the STC from implementing the
new valuation tables and have continued to prepare assessments
based on the superseded tables. The legal actions regarding the
appropriateness of the new tables were before the Michigan Tax
Tribunal (MTT) which, in April 2002, issued its decision essentially
affirming the validity of the STC's new tables. In June 2002,
petitioners in the case filed an appeal of the MTT’s decision with
the Michigan Court of Appeals. In January 2004, the Michigan
Court of Appeals upheld the validity of the new tables. With no
further appeal by the petitioners available, the MTT began to
schedule utility personal property valuation cases for Prehearing
General Calls. Detroit Edison and MichCon have filed motions
and the MTT agreed to place their cases in abeyance pending
the conclusion of settlement negotiations being conducted by
State of Michigan Treasury officials. On February 14, 2005,

MTT issued a scheduling order that lifts the prior abeyances

in a significant number of Detroit Edison and MichCon appeals.
The scheduling order sets litigation calendars for these cases
extending into mid-2006.

Detroit Edison and MichCon continue to record property

tax expense based on the new tables. Detroit Edison and
MichCon will continue through settiement or litigation to

seek to apply the new tables retroactively and to ultimately
resolve the pending tax appeals related to 1997 through 1999.
This is a solution supported by the STC in the past. To the
extent that settlements cannot be achieved with the jurisdic-
tions, litigation regarding the valuation of utility property will
delay any recoveries by Detroit Edison and MichCon,

Other Commitmaris

Detroit Edison has an Energy Purchase Agreement to purchase
steam and electricity from the Greater Detroit Resource Recovery
Authority (GDRRA). Under the Agreement, Detroit Edison will
purchase steam through 2008 and electricity throngh June 2024,
In 1996, a special charge to income was recorded that included a
reserve for steam purchase commitments in excess of replacement
costs from 1997 through 2008. The reserve for steam purchase
commitments is being amortized to fuel, purchased power and gas
expense with non-cash accretion expense being recorded through
2008. We purchased $42 million of steam and electricity in 2004,
$39 million in 2003 and $37 million in 2002. We estimate steam
and electric purchase commitments through 2024 will not exceed
$472 million. As discussed in Note 3 — Dispositions, in January
2003, we sold the steam heating business of Detroit Edison to
Thermal Ventures II, LP. Due to terms of the sale, Detroit Edison
remains contractually obligated to buy steam from GDRRA until

Q

2008 and recorded an additional liability of $20 million for
future commitments. Also, we have guaranteed bank loans that
Thermal Ventures II, LP may use for capital improvements to
the steam heating system.

In 2004, we modified our future purchase commitments under a
transportation agreement with an interstate pipeline company and
terminated a related long-term gas exchange (storage) agreement.
Under the gas exchange agreement, we received gas from the
customer during the summer injection period and redelivered

the gas during the winter heating season. The agreements were

at rates that were not reflective of current market conditions

and had been fair valued under accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. In 2002, the fair value of the transportation
agreement was frozen when it no longer met the definition of a
derivative as a result of FERC Order 637. The fair value amounts
were being amortized to income over the life of the related
agreements, representing a net liability of approximately

$75 million as of December 31, 2003. As a result of the contract
modification and termination, we recorded an adjustment to the
net liability increasing 2004 earnings by $48 million, net of taxes.

At December 31, 2004, we have entered into numerous long-term
purchase commitments relating to a variety of goods and services
required for our business. These agreements primarily consist
of fuel supply commitments and energy trading contracts.

We estimate that these commitments will be approximately

$7.3 billion through 2027. We also estimate that 2005 base level
capital expenditures will be $1.1 billion. We have made certain
commitments in connection with expected capital expenditures.

Sankruptcies

We purchase and sell electricity, gas, coal and coke from and to
numerous companies operating in the steel, automotive, energy
and retail industries. Several customers have filed for bankruptey
protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. We have
negotiated or are currently involved in negotiations with each of
the companies, or their successor companies, that have filed for
bankruptcy protection. We regularly review contingent matters
relating to purchase and sale contracts and record provisions for
amounts considered probable of loss. We believe our previously
accrued amounts are adequate for probable losses. The final
resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material
effect on our financial statements in the period they are resolved.

Other

We are involved in certain legal, regulatory, administrative
and environmental proceedings before various courts,
arbitration panels and governmental agencies concerning
claims arising in the ordinary course of business. These
proceedings include certain contract disputes, environmental
reviews and investigations, audits, inquiries from various
regulators, and pending judicial matters. We cannot predict
the final disposition of such proceedings. We regularly review
legal matters and record provisions for claims that are
considered probable of loss. The resolution of pending
proceedings is not expected to have a material effect on our
operations or financial statements in the period they are resolved.

See Note 4 and Note 5 for a discussion of contingencies related
to Regulatory Matters and Nuclear Operations.
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NOTE-14 RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TRUSTEED ASSETS

Measurement Date

In the fourth quarter of 2004, we changed the date for actuarial
measurement of our obligations for benefit programs from
December 31 to November 30. We believe the one-month change

of the measurement date is a preferable change as it allows time
for management to plan and execute its review of the completeness
and accuracy of its benefit programs results and to fully reflect the
impact on its financial results. The change did not have a material
effect on retained earnings as of January 1, 2004, and income from
continuing operations, net income and related per share amounts
for any interim period in 2004. Accordingly, all amounts reported in
the following tables for balances as of December 31, 2004 are based
on a measurement date of November 30, 2004. Amounts reported in
tables for the year ended December 31, 2004 and for balances as of
December 31, 2003 are based on a measurement date of December
31, 2003. Amounts reported in tables for the year ended December
31, 2003 are based on a measurement date of December 31, 2002.

Qualified and Nonguelified Pension Plan Benelits

We have defined benefit retirement plans for eligible represented
and nonrepresented employees. The plans are noncontributory,
cover substantially all employees and provide retirement benefits
based on the employees’ years of benefit service, average final
compensation and age ar, retirement, Certain represented and
nonrepresented employees are covered under cash balance
benefits based on annual employer contributions and interest
credits. Our policy is to fund pension costs by contributing

the minimum amount required by the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act (ERISA) and additional amounts when

we deem appropriate. We do not anticipate making a
contribution to our qualified pension plans in 2005.

We also maintain supplemental nonqualified, noncontributory,
retirement benefit plans for selected management employees.
These plans provide for benefits that supplement those provided
by DTE Energy’s other retirement plans.

Net pension cost (credit) includes the following components:

Qualified Pension Plars  Mongualified Pensicn Plans

{in Millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Service Cost $ 58 $ 48 $ 43 $ 2 $ 2 $
Interest Cost 168 164 162 3 4 3
Expected

Return on

Plan Assets  {216) (211) {223) - - -
Amortization of

Net loss 63 38 2 1 1 1
Prior service

cost 8 8 9 - - 1
Net transition

asset - - 2) - - _
Net Pension

Cost (Credit) $ 81 $ 47 $ (99 $ @ $ 7 $ 6

The following table reconciles the obligations, assets and funded
status of the plans as well as the amounts recognized as prepaid

pension cost or pension liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position at December 31:
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Qualified
Pension Plans

Nerqualied
Pension Plans

fin Millions) 2004 2003 2004 2003
Measurement Date Nov.30 Dec.31  Nov.30 Dec. 31
Accumulated Benefit
Obligation-End of Period $ 2689 52556 $ 54 8 57
Projected Benefit
QObligation-Beginning of Period $ 2745 $ 2499 § 59 § 50
Service Cost 58 48 2 2
Interest Cost 168 164 3 4
Actuarial Loss {Gain} 76 201 (4) 6
Benefits Paid (549) {159) (4} (3)
Plan Amendments 1 18 - =
Projected Benefit
Obligation-End of Period $ 2899 $2745 $ 5 _§ 59
Plan Assets at Fair
Value-Beginning of Period  $ 2348 $ 1845 § - § -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 196 a0 - -
Company Contributions 170 222 4 3
Benefits Paid (149) (159) (4) (3)
Plan Assets at Fair
Value-End of Period $ 255 $2348 $ -~ § -
Funded Status ofthe Plans  § (334) $ (397) §$ (56) $ (59)
Unrecognized
Net loss 1,043 1,010 15 18
Prior service cost 34 41 1 3
Net Amount Recognized at
Measurement Date 743 654 {a0) {38)
Company Contribution
in December 2004 - - 1 -
Net Amount Recognized
-End of Period $ 743 $ 654  $(39) § (39
Amount Recorded as
Prepaid pension assets $ 184 § 188 § - § -
Accrued pension liability (212} {287) (53) {58)
Regulatory asset 594 572 1 13
Accumulated ather
comprehensive loss 139 147 2 4
Intangible asset 38 41 1 3
. $ 743 § 654 $ (39 S (38)
Assumptions used in determining the projected benefit
obligation and net pension costs are listed below:
2004 2003 2002
Projected Benefit Obligation
Discount rate 6.00% 6.25%  6.75%
Annual increase in future
compensation levels 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Net Pension Costs
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75%  7.25%
Annual increase in future
compensation levels 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Expected long-term rate
of return on Plan assets 9.0% 9.0% 9.5%

At December 31, 2004, the benefits related to our qualified and non-
qualified plans expected to be paid in each of the next five years and
in the aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter are as follows:

{in Milions) .

2005 $ 173
2006 177
2007 182
2008 189
2009 194
2010 - 2014 1,091
Total $ 2006




We employ a consistent formal process in determining the
long-term rate of return for various asset classes. We evaluate
input from our consultants, including their review of historic
financial market risks and refurns and long-term historic
relationships between the asset classes of equities, fixed income
and other assets, consistent with the widely accepted capital
market principle that asset classes with higher volatility generate
a greater return over the long-term. Current market factors such
as inflation, interest rates, asset class risks and asset class returns
are evaluated and considered before long-term capital market
assumptions are determined. The long-term portfolio return is
also established employing a consistent formal process, with due
consideration of diversification, active investment management
and rebalancing. Peer data is reviewed to check for reasonableness.

We employ a total return investment approach whereby a mix of
equities, fixed income and other investments are used to maximize
the long-term return of plan assets consistent with prudent levels
of risk, The intent of this strategy is to minimize plan expenses
over the long-term. Risk tolerance is established through
consideration of future plan cash flows, plan funded status, and
corporate financial considerations. The investment portfolio
contains a diversified blend of equity, fixed income and other
investments. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified
across U.S. and non-U.S, stocks, growth and value investment styles,
and large and small market capitalizations. Other assets such as
private equity and absolute return funds are used judiciously to
enhance long term returns while improving portfolio diversifica-
tion. Derivatives may be used to gain market exposure in an
efficient and timely manner; however, derivatives may not be used
to leverage the portfolio beyond the market value of the underlying

SFAS No. 87. The additional minimum pension liability, regulatory
asset, intangible asset and other comprehensive loss are adjusted
in December of each year based on the plans’ funded status.

We also sponsor defined contribution retirement savings plans.
Participation in one of these plans is available to substantially all
represented and nonrepresented employees. We match employee
contributions up to certain predefined limits based upon eligible
compensation, the employee's contribution rate and, in some
cases, years of credited service. The cost of these plans was

$28 million in 2004, $26 million in 2003 and $25 million in 2002,

Other Posiretirement Benelits

We provide certain postretirement health care and life insurance
benefits for employees who are eligible for these benefits. Our policy
is to fund certain trusts to meet our postretirement benefit obliga-
tions. Separate qualified Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association
(VEBA) trusts exist for represented and nonrepresented employees.

Net postretirement cost includes the following components:

fin Milfions) 2004 2003 2002
Service Cost $ a1 § 373 30
Interest Cost 92 87 78
Expected Return on Plan Assets {56) (47) {59)
Amortization of

Net loss 43 3 3

Prior service cost (3) {3) (1)

Net transition obligation 8 13 19
Net Postretirement Cost $ 15 3 1188 70

The following table reconciles the obligations, assets and funded status
of the plans including amounts recorded as accrued postretirement cost
in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31

investments. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an (in Mitions) 2004 2003
ongoing basis through annual liability measurements, periodic MeasurTment Date ; Nov. 30 Dec. 31
asset/liability studies, and quarterly investment portfolio reviews. égﬁga";::) ﬁfE‘i&ﬂﬁﬁfg’[ﬁ"&ﬁﬂEgene ft § 1582 $ 149
Our plans’ weighted-average asset allocations by asset category Service Cost a1 37
at December 31 were as follows: Interest Cost 92 87
— 2004 2003 Actuarial Loss 146 162
Equity Securities 69% 67% Plan Amendments 7 (126}
Debt Securities 26 2 Benefits Paid 75 {72}
Other _ 5 6 Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
L 100% 100% Obligation-End of Period $ 1,793 $ 1,582
Our plans’ weighted-average asset target allocations by asset Plan Assets at Fair
. Value-Beginning of Period $ 586 $ 537
category at Decemb’ve:}i:l,z()()éi were as follows: __ Actual Return o?\ Plan Assets 53 114
Equity Securities 65% Company Contributions 40 -
Debt Securities 28 Benefits Paid - (65)
Other 7 Plan Assets at Fair
100% Value-End of Period $ 679 $ 586
In December 2002, we recognized an additional minimum pension ~ Funded Status of the Plans $(1.114) $ (9%6)
liability as required under SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting UnNrgf ;Li';'md 811 705
Jor Pensions.” An additional pension liability may be required Prior service cost 8) (27)
when the accumulated benefit obligation of the plan exceeds the Net transition obligation 58 74
fair value of plan assets. Under SFAS No. 87, we recorded an Accrued Postretirement
additional minimum pension liability, an intangible asset and Liability at Measurement Date (253 (244)
other comprehensive‘ loss. In 2003, we recla§s1ﬁeq $5:72 nllil.lion ggw‘?}?t"gamﬂ?s“fﬁ’ﬂ e/-::r;?n bor 2004 ) )
of other comprehensive loss related to Detroit Edison’s minimum Accrued Postretirement
pension liability to a regulatory asset after the MPSC Staff Liability-End of Period $ (213) $ (244)

provided an opinion that the MPSC’s traditional rate setting
process allowed for the recovery of pension costs as measured by
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Assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligation
and net benefit costs are listed below:

2094 2003 2002
Projected Benefit Obligation
Discount rate 6.00 % 6.25% 6.75%
Net Benefit Costs
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Expected long-term rate
of return on Plan assets 9.0% 9.0% 9.5%

Benefit costs were calculated assuming health care cost trend
rates beginning at 9.0% for 2005 and decreasing to 5.0% in 2010
and thereafter for persons under age 65 and decreasing from
8.0% to 5.0% for persons age 65 and over. A one-percentage-point
increase in health care cost trend rates would have increased the
total service cost and interest cost components of benefit costs
by $20 million and increased the accumulated benefit obligation
by $177 million at December 31, 2004. A one-percentage-point
decrease in the health care cost trend rates would have decreased
the total service and interest cost components of benefit costs by
$17 million and would have decreased the accumulated benefit
obligation by $157 million at December 31, 2004.

Effective 2005, we amended our postretirement health care plan
to provide for some enhancements. The changes increased our

In December 2003, the Medicare Act was signed into law

which provides for a non-taxable federal subsidy to sponsors

of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that

is at least “actuarially equivalent” to the benefit established by
law. As discussed in Note 2, we adopted FSP No. 106-2 in 2004,
which provides guidance on the accounting for the Medicare
Act. As aresult of the adoption, our accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation for the subsidy related to benefits attributed
to past service was reduced by approximately $95 million at
January 1, 2004 and was accounted for as an actuarial gain.

The effects of the subsidy reduced net periodic postretirement
benefit costs by $16 million in 2004. The impact of the Medicare
Act on the components of other postretirement benefit costs

for the year ended December 31 was as follows:

fin Millions)

Reduction in service cost $ 2
Reduction in interest cost 6
Amortization of actuarial gain 8
Decrease in postretirement benefit cost $ 1

At December 31, 2004, the gross amount of federal subsidies
expected to be received in each of the next five years and in the
aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter was as follows:

{in Millions)

expected 2005 postretirement cost by $6 million. %ggg $ 1'1

At December 31, 2004, the benefits expected to be paid, including 2007 1

prescription drug benefits, in each of the next five years and in the gggg }g

aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter are as follows: 2010 - 2014 69

{in Millions) Total $ 115

2005 $ 97

2006 106 Grartor Trust

%gg; ”g MichCon maintains a Grantor Trust that invests in life insurance

2009 120 contracts and income securities. Employees and retirees have

%01‘]' - 2014 5 1"25‘15:" no right, title or interest in the assets of the Grantor Trust, and
ota

The process used in determining the long-term rate of return for
assets and the investment approach for our other postretirement
benefits plans is similar to those previously described for our
qualified pension plans.

Our plans’ weighted-average asset allocations by asset
category at December 31 were as follows:

2004 2003
Equity Securities 68% 66%
Debt Securities 28 30
Other 4 4

100% 100%

Our plans’ weighted-average asset target allocations by asset
category at December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Equity Securities 65%

Debt Securities 28

Other 7
100%
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MichCon can revoke the trust subject to providing the MPSC
with prior notification. We account for our investment at fair
value with unrealized gains and losses recorded to earnings.

NOTE-15 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The DTE Energy Stock Incentive Plan permits the grant of
incentive stock options, non-qualifying stock options, stock
awards, performance shares and performance units. A maximum
of 18 million shares of common stock may be issued under the
plan. Participants in the plan include our employees and
members of our Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2004,

no performance units have been granted under the plan.

Options

Options are exercisable according to the terms of the individual
stock option award agreements and expire 10 years after the date
of the grant. The option exercise price equals the fair value of
the stock on the date that the option was granted. Stock option
activity was as follows:




Weiglhted

Vumher of Average
. Ctions Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2001
(1,678,870 exercisable) 5,281,624 $38.51
Granted 1,334,370 $42.08
Exercised (678,715} $34.64
Canceled {456,684) $38.74
Outstanding at December 31, 2002
(2,285,323 exercisable) 5,480,595 $39.87
Granted 1,654,879 $40.56
Exercised (329,528) $35.88
Canceled L (152,824} $4267
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 - o
(3,506,038 exercisable) 6,653,122 $40.18
Granted 1,300,900 $ 39.41
Exercised {891,353) $34.94
Canceled {356,000) $ 43.06
Outstanding at December 31, 2004
(3,939,939 exercisable at a weighted
average exercise price of $40.52) 6,706,669 $ 40.57

The number, weighted average exercise price and weighted average
remaining contractual life of options outstanding were as follows:

ted  Weighted Average
rage Remaining

Range 2°

Exersise Prices  © Exeraise Price  Contractval Life
$27.62 - $38.04 649,604 $ 3170 5.02 years
$3860— $42.44 4,594,837 $ 4068 165 years
$42.60 - $44.54 690,950 $ 4270 6.38 years
$45.28 - $46.74 771,278 $ 4547 6.51 years

_ 6706669 _  $ 4057 7.3 years

We account for option awards under APB Opinion 25. Accordingly,
no compensation expense has been recorded for options granted.
As required by SFAS No. 123, we have determined the fair value for
these options at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes based
option pricing model and the following assumptions:

__ .. 2004 2003 20C2
Risk-free interest rate 355% 293% 5.33 %
Dividend yield 523% 4.97% 4.90 %
Expected volatility 20.00 % 2089%  1979%
Expected life G years 6 years 6 years
Fairvalue peropton ~  $446 $4.78 $6.25

Stock Awards

Stock awards granted under the plan are restricted for varying
periods, which are generally for three years. Participants have all
rights of a shareholder with respect to a stock award, including
the right to receive dividends and vote the shares. Prior to vesting
in stock awards, the participant: (i) may not sell, transfer, pledge,
exchange or otherwise dispose of shares; (ii) shall not retain
custody of the share certificates; and (iii) will deliver to us a
stock power with respect to each stock award.

The stock awards are recorded at cost that approximates fair value
on the date of grant. We account for stock awards as unearned
compensation, which is recorded as a reduction to common stock.

The cost is amortized to compensation expense over the vesting
period. Stock award activity for the years ended December 31 was:

2004 2003 2002
Restricted common shares awarded 209,650 102,060 113,410
Weighted average market
price of shares awarded $ 3995 $ 4139 § 4292
Compensation cost charged
against income (in thousands) $ 5616 $ 6366 $ 4,101

Performance Share Awards

Performance shares awarded under the plan are for a specified
number of shares of common stock that entitles the holder to
receive a cash payment, shares of common stock or a combination
thereof. The final value of the award is determined by the achieve-
ment of certain performance objectives. The awards vest at the
end of a specified period, usually three years, We account for
performance share awards by accruing compensation expense
over the vesting period based on: (i) the number of shares
expected to be paid which is based on the probable achievement
of performance objectives; and (ii) the fair value of the shares.
For 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recorded compensation expense
totaling $6.1 million, $5.5 million and $3.6 million, respectively.

During the vesting period, the recipient of a performance share
award has no shareholder rights. However, recipients will be paid
an amount equal to the dividend equivalent on such shares.
Performance share awards are nontransferable and are subject to
risk of forfeiture. As of December 31, 2004, there were 619,044
performance share awards outstanding,

NOTE-16 SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

We operate our businesses through three strategic business units
(Energy Resources, Energy Distribution and Energy Gas). Each
business unit has utility and non-utility operations. The balance of
our business consists of Corporate & Other. Based on this structure,
we set strategic goals, allocate resources and evaluate performance.
This results in the following reportable segments.

Energy Resources

o Utility — Power Generation operations include the power
generation services of Detroit Edison, the company’s
electric utility. Electricity is generated from Detroit Edison's
numerous fossil plants or its nuclear plant and sold throughout
Southeastern Michigan to residential, commercial, industrial
and wholesale customers.

o Nom-utility
— Energy Services is comprised of various businesses that develop,

acquire and manage energy-related assets and services. Such

projects include coke production, synfuels production, on-site
energy projects and merchant generation facilities.

— Energy Marketing & Trading consists of the electric and
gas marketing and trading operations of DTE Energy Trading
Company and the natural gas marketing and trading
operations of DTE Enterprises. Energy Marketing & Trading
enters into forwards, futures, swaps and option contracts as
part of its trading strategy.

— Other Non-utility operations consist primarily of
businesses involved in coal services and landfill gas
recovery. Also includes administrative and general
expenses not allocated to other non-utility businesses.
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Energy Distribution

o Utility — Power Distribution operations include the electric
distribution services of Detroit Edison. Energy Distribution
distributes electricity generated by Energy Resources and
alternative energy suppliers to Detroit Edison’s 2.1 million
residential, commercial and industrial customers.

» Non-utility operations include businesses that assemble,
market, distribute and service a broad portfolio of distributed
generation products, provides application engineering, and
monitors and manages system operations.

Energy Gas

¢ [tility operations include gas distribution services provided
by MichCon, the company’s gas utility that purchases, stores
and distributes natural gas throughout Michigan to 1.2 million
residential, commercial and industrial customers.

¢ Non-utility operations include the production of gas and the gather-
ing, processing and storing of gas. Certain pipeline and storage
assets are supported by the Energy Marketing & Trading segment.

Corporate & Other includes administrative and general expenses,
and interest costs of DTE Energy corporate that have not been
allocated to the utility and non-utility businesses. Corporate &
Other also includes various other non-utility operations, including
investments in new emerging energy technologies.

The income tax provisions or benefits of DTE Energy’s subsidiaries
are determined on an individual company basis and recognize the
tax benefit of Section 29 tax credits and net operating losses. The
subsidiaries record income tax payable to or receivable from DTE
Energy resulting from the inclusion of its taxable income or loss in
DTE Energy’s consolidated tax return. Inter-segment revenues
primarily consist of power sales, gas sales and coal transportation
services between Energy Resources Utility-Power Generation,
Energy Services, Energy Marketing & Trading and Non-utility
Other, and Energy Gas-Non-utility. DTE Energy's interest income
totaled $55 million in 2004, $37 million in 2003 and $29 million in
2002, and is primarily associated with the Energy Services and
Corporate & Other segments. Financial data of the business
segments follows:

| Depregiation,

| Opergtiig  Deplotion &  n'erest het Toig! __ Ceplte
i 2004, . oy Reven.e Amortzation Expens: neome  Asssts Gocdwill Expendiivres
Energy Resources
Utility — Power Generation $ 2,210 $ 212 $ 167 $23 $ 62 $ 8,288 $ 406 $ 332
Non-utility
Energy Services 1,089 82 33 64 188 1,790 41 17
Energy Marketing & Trading 665 3 5 46 92 1,098 17 8
Other 576 8 3 {1 1 126 4 13
Total Non-utility 2,330 3 4 99 281 3,014 62 38
Total Energy Resources 4,540 365 208 122 343 11,302 468 370
Energy Distribution
Utility — Power Distribution 1,358 251 13 41 88 4,554 796 370
Non-utility 46 2 2 (10) (19) 64 16 1
1,404 253 115 31 69 4618 812 3N
Energy Gas
Utility — Gas Distribution 1,682 103 58 {9 20 3128 772 13
Non-utility 119 20 1 1 21 549 15 48
1,801 123 69 2 Ly 3677 787 161
Corparate & Other 16 3 198 10 (10) 2,275 - 2
Reconciliation & Eliminations (647) - (72) - - (584) - -
Total from
Continuing Operations § 7,114 $ 744 $ 518 $165 443 21,288 2,067 904
Discontinued Operations (Note 3) {12) 9 - -
Total $431 $21,297 $2,067 § 904
Electric Utility $ 3,568 § 523 $ 280 $ 64 $150 $12,842 $1,202 $ 702
Gas Utility 1,682 103 58 (9) 20 3128 172 13
Non-utility 2,495 115 54 100 283 3,627 93 87
Corporate & Other 16 3 198 10 (10) 2,275 - 2
Reconcitiation & Eliminations {647) - (72} - - (584} - =
Total from
Continuing Operations $ 7114 $ 744 $ 518 $165 443 21,288 2,067 904
Discontinued Operations (Note 3) (12} 9 - -
Total $431 $21,297 $2,067 $ 904
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Depreciatien,

1 ihion & v Nest Total _ Cepfta
‘ o Amortizatien laxes Fserme Assets  Goodwill Expendiiures
Znergy Rescurces
Utility — Power Generation $ 2,448 $ 24 $ 157 3135 $235 $ 7,216 $ 406 $ 340
Non-utility
Energy Services 929 84 20 (249) 199 1,644 4 22
Energy Marketing & Trading 764 2 2 20 45 1,067 17 6
Other , 297 Ji 2 (17) (2) 128 4 1
Total Non-Liii 1,990 93 24 {246) 242 2,839 62 39
Totel Enercy Aesourcss 4438 317 . () 471 10,055 468 379
Erergy Distrhuticn
Utility — Power Distribution 1,247 249 127 10 17 5,333 796 240
Non-utility o 39 2 - {8) {15) 65 12 1
I . _ 1286 251 o 2 2 5,398 808 241
Energy Gas
Utility — Gas Distribution 1,498 101 58 - 29 3,021 176 99
Non-utility 90 18 8 14 29 518 15 28
Y _ 1588 119 66 14 58 3,539 791 127
Corporate & Other 12 ~ 219 {28) (57) 2,383 - 4
Reconciliation & Eliminations_ {283} ~ (47) - - {636) - -
“otel from
Condnuing Goerglizcns §7041 $ 687 $ 546 $123) 480 20,739 2,067 751
Discontinued Operations (Note 3) 68 14 - -
Cumuiative Effect of Accounting Changes (27) - - -
Total $521 $20,753 $2,067 $§ 751
Electric Utility $ 3,695 $ 473 $ 284 $145 $252 $12,549 $1,202 $ 580
Gas Utility 1,498 101 58 - 29 3,021 776 99
Non-utility 2,119 13 32 (240) 256 3422 89 68
Corporate & Other 12 - 219 (28) (57) 2,383 - 4
Reconciliation & Eliminations {283) - {47) - - {636) - -
S pare] S04 $_687 8546 S(123) 480 20,739 2,067 751
Discontinued Operations (Note 3) 68 14 - -
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes (27) - - -
Tote: $521 $20,753 $2,067 $§ 751
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Depragtetion,

|
Operet ag;  Deplation &  interes! ol Caple \w
=); 1 | 2 - T !
2002 i fitons) Reven.e Amoerization Expenss Assets  Coodwl Expendi.res J

Energy Resources

Utility — Power Generation $ 2711 $ 331 $ 184 $120 $241 $ 7334 $ 406 $ 395
Non-utility
Energy Services 645 81 19 (268) 182 1,536 41 130
Energy Marketing & Trading 681 3 15 13 25 822 17 -
Other 102 9 4 (19) 7 256 4 8
Total Non-utility 1,428 a3 38 (274) 214 2,614 62 138
Total Energy Resources 4,139 424 222 (154) 455 9,948 468 533 .
Energy Distribution
Utility ~ Power Distribution 1,343 246 127 58 1M 4,154 796 290
Non-utility 39 2 1 {9) (16) 60 12 2
1,382 248 128 49 95 4214 808 2
Energy Gas
Utility — Gas Distribution 1,363 104 57 36 66 2,857 776 93
Non-utility 87 19 6 14 26 504 16 32
1,456 123 63 50 92 3,361 792 15
Corporate & Other 16 - 232 (32) (56) 2,378 - 24
Reconciliation & Eliminations (264} (58) {76) 3 - (548) - -
Total from
Continuing Operations $ 6,729 $§ 737 $ 569 $(84) 586 19,353 2,068 974
Discontinued Operations (Note 3) 46 632 4 10
Total $632 $19,985 $2112 $ 984
Electric Utility $ 4,054 $ 577 $ 31 $178 $352 $11,488 $1,202 $ 685
Gas Utility 1,369 104 57 36 66 2,857 776 93
Non-utility 1,554 114 45 (269) 224 3,178 90 172
Corporate & Other 16 - 232 (32) (56) 2,378 - 24
Reconciliation & Eliminations (264) (58) {76) 3 - {548) - -
Total from
Continuing Operations $ 6,729 $ 737 $ 569 $(84) 586 19,353 2,068 974
Discontinued Operations {Note 3) 46 632 a4 10
Total $632 $19,985 $2,112 $ 984
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{in Millions, except per share amounts) _

B QUARTERLY FiINANC

|AL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly earnings per share may not total for the years, since quarterly computations are based on weighted average common
shares outstanding during each quarter. We account for the operations of ITC and SMGC as discontinued operations (Note 3).

| First Third Fourh
2804 Cusrer (1) Quarier Ouerer Year

Operatirg Rwemcs $ 2003 § 1,501 $ 1594 § 1926 § 1114
Oneratrg income $ 68 § % 173 § 210§ 846
Net incocme {_oss;

From continuing operations $ 197 ¢ I 3 3 18§ 443

Discontinued operations 7 L - - (5) (12)
“ota: I R - B § 3 3§ 13§ -1
Basic Zanings (Loss, pe-i-ars

From contmumg operations $ 16 § 20 8 5 § 68 8 2.56

Discontinued operations ] {0.04) - - (.03) (.06)
Tota: % 112 s 20 s 54 § 65 §$§ 25
Dilutec Zarnings (Loss) ser Share

From continuing operations $ 115 ¢ 20 $ 54 § 68 $ 255

Discontinued operations 004) - - (.03) {.06)
ol $ 141§ 205 M $ 85 8 248

2003 -

Cperating F»’=ven R $ 209 § 1600 § 1654  § 1692 § 7,041
Cperating i~come $ 217§ n $ 32 3 221 § 747
Net Income iLoss)

From continuing operations $ 108 § 37 % 180 § 229 § 430

Discontinued operations 74 (2) (4) - 68

Cumulative effect of accounting changes {27) - - - (27)
Total o 8 15§ (39) $ 176§ 29 § 521
Besic Farnings (Lcesj prr Shere L

From continuing operations $ 8 3 (220 § 1.07 $ 136 3 2.87

Discontinued operations 44 (.01) (.02) - 4

Cumulative effect of accounting changes {17) - - - (17)
“ote! . __ s 92 3 (23§ 105§ 136 $ 311
oiluted Earnings (css) 3¢ Share

From continuing operations $ 64 8 (220 ¢ 106 § 136 § 2.85

Discontinued operations 44 (.01) {.02) - 40

Cumulative effect of accounting changes (18) - - - {.16)
Tetal $ 92 (23) § 104 § 13§ 309

(1) Previously reported first quarter 2004 amounts have been adjusted to reflect the retroactive adoption of FSP No. 106-2, relating to the impact of the

Medicare Act on postretirement benefit costs (Note 2).
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statistical review

\(Baitars in Milions, Bxespt Comman Share Data) ] 2008 2003 a2 Al

Operating Revenues

Utility S 5,250 $ 5,193 $ 5,423 $ 4,659

Non-utility (1) 1,864 1,848 1,306 1,128
Total $ 7114 $ 7041 $ 6,729 $ 5,787 L
Al

Net Income

Utility $ 170 $ 281 $ 418 $ 198

Non-utility (1) 213 199 168 111

443 430 586 - 309

Discontinued Operations (12) 68 46 20

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes - (27 - 3

$ 431 $ 521 $ 632 $ 332

Diluted Earnings per Share

Utility $ 98 $ 167 $ 253 S 1.29
Non-utility {1) 1.57 1.18 1.02 0.72
255 2.85 355 20
Discontinued Operations {0.06) 40 28 a3
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes - {.16) - 02
$ 2.49 $ 3.09 $ 3.83 $ 2.16
Electric Utility Deliveries (Miflions of kWh) 52,416 53,194 54,105 51,516
Electric Utility Customers at Year End (Thousands) 2147 2,132 2,136 2,125
Gas Utility Deliveries (Bcf){2) 854 909 837 917
Gas Utility Customers at Year End (Thousands)(2) 1,258 1,249 1,267 1,235
Financial Position at Year End
Net property {3) $ 10,491 $ 10,324 $ 10,542 $ 10,255
Total assets (3) $ 21297 $ 20753 $ 19,985 $ 19,587
Long-term debt, including capital leases $ 1,606 $ 7,669 3 7,803 $ 7,928
Total shareholders’ equity $ 5,548 $ 5,287 ) 4,565 $ 4,588
Common Share Data
Dividends declared per share $ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 206 $ 2.06
Average shares outstanding-diluted (millions) 173 168 165 154
Book value per share $ 31.8 S 31.36 $ 27.26 $ 28.48
Market price: High $ 45.49 $ 4950 $ 41.70 $ 4713
Low $ 37.88 $ 34.00 $ 33.05 $ 33.13
Year end $ 4313 $ 39.40 $ 46.40 $ 41.94
Miscellaneous Financial Data
Cash flow from operations $ 995 $ 950 $ 99 3 811
Capital expenditures $ 904 $ 751 $ 984 $ 1,096
Employees at year end 11,207 11,099 11,095 11,030

{1} Includes Corporate & Other and/or eliminations.

(2) Gas Utility data shown prior to May 2001 is presented for informational purposes only. The Gas Utility business was acquired on May 31, 2001.

(3) In conjunction with adopting SFAS No. 143, we reclassified previously accrued asset removal costs related to our regulated operations, which had been previously
netted against accumulated depreciation, to an asset removal cost liability for the years 1999 through 2002. Amounts for years prior to 1999 are not available.
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1899 1998 1997 18 1395 199 |
$ 4129 $ 4047 s 390 $ 3657 $ 3642 $ 363 $ 3519
509 452 72 107 3 2 -
$ 4638 $ 4499 s 4174 $ 3764 $ 3645 S 3636 $ 3519
$ 47 $ 434 $ 412 $ 405 $ 312 $ 406 $ 390
2 49 31 12 3) - -
468 483 3 a7 309 406 390
' 468 $ 483 $ 43 $ 57 $ 309 $ 406 $ 390
$ 299 $ 300 $ 283 $ 279 $ 215 $ 280 $ 267
28 33 2 09 (02) _ _
3.27 33 305 288 213 280 267
Y 333 $ 305 $ 288 $ 213 $ 280 $ 267
© s2en 55871 55,286 50,983 48815 49,298 46,494
2110 2,089 2,068 2,051 2025 2,002 1,980
5 866 850 941 895 730 667
1,235 1,220 1,206 1193 1,183 1173 1,155
$ 8,081 $ 7,853 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 13,350 $ 13,021 $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
s 4039 $ 400 $ 433 s 3914 $ 389 $ 3884 $ 395
$ 4009 $ 3900 S 369 $ 3706 $ 3588 $ 3763 $ 3706
$ 206 $ 205 $ 206 $ 206 $ 206 $ 206 $ 206
143 145 185 145 145 145 146
$ 2814 $ 275 $ 2549 $ 2451 $ 2369 $ 26 $ 2089
$ 4135 $ 4459 $ 4925 $ 3475 $ 3755 $ 3488 $ 3025
$ 2844 $ 3106 $ 3350 s 2613 $ 263 $ 2575 $ 2425
$ 3894 $ 3183 S 4306 $ 3469 $ 3238 $ 3450 $ 2613
$ 1015 $ 1084 $ 834 $ 905 $ 1079 $ 913 $ 923
$ 749 $ 739 $ 589 $ 484 $ 531 $ 454 $ 366
9,144 8,886 8781 8732 8,526 8,340 8,494
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WOords
our INCUSTY USES

Coke and Coxe Battery

Raw coal is heated to high temperatures in ovens to drive

off impurities, leaving a carbon residue called coke. Coke is

combined with iron ore to create a high metallic iron that is
used to produce steel. A series

of coke ovens configured in a
module is referred to as a battery.

Customer Choice

The customer choice programs
are statewide initiatives giving
customers in Michigan the option
to choose alternative suppliers for

glossary

electricity and gas.

Gas Cost Recovery (GCR) Mechanism

A GCR mechanism authorized by the MPSC permitting
MichCon to pass the cost of natural gas to its customers.

MPSC

The Michigan Public Service Commision regulates
the state’s energy, telecommunications and
transportation services industries.

Power Supply Cost Recovery
(PSCR) Mechanism

A PSCR mechanism authorized by the MPSC that allows

Detroit Edison to recover through rates its fuel, fuel-related and
purchased power expenses. The clause was suspended under
Michigan's restructuring legislation (signed into law June 5, 2000),
which lowered and froze electric customer rates. The clause

was reinstated by the MPSC effective January 1, 2004.
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Secticn 29 Tax Credits

Tax credits authorized under Section 29 of the Internal Revenue
Code, designed to stimulate investment in and development of

alternative fuel sources. The amount of a Section 29 tax credit can

vary each year as determined by the Internal Revenue Service.

Securitization
Detroit Edison financed specific stranded costs
at lower interest rates through the sale of rate

reduction bonds by a wholly owned special purpose
entity, the Detroit Edison Securitization Funding LLC.

Stranded Costs

Costs incurred by utilities in order to serve customers in a
regulated environment that absent special regulatory approval
would not otherwise expect to be recoverable if customers
switch to alternative suppliers of electricity and gas.

Synfuel

The fuel produced through a process involving chemically
modifying and binding particles of coal. Synfuels are used for
power generation and coke production. Synfuel production
generates Section 29 tax credits.




overview

DTE Energy’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange (symbol DTE).
The following table indicates the reported high and low sale
prices on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape for
DTE Energy common stock, and dividends paid per share for
each quarterly period during the past two years:

Dividends Paid

Calendar Quarter High Low Per Share
2004 First $ 4229 $ 37192 $ 0515
Second 4158 37.88 0515

Third 4221 39.31 0.515

Fourth 45.49 41.44 0.515

2003 First $ 4950 $ 3851 $ 0515
Second 4495 38.52 0.515

Third 38.98 34.00 0.515

Fourth 39.76 35.12 0.515

As of Dec. 31, 2004, 174,209,034 shares of the company’s
common stock were outstanding. These shares were held
by a total of 99,832 shareholders of record.

distribution of ownrership of DTE Energy
common stock as of Dec. 31, 2004:

Type of Owner Owners Shares
Individuals 40,889 12,636,138
Joint Accounts 37,363 15,386,259
Trust Accounts 1,468 1,047,942
Nominees 38 136,597,601
Institutions/Foundations 40 40,651
Brokers/Security Dealers 46 30,529
Others 19,988 8,469,914

Total 99832 174,209,034
State and Country Owners Shares
Michigan 51,494 20,538,997
Florida 5,941 2,653,067
California 4,903 1,703,692
New York 3,908 137,904,170
[llinois 3,765 1,380,697
Ohio 3m 1,029,857
44 other states 26,300 8,865,125
Foreign countries 410 133,429

Total 99,832 174,209,034

annual meeting of shareholders

The 2005 Annual Meeting of DTE Energy Shareholders will
be held Thursday, April 28, 2005, at 10 a.m. (EST) in the
DTE Energy Building, 660 Plaza Drive, Detroit, MI.

corporate address

DTE Energy, 2000 Second Ave.

Detroit, MI 48226-1279

Telephone: 313.235.4000 dteenergy.com

independent reg’stered public accounting firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP

600 Renaissance Center, Suite 900
Detroit, MI 48243-1704

form 10-K

We will provide, without charge to shareholders, copies
of our Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Written requests should be directed to:

Susan M. Beale

Vice President and Corporate Secretary
DTE Energy, 2000 Second Ave.
Detroit, MI 48226-1279

or dteenergy.com/investors

cfficer certifications
In 2004, our chief executive officer (CEQ) submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) the annual CEO certification
regarding DTE Energy's compliance
with the NYSE's corporate governance
listing standards, stating that he was

not aware of any violation to the NYSE @th@f
corporate governance listing standards. ﬁnf@y m@ﬁ@n
Our CEO made his annual certification @b @@t

to the NYSE as of May 27, 2004. In
addition, we have filed as exhibits to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K with
the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the certifications
required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 regarding the quality of the
company’s public disclosures in the fiscal year-end 2004 reports.

DTE Energy

transfer agent

The Bank of New York

Send certificates for transfer and address changes to:
Receive and Deliver Department, P.0. Box 11002
Church Street Station, New York, NY 10286
Telephone: 866.388.8558 www.stockbny.com

registrar of stock and other information
Address shareholder inquiries to:

The Bank of New York, Shareholder Relations Department
P.O. Box 11258, Church Street Station, New York, NY 10286
or e-mail inquires to: shareowners@bankofny.com

As a service to shareholders of record, DTE Energy offers direct
deposit of dividend payments through The Bank of New York.
Payments can be electronically transferred directly to the bank
or savings and loan account of choice on the payment date.
Write to the address above, or call 866.388.8558 to request a
Direct Deposit Authorization Form.

Shareholders of record can elect to receive future copies of
our Annual Report and Proxy Statement electronically by
marking the appropriate box on their proxy card as instructed.
By electing electronic delivery, you are stating that you
currently have or expect to have access to the Internet.

©2005 DTE Energy is the owner  Printed by St Ives Inc
D T E DTE Energy Company, of the “Head/Corona” Miami, Fla.
all rights reserved. logo. DTE Energy or
NYS E its affiliates are the
. owners of various
other registered and
unregistered trademarks.
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